=
-

11—
el tﬁ)ﬁcsﬁ%i;@q
= Qﬁ) ¢ 5 "
ayman Islands with limited liability)

i 0597) 1

i

S

iy g——

-_!J@

.
s sdEreEEssEdeEdERsEREREEEAEE

e = (T
| | L

—
—
N

BERRBREBRRBAERR ——



IIIll'm.IIIIIIIIII_I.._“'“I-I"

S————— -
2-4 Company Profile and Positioning Nalgtn & EAL
5-9 Corporate Information ANGIEEvE
10-11 Financial Highlights MEHE
12-13  Historical Milestones B2
14-15  Chairman’s Statement ITEHES
16-20  Report from Chief Executive Officer BENTERESE
21-33  Management Discussion and Analysis EEENwmAON
34-44  Corporate Governance Report EE WS
45-52  Directors and Senior Management BEEkARER
53-83  Report of the Directors EEeWmEE
84-86  Independent Auditor’s Report BN ZEA RS E
87-88  Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income #=& & E Wz T
89-90  Consolidated Statement of Financial Position maE B E
91-92  Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity REEREER
93-94  Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows meBeng

95-189  Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements R BT mRMIFE
190-191  Five-year Financial Summary T EHHEEE
192-192 Investor Relations EEBIR

CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED # & i & F A [R /2 & ANNUALREPORT2010 =T — T F F E H & 1



Company Profile and Positioning
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COMPANY PROFILE

China Resources Microelectronics Limited (“CR Micro” or the
“Company”) is a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands. The listing of the Company’s shares on the main board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
commenced in August 2004 with the Stock Code 0597.

CR Micro, together with its subsidiaries (the “Group” or “we”),
is a leading manufacturer in the development and operation of
semiconductor business in China. Its activities cover open foundry,
Integrated Circuits (“IC”) design, IC testing and packaging as well
as discrete devices businesses. The Group has become a leading
supplier of analog ICs in China and positions itself as a leading analog
semiconductor company in China.

As one of the top five semiconductor producers in China, CR Micro
and its subsidiaries, namely CSMC Technologies Corporation, Wuxi
China Resources Semico Co., Ltd., Wuxi CR Micro-Assemb Tech.
Ltd. and Wuxi China Resources Huajing Microelectronics Co., Ltd. are
renowned enterprises in the Chinese microelectronics industry.

The Group’s main businesses include:

Open Foundry Operation

CSMC Technologies Corporation (“CSMC”), one of the subsidiaries
of CR Micro, is currently the largest 6-inch open foundry operator
in the Mainland China which provides IC manufacturing services for
fabless design houses and integrated device manufacturers. The
total production capacity of 6-inch wafer of the Group has attained a
significant scale of 91,000 wafers per month with 0.35pm capability,
offering worldwide customers a broad range of analog and power
process technologies including Mixed Signal, BCDMOS, BiCMOS,
Planar and Trench DMOS, EEPROM and CMOS Logic.
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CSMC is also able to provide 8-inch open foundry services by forming
a company (“Fab 2”) with China Resources (Holdings) Company
Limited (“CRH”), the Company’s substantial shareholder. Fab 2 has
designed production capacity of 60,000 8-inch wafer per month with
0.11um technology capability. CR Micro, through CSMC, currently
owns 19% equity interest in Fab 2. Fab 2 has started initial volume
production and reached its full phase one production capacity of
30,000 8-inch wafers per month in 2010.

IC Design Operation

The Group currently owns three IC design houses, namely Wuxi China
Resources Semico Co., Ltd. (“Wuxi Semico”), CR PowTech (Shanghai)
Limited (“CR PowTech”) and China Resources Semiconductor
International Limited (“CR Semi”).

Wuxi Semico is one of the leading Chinese fabless design houses
in terms of technologies and scale, utilising state-of-the-art digital
and analog technologies to design and develop semiconductor IC
products such as MCU and audio and video processing SoC applied in
electronics such as LCD TV, Hi-Fi, portable digital electronic products,
green lightings, automobile, teaching instrument, etc.

CR PowTech is specializing in analog and mixed signal ICs with
primary focuses on power management and LED driving products.
CR PowTech’s product lines are concentrated in DC-DC boost
and buck converters, AC-DC controllers, high-performance LDO
regulators, backlight WLED drivers, high-brightness LED drivers,
audio amplifiers, and battery management. Its ICs are widely used in
portable electronics, home appliances, communication devices, and
automotive electronics.

CR Semi principally engages in the design, R&D and sales of consumer
ICs and wafers. It has launched a series of products, including single-
chip radio circuit, audio amplifier, calculation amplifier, encoder/
decoder circuit, LCD, music voice, circuit for clock & watch, UPS and
MCU and photoelectric coupled receiver chip.
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IC Testing & Packaging Operation

The Group formed a joint venture named as Wuxi CR Micro-Assemb
Tech. Ltd., with STATS ChipPAC Ltd., a leading global IC assembly
and testing foundry operator. The joint venture, being one of the
largest local enterprises focused in IC testing and packaging foundry
operations in the Mainland China, mainly engages in the provision of
IC assembly and testing foundry services for internationally well-known
semiconductor enterprises with its leading wire bond packaging testing
technology in the Mainland China and a packaging capacity of over
4 billion wires per month. The Company indirectly holds 75% equity
interest of the joint venture.

The Company also wholly owns a subsidiary named China Resources
Semicon Microelectronics (ShenZhen) Co. Ltd., focusing on providing
testing services to semiconductor enterprises in Asia.

Discrete Device Operation

Wuxi China Resources Huajing Microelectronics Co., Ltd. is a leader
in the development and manufacture of power semiconductor discrete
devices in the Mainland China. With an annual manufacturing capacity
of approximately 2 million 4 to 6-inch wafers for discrete devices,
this company is a major supplier of discrete device wafers and
finished products in the Mainland China. The aforementioned products
developed are applied in promising sectors including energy saving
lightings, home appliances, industrial control devices and personal
computers.

POSITIONING

The Group is positioned as a leading analog semiconductor company
in the Mainland China. It is our mission to strive to revitalize the
domestic microelectronics industry. It has become a leading supplier of
analog ICs in the Mainland China market by capitalizing on the eminent
position of China as the global manufacturing powerhouse and its
burgeoning domestic market, unique design and process technologies
of the Group as well as synergy from close cooperation among internal
industrial chain. The Group’s strategy is to maximize shareholders’
value by utilizing the cost advantages of Chinese manufacturing
platforms and leveraging on the technological edge accumulated year
by year during the Group’s development.
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Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
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Principal Place of Business ~ No. 14 Liangxi Road

Place of Business in
Hong Kong Registered
under Part Xl of the
Companies Ordinance

Share Registrar and
Transfer Office in
Hong Kong

Website Address

Wuxi, Jiangsu
214061
China

Rm. 4003-4005, 40/F
China Resources Building
26 Harbour Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Computershare Hong Kong Investor

Services Limited

Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai, Hong Kong

WWW.Crmicro.com
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Financial Highlights
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2010 2009
—E-EF —ZZNF  Year-on-year
HK$’000 HK$’000 Change
FERT FAET AFRE)
(restated)
(&%)
(note 1)
(FF&ET)
Turnover =§ £ 3,874,207 3,036,881 27.6%
Total earnings before interest RETFERX ~ BiE -
expense, taxation, depreciation WERBHEANNER
and amortisation (“EBITDA”) # %8 (EBITDA)) 894,377 389,101 129.9%
Net cash inflow from LETEBEER
operating activities WEMAFEEE 787,099 648,660 21.3%
Depreciation and amortisation ITE R (551,180) (514,165) 7.2%
Finance costs BhE AR (23,332) (43,747) (46.7%)
Profit (loss) before taxation BrREATRT (BE) 319,865 (168,811) 289.5%
Taxation T8 (40,317) (13,566) 197.2%
Profit (loss) for the year REERF (BE)
(“Net profit (loss)”) (MaEF (&51]8) F8l) 279,548 (182,377) 253.3%
Profit (loss) attributable to Owners A2 RIHEH AL
of the Company wA (EE) 272,364 (172,206) 258.2%
As at 31 December R+=A=+-—H
Total assets AEME 7,522,898 6,985,044 7.7%
Total equity S EER 3,728,847 3,320,873 12.3%
Bank balances and cash RITEHR LIRS 1,271,969 1,211,089 4.2%
Borrowings B8 1,803,812 2,102,535 (14.2%)
Earnings (loss) per share BREF (FHE)
Basic (HK cent) A (B 3.13 2.35) 233.2%
Diluted (HK cent) (Note 2) g (B (sE2) 3.13 2.35) 233.2%
Net assets per share (HK cent) SREEFE (GBI 41.30 36.78 12.3%
(Note 3) (MzE2)
Ratios (Note 3) b= (HIEES)
Gross margin (%) FEHZE (%) 25.11 18.17 38.2%
Net profit margin (%) HERNZE (%) 7.22 (6.01) 220.1%
Current ratio (times) mENELE (fF) 1.25 1.12 11.6%
Quick ratio (times) HRENEEE (fF) 0.97 0.88 10.2%
Net debt to equity (%) RSB B IR (%) 14.26 26.54 (46.3%)
CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED & & {4 T B R A7 ANNUAL REPORT 2010 T-ZEFFERE



Note 1:

 IEEEEENEEN

The comparative figures have been restated as a result of the adoption of Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by
the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause
and changes in presentation and reclassification of government grants in
profit or loss. Please refer to note 2 to the consolidated financial statements
for details.

Note 2:

Basic earning per share is calculated based on weighted average number of
issued shares. The weighted average numbers of shares for the two years
ended 31 December 2010 were arrived at after deducting 100,000,000 shares
held by the trustee of the share award scheme trust under the Restricted Share
Award Scheme and accounted for by the Group as treasury shares held by
the Group.

Diluted loss per share for 2009 did not assume the exercise of the share
options because inclusion of the share options in the calculation of diluted loss
per share would result in a decrease in loss per share.

Note 3:

Net assets per share = Shareholders’ equity/number of shares issued as

at the end of the accounting period

Gross profit margin Gross profit/revenue x 100%

Net profit margin Profit after tax/revenue x 100%

Current ratio = Current assets/current liabilities
Quick ratio = (Current assets — inventories)/current liabilities

Net debt to equity

(Total debts less bank balances and cash)/total
equity x 100%
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1997
CSMC Technologies Corporation
was founded by
Dr. Peter Chen
PRIEFE LA
FERMBBER AT

MU

1998
Leased 5-inch and 6-inch wafer
foundry production facilities from
China Huajing Group
MR EESERARMEA
S5HT R6HET REIEERME

2001
Complete transition from
5-inch to 6-inch
TEAK ER 5 3 < (M) 6 5 <) 8

1999
Operating breakeven
after 15 months
KE15E A%
EW T

2004
2003 Listed on the main board of
Acquired 0.35um 6-inch equipment line Hong K\png Stock Exchange
from Agere & Chartered ERBBIMER LD
Strategic partnership with Chartered

mAgere &z Chartered i A
BT 0.3 R EERERE
EiChartered & 37 5 B B 1 B (R
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2008
2007 Businesses amalgamation with CR Logic
BCD development and The Company was renamed as China
production Resources Microelectronics Limited
HABCDHE kA E Formation of a company with CRH in
8-inch wafer fabrication line
HE BB B EE S O

ARRIELREBBRETARAR
SR EN — KB\ T &E
HEEGNAR

2006

CR Logic became the
controlling shareholder

Transform to an analog foundry 2009
£ B Sk AR IR AR Raised HK$437.6 million

A48 i e B T #85)

by way of rights issue
AR T X E&E4.376188 T

2010
2005 Established the first complete IGBT fabrication
line in the PRC accredited by its customer
DMOS technology mass Strategic cooperation with University of
production Electronic Science and Technology of China

< g S A and Southeast University
KNS 7o B (R B R M B EIGBT NI T 7R -
HAHBEFRIEARSBMER R AZ R BIRSIEREF

Launched 0.35um process
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHREE

Dear Shareholders,

After suffering a severe recession in 2008 and 2009, the semiconductor
sector finally embraced a year of revitalization and prosperity in 2010.
Facing the toughest challenges, the Company devoted efforts to the
R&D and structure optimization of existing products and technologies
to enhance product competitiveness on one hand, and injected
considerable resources in its strategic adjustment and the development
of new applications on the other hand, so as to grasp opportunities
presented by China’s rapidly-growing semiconductor market during
the Chinese Twelfth Five-Year Plan period. These efforts have borne
fruits in 2010. | am pleased to announce that our Company recorded
a turnover of HK$3,874.21 million for 2010, representing a significant
increase of 27.6% as compared to the turnover of HK$3,036.88 million
for the corresponding period of 2009. In addition, the Group recorded a
net profit of HK$279.55 million during the period, compared to the net
loss of HK$182.38 million for the corresponding period of the previous
year. Both the turnover and net profit reached a record high.

Despite the significant growth in the semiconductor market at home
and abroad in the previous year, this kind of cross-product and
cross-application rebounding growth trend throughout the industry
has come to an end. For the coming years, only those semiconductor
enterprises committed to a “focused” business segment can maintain
a sustained growth level higher than the average of the industry. Since
its declaration of repositioning strategies and its endeavor to become
a leading analog semiconductor company in China in 2007, the Group
has continuously invested in the analog semiconductor market over
the past four years. Even at the tide of downturns in the industry,
the Group continued to invest in the research and development of
special analog technologies including BCD, power devices and radio
frequencies, in addition to the optimization of production capacity.
And such analog technologies are no other than the foundation of
developing green and power saving semiconductor products, which
will provide strong assurance for the Group to focus strategically on
the huge application market of power management products, green
lightings, internet of things and automotive electronics, etc. During
the year, the Group’s tumover from green and power saving business
contributed HK$1,268.35 million, representing a 35.5% growth from
last year. We believe that our commitment to focused segments of the
semiconductor market will enable us to maintain a leading position in
the analog semiconductor industry in China.
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Another focus of the Group is embodied in its efforts to tap and
focus on the Chinese semiconductor market. China, being a world
market and the world’s workshop, will be able to maintain its position
as the largest semiconductor market in the globe with increasing
importance. At the beginning of the Chinese Twelfth Five-Year Plan
period, China will continue to introduce new incentive policies to
support the development of the semiconductor industry. On the other
hand, it will also strive to facilitate the development of seven strategic
emerging industries such as energy-saving, environmental protection
and new energies, so as to boost the demand for green lightings,
power management and power devices. This favourable environment
will create an impetus for the continuous growth of the whole Chinese
semiconductor market. In future, the Group will continue to grasp any
opportunity arising in China to develop special applications with great
market potential and secure a stable growth in operating results.

In 2010, the Group implemented a series of significant measures such
as the recomposition of the Board, completion of strategic adjustment
and focusing, and improvement of the development and optimization
of products and services. Looking ahead, we have set our target to
become the most competitive semiconductor company in China with
our core competence of proprietary technologies, proximity to markets
and rapid response.

Finally, on behalf of the Company, | would like to take this opportunity
to thank all of our shareholders, business partners and our employees
for their support and confidence in us.

——.
——
|
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WANG Guoping E
Chairman EEF
Hong Kong, 22 March 2011 B —E——F=ZA=-+=H
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Report from Chief Executive Officer

BEREITERESE

Overview

Following the trend of semiconductor industry’s recovery from
second quarter of 2009, the Group’s operation has regained growth
momentum. Along with the strong growth of the Chinese economy,
the strong market demand kept driving the Group to maintain its
products delivery quantities and high capacity utilization rates. The
Group kept adopting its strategy to focus in the domestic market
and analog segment through continuous investment in its research
and development to maintain its competitive power. As a result, the
Group reported a net profit of HK$279.55 million in 2010, comparing
with the net loss of HK$182.38 million in 2009, inclusive of a
significant impairment loss of HK$190.00 million in the available-for-
sale investment of the Company.

During the year under review, the consolidated turnover of the
Group increased significantly by 27.6% to HK$3,874.21 million from
HK$3,036.88 million in 2009. The Group’s EBITDA also increased by
129.9% to HK$894.38 million from HK$389.10 million in 2009. The
basic earnings per Share for the year was 3.13 HK cents.

Geographical Business Review

The Group maintains a healthy geographical business mix to balance
the market differentiation, growth potential as well as concentration
risks. In particular, the Group maintained its market position by
catching various opportunities arising from the growing local demands
and strong local industrial supply chain.

The following table shows the geographical breakdown of the Group’s
turnover for the five years ended 31 December 2010:

e

BErERTEE _TTNFE_FTEERR K
SENEBCERTTY - BE T B ERHIE
R ETSRYBRFHT  AEERERFE
miVEENSERNAE AEEEBERNER
IR BTG LR ERRITRRAS - AEE
FEREMBEFEARTES - Bt AKER
—E-TFEFENFE2.7966FETT M_F
TNFRISIFE R FER1.8238F R T - HPBHE
ARRAMEHERENARBERE19EET

REBEFE AEENGAEETER_TTNF
#930.36881E & T K 18 1 N27.6% £38.74211%
T o ANEBEHEBITDAT H — 2 N, #3.8910
BB LI IN129.9%5E8.94381B 7L - KA EFEEMNF
R EARZF A3 A8 -

Hh[EEFEER

AEERFRENMREBES - LWFEWEE
2 BRBENLETRR LHERASEEZEBE
BEMASIERNFERLREMWBAMNITRMER
FTEANRZEEmMRGEm S -

TREVEHWES M ARERE-_FT—FTF+ =
A=+—BLERAEFENERR

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
“E-Zf —EENE “TENF “EELF “TTRE
HK$°000 %  HK$'000 %  HK$'000 %  HK$'000 %  HK$'000 %
TET TEL TEL TEL TEL

The Mainland China R EI /1) 2,847,972 735 2,272,481 748 2,196,425 704 2,442 111 816 601,382 67.7
Asia, other than the P EIRIELASMO

Mainland China TR 574,417 14.8 413,698 136 520,558 167 418,056 140 170,822 19.2

United States xH 434,820 1.2 332,801 11.0 311,331 100 104,152 35 84,304 9.5

Europe M 16,998 05 17,901 06 90,378 29 27,306 09 31447 3.6

Total w@Et 3,874,207  100.0 3,036,881  100.0 3,118,692  100.0 2,991,625  100.0 887,955  100.0

CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED # 8 it & + A B & 7 ANNUAL REPORT 2010 TE—ZTFFERSE
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Technology Migration AR

The Group is dedicated to maintain its positioning as a leading ZAEEH NN EGBERFBHERMEL ;S
analog semiconductor company in China, by focusing to utilize its  Filf - #EE/(EABRANE LRI EE N THHY
accumulated technology in analog semiconductor. i o

The table below shows the Group’s turnover by process mix for the TXRENEHE-_ZEZ—ZTF+_A=+—HILME

two years ended 31 December 2010: FERIZ2HGONNAEEZ X
2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNEFE
HK$’000 % HK$’'000 %
FTHER FA&T
Analog R A 2,414,111 62.3 1,876,693 61.8
Non-analog FEIRHE 499,897 12.9 434,722 14.3
Testing & Packaging A E 8 837,589 21.6 571,478 18.8
Others HAtb 122,610 3.2 153,988 5.1
Total MGt 3,874,207 100.0 3,036,881 100.0
Application Focus FERES,

The Group’s semiconductor products are widely used in consumer HZREGHERRLEREENERT @ A%
electronic devices, as well as the booming power management and B8 E 88 E R EZANEBEEEE FURED)
green lighting markets, following the global trend in power-saving and RN EREE LA BRI -

low-carbon consciousness.

The table below shows the Group’s turnover by application for the two ~ TR R AEBREBE T —TF+-A=+—

years ended 31 December 2010: HitMEFERERSTHE XE5E
2010 2009
—E-EF ZEENF
HK$’000 % HK$’000 %
FHET FHET

Consumer electronics HESE 1,588,806 41.0 1,230,638 40.5
Power management BREE 557,073 14.4 412,999 13.6
Green lighting # e RRAA 711,276 18.4 523,283 17.2
Others Hth 1,017,052 26.2 869,961 28.7
Total @t 3,874,207 100.0 3,036,881 100.0

CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED # B i & + A R 24 7] ANNUALREPORT 2010 — T — T F FE H & 17
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Business Units Performance
The contribution and performance by each business segment of the
Group is set out as the following table.

EBE MR

e —

\"|

i\ uhmi

N

AEBEEBOHMNERMRRBENRTE °

Year-on-year

2010 2009 Rate
—E-=F —ETNF BREBEE
HK$’000 HK$'000 %
F#ET FHET

Open foundry mERT

Segment turnover DERE R 1,204,234 964,572 24.8%

Segment profit (loss) SEGHEF (EE) 135,878 (170,534) 179.7%
IC design ERRBIERE

Segment turnover DERE R 647,246 589,210 9.8%

Segment profit oy awal 36,284 11,475 216.2%
IC testing & packaging SRR TR K&

Segment turnover HEDE ¥ 831,644 625,561 32.9%

Segment profit (loss) SERHEF (EE) 31,710 (17,003) 286.5%
Discrete devices DR

Segment turnover DEREEEEE 1,105,733 795,250 39.0%

Segment profit 758 ) 146,664 43,459 237.5%
Supporting function SRR

Segment turnover DEbE R 85,350 62,288 37.0%

Segment profit 73 &R F 9,531 19,876 (52.0%)

CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED # JH #8 & + B IR A
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Research and Development

The Group continuously invests in its research and development to
maintain its competitive power. During 2010, the Group’s research and
development expenses increased by 15.8% to 225.00 million, which
represented 5.8% of our turnover. The research and development
efforts were primarily focused on the mainstream consumer electronics
market as well as the booming energy-saving and green lighting
markets. The Company highly appreciates employees’ contribution
and endeavour to the company technology development. A total of 56
technology projects were awarded in the annual technology citation
meeting of the Company in 2010. During the year, the Group has filed
264 patent applications to authorities.

Investment in Fab 2

Fab 2 has finished its phase one construction and capacity installation.
lts manufacturing capacity has reached 30,000 8-inch wafers per
month in December 2010 and set up reliable quality assurance and
manufacturing management system. Fab 2 successfully extended
its processing geometry into 0.18 pm and several products started
mass-production Fab 2’s main market focuses includes automobile
electronics, green power and LED display.

Employees

Employees are always the most valuable assess to the Group. As at
31 December 2010, the Group had 7,751 employees, of which 65%
hold college or graduate degrees. The Group has maintained a good
working relationship with its employees over the year.

The Group has also adopted effective measures to enhance the
organizational structure and consolidate the manpower. To support its
strategic development in energy saving and environmental protection
application markets, the Group continues to invest in technologies
research and development by launching talents recruitment campaigns
in 2010. The Group maintains a highly professional and devoted team
and is ready to grasp future business opportunities.

e
AEBBEETHEREURBEBRFEN - B
—E-TF . ASERHERRXIEINISE8%E
2.2500187C ' R R EEEM5.8% ° HEHEE
EEPEFREESTMISUREDEROETEE
R ERATS - AARERRHEE AR A
MERAELNERRE N - RAQRRIH=Z—
SEFERMEREZAEG L LB56IERITIER B
BB FAR - AEEDMBEBIPIIRR264HE
FERzE -

el 3 0 F
THEERE-—HRRIERERALE R _F
—ZEF+Z A ZHmHEFDEDS A30,000
F8ET&HE  WERVUAEMNEERIFRZE
BB o —HMEKNTEHENITEEZE0.181K
K AETERCHBEE - —BHEINEEM
HEREAEE T KR KRLEDERT

]
BERAKSEZREENEE - BE_ZT—ZTF
TZA=t—R AKEEEFEE7,751%  HF
B5%HM BB B KB HIA LB - FRANEEE
BE-—BERFZERMBRE -

AEBTRFAEBCEBER  EAABRIEFA
BB o ABCA RETRE IR IR IE A T 15 1O SRS 1
BR AEER _ZT-TFEREBERENRIMH
% BEBRHARATHELRE AEEAFE X
BEEXNBLORENINER - LB EHFEER
REVFEHE o

CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED 2 # # & F A [R 2 7] ANNUALREPORT 2010 — & — T F F E H &

-



20

Report from Chief Executive Officer

B E#HIT

wEE

Employees (Cont’d)

The management has successfully leveraged on the strengths of
both local Chinese employees and international expertise. The Group
also prides itself for its track record of recruiting and developing local
managerial, technical, and operating personnel. Currently above 99%
of the Group’s staff are citizens of the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”), including the majority of its managers.

The Group makes contributions to publicly or privately administered
pension insurance plans on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary
basis. Employer’s pension cost charged to profit or loss was HK$83.38
million in the year ended 31 December 2010.

Prospects for the year 2011

Recently, the Chinese State Council announced new stimulus policies
to boost the development of the software and IC industries, which
are believed to further stimulate the Chinese semiconductor industry
growth.
the Chinese government also strived to facilitate the development
of Seven Strategic Industries such as alternative energies, energy-
saving and environmentally friendly technologies, etc. This favourable
environment will help drive the growing demands for green lighting,
power management and power devices. The Group continuously
focuses on relevant analog technologies development and capacity
optimization to serve its customers in power management, green

In the beginning of the Chinese Twelfth Five-Year Plan,

lighting, communication and automotive markets and develops
its business to better satisfy market demands, by utilizing its
comprehensive and synergetic capabilities in IC design, open foundry,
testing and packaging, as well as discrete devices.

Appreciation

| would like to express my deepest gratitude to our management team
and staff members for their unfailing hard work and dedication. We
would continue to operate and develop our business so as to enhance
our values of the shareholders, employees and customers.

Elvis DENG Mao-song
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 22 March 2011
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWRE DM

The following table shows certain information relating to Group’s IRZJIFEAEEBE_T—TF+_HA=+
results of operations for the two years ended 31 December 2010, as — HIEMEFENKLLRENE T ER - ZFE&
extracted from the audited consolidated financial statements of the — #tJi¥&k 8 RHK TR a M HEK -

same period:

For the year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=t—-HLEE

Year-on-year

2010 2009 _Rate
—E-EF —TThE BEEEE
HK$’000 %  HK$'000 % %
FExT FHET
(restated)
(&)
Turnover R 3,874,207 100.0 3,036,881 100.0 27.6
Cost of sales SHERAR (2,901,244) (74.9) (2,485,078) (81.8) 16.7
Gross profit EH 972,963 25.1 551,803 18.2 76.3
Operating expenses: BEMY
Other income/gains and losses ﬁfﬁl”ﬂ{)\/”ﬁlﬁ?’i
RIE18 147,579 3.8 186,364 6.1 (20.8)
Selling and distribution expenses iﬁ_/%&%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ (101,098) (2.6) (84,972) (2.8) 19.0
Administrative expenses THEHR (371,427) (9.6) (324,546) (10.7) 14.4
Research and MER
development expenses Eﬂ%%‘%ﬁﬁ (225,004) (5.8)  (194,231) 6.4) 15.8
Other operating expenses _leééi it (79,816) (2.1) (69,482) 2.3) 14.9
Finance costs RERAE (23,332) (0.6)  (43,747) 1.4) (46.7)
Impairment loss on EH%EH%?QQE’U
available-for-sale investment REEE - - (190,000 (6.3) (100.0)
Profit (loss) before taxation BrBiRTER (F51E) 319,865 8.3  (168,811) (5.6) 289.5
Taxation I (40,317) (1.0) (13,566) (0.4) 197.2
Profit (loss) for the year KEEREF (BE) 279,548 7.2 (182,377) (6.0) 253.3
Attributable to: AT BTG
Owners of the Company ERABFEBA 272,364 7.0  (172,2006) (5.7) 258.2
Non-controlling interests FEIE R 7,184 0.2 (10,171) (0.3) 170.6
Dividend declared and paid EEIR& MRS = -
Earnings (loss) per share FREF (BE)
- basic (HK cents) — 2R (B) 3.13 (2.35) 233.2
- diluted (HK cents) —#58 (B1) 3.13 (2.35) 233.2
Operating Data REHE
Depreciation and amortisation fﬁ% N 84 551,180 514,165 7.2
Capital expenditure EARMAE 487,272 153,168 217.2

CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED 2 )8 i & F & B & A
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWmE DM

Turnover

Turnover increased by 27.6% to HK$3,874.21 million in 2010 from
HK$3,036.88 million in 2009. The increase was due mainly to the
increase in sales orders with the semiconductor business recovery
and improved demands in China market since the second quarter of

2009.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales principally consists of:

- depreciation;

- direct materials;

- manufacturing overhead, including utilities, spare parts, repair
and maintenance, rent, and indirect labor; and

- direct labor, including salaries for employees directly involved

in manufacturing activities.

Cost of sales increased by 16.7% to HK$2,901.24 million in 2010 from
HK$2,485.08 million in 2009. The increase in cost of sales in the year

was primarily due to the increase in sales volume.

BHE

EEREHR T T N F #I30.368818 /B It 15 1N
27.6%%FE — T —TEM3B7421BB T - xR
FERAR - TENFEFTERV ESEEBER
ARFPERAMIGHERKIGM - SFTEHEIE AT
@(o

HERE
HERARTERLE

— =B

- BEER BREKE TR #i&4
& HEMEEAL: K

-  EHEEATL BREERNFREIINESR
MFE

HEKA R =TT NFM24.8508(8 78 L K
16.7%%E —F —FHFM29.0124(8 8 T - FRH
ERAEMERBHRHEREIAE -

CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED # B # & + & R 2 7] ANNUAL REPORT 2010 T EFEFERSE



Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWmETMH

Gross Profit

Gross profit increased by 76.3% to HK$972.96 million in 2010 from
HK$551.80 million in 2009. Moreover, gross margin increased to
25.1% from 18.2% in previous year, due mainly to the continuous
improvement in product and process mix as well as the increase in
capacity utilisation rates with the industry recovery since the second
quarter of 2009.

The capacity utilisation rates in each of open foundry, discrete
devices and IC testing and packaging sectors were around 91%,
85% and 88% respectively in 2010, compared to 75%, 64% and 74%

respectively in 2009.

EBITDA

The Group’s EBITDA in 2010 amounted to HK$894.38 million,
representing an increase of 129.9% compared with HK$389.10 million
in 2009. The increase of EBITDA was due mainly to the increase in
profit generated.

Profit for the Year

The Group reported net profit of HK$279.55 million for the year ended
31 December 2010, compared to net loss of HK$182.38 million in the
previous year. The increase of profit was due mainly to the increase in
gross profit by 76.3%, whereas the operating expenses only increased
by 15.5% in the same period. In addition, the Group suffered loss on
suspension of production in the first quarter of 2009 and impairment
loss on available-for-sale investment, i.e. the investment in CSMC Asia
Limited (“CSMC Asia”) in 2009.

CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED # B 1 & + & R A
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWmE DM

Depreciation and Amortisation

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and amortisation of
intangible assets included in cost of sales, selling and distribution

rEe R e

FPABHERAS HERDHER TRERURK
MALREZRNDE - BERREHTEAR

expenses, administrative expenses and research and development {EZEER ST ¢
expenses are as follows:
2010 2009
—E-EF —ETAEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHET
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BB MEREITE 545,485 508,990
Amortisation of technical know-how R E A A A 8 1,360 814
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments T TR
on land use rights Gitle Ao s 4,335 4,361
Taxation BiIE
The details of taxation charged to profit or loss for the two years ended REBE-T—ZF+-A=+—HILMEFEN
31 December 2010 are as follows: BaxANGROBIEFEROT ¢
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETAF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FET
The taxation charge comprises: HEZHeE:
Current taxation BIHATH I8
PRC =8 56,742 22,718
Hong Kong aBE 204 24
Under (over) provision in prior year BEFERETR (BEERE) 1,316 (1,060)
58,262 21,682
PRC withholding tax H B TR 1,692 -
Deferred taxation IRIERIA (19,637) (8,116)
40,317 13,566

Profits tax arising in the PRC is calculated based on the applicable
tax rates on assessable profits. The relevant tax rates for the Group’s
subsidiaries in the PRC for both years range from 15% to 25%.

CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED # B # & + & R 2 7] ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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Taxation (Cont’d)

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise Income
Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of EIT Law, the
domestic tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January
2008 onwards.

Certain subsidiaries have obtained approval from the relevant tax
bureau and are qualified as High and New Technology Enterprise
which would be subject to a tax rate of 15% for both years.

In addition, certain subsidiaries operating in the Mainland China were
exempted from tax applicable in the PRC for two years starting from
2008 and were granted a 50% relief for the following three years.

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for both years.

Dividends

A final dividend of 0.5 HK cent per share totalling HK$43,948,000
(2009: Nil) has been proposed by the directors and is subject to
approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

No dividend has been declared or paid during the current year (2009:
Nil).

BIE (48)
RFBSPEARKMBEEEMBEOR) ([REMF
BOR]) RAEEMEBPABRARD - - BB
RAIE —TEN\F— A — BRRR25%H B R MM
BIATK -

HANBATC AABHEREREIE - Lo
BB SHEMAE AT R EFH15%H
SER -

AN BETRAESENHNBERARE —TTN\F
EMERNERCERERANTRELEMEN - X
MER=F A ERR50%TRBELEMFH -

EEMERDIEAF R EFEHERB SR8
16.5%5F &

ixB

EECRBERAHMREFROSEA - HKE
43048EBBTIT (ZTTNF  B)  HAFKRR
REEBRITHRRBFEAE EHESAEE -

RAFERESRIKBETARE (ZFETA
FE) -
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRE DM

Earnings (loss) per Share BEREN (5E)
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share is &FRERKEERF (FI8) JHER N7 EUE
based on the following data: Ci
2010 2009
—g-8% —ZTAS
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Earnings (loss) for the purposes of calculating M ESREARAREERT
basic and diluted earnings per share msEmEF (FE) 272,364 (172,206)

Number of ordinary shares

ZEREA
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETAEF
Weighted average number of ordinary shares FRERTE BARE R BT
for the purposes of calculating basic (E518) m kLB
earnings (loss) per share ("000) B (Ti) 8,689,479 7,327,644
Effect of dilutive potential shares BEEERNOTE
Share options — Equity Incentive Plan ('000) AR — IRt ZEETE (F1m) 1,402 -
Share options — Share Option Scheme ('000) BBk RE — IR E (F1D) 220 -
Weighted average number of ordinary shares REsTEEREERT
for the purposes of calculating diluted (B18) B9INFE 15Tk
earnings (loss) per share ('000) #E (T 8,691,101 7,327,644
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Earnings (loss) per Share (Cont’d)

Diluted loss per share for the year ended 31 December 2009 did not
assume the exercise of the share options because inclusion of the
share options in calculation of diluted loss per share would result in
decrease in loss per share.

The weighted average number of shares shown above has been
arrived at after deducting 100,000,000 shares (2009: 100,000,000)
held by restricted share award scheme trust of the Company and
accounted for by the Group as treasury shares held by the Group.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As at 31 December 2010, the Group’s cash on hand was HK$1,271.97
million, representing an increase of HK$50.88 million compared with
that of 31 December 2009. Among the cash balances, 59.3%, 25.4%
and 15.1% were denominated in Renminbi, Hong Kong dollars and
United States dollars respectively.

The table below sets forth the cashflow of the Group for the two years
ended 31 December 2010, as well as the cash and cash equivalents
at the end of each of the two years:

sikEM (BR) (&)
BE_ZTZNF+A=+—HLEFENTRE
BERYTERTERRE  RRAARFTEER
BEERRABRESERERERRD -

EXFREMEFEAROE R IHEMBREAARAF
#Y BRIl 1 A% 1 22 Eh =t 815 5£4%5 B #9100,000,000
& (ZZZ 4 : 100,000,0000% ) f% 17 =5
BERAEBIIEAEEFEFRD

RBEERELER
R_ZT—ZTF+-_A=+—HB AEEFERS
B2 7T197EB T R—ZEENF+_A=+—
HiZ 05,0888 7L c LIRS ERFEF  59.3%AA
RUEEFTE - 25.4%AB AT E K15 1% AE TTE
=

TRITAEEBE_Z-ZTF+_HA=+—H
LIREFENRSRERZMEFESFRAR
T RREEFEY

2010 2009

—E2-ZF —EThEF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FTHET FHET

Net cash generated from operating activities KEEFELNIR S FE 787,099 648,660

Net cash used in investing activities HEEEEARE S IFEE (562,498) (392,486)

Net cash (used in) generated from financing activities BEEE (FTH) 3R & 35 (180,101) 106,842

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents Re MRS EEWHILINFERE 44,500 363,016

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes GNEE[E RS R A 6,380 1,196

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year FReRESEED 1,221,089 856,877

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FRREGRESZED 1,271,969 1,221,089
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Indebtedness
The borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2010 and 2009 were
as follows:

&%
AEBHZE T ZFEN _FTTAF+_A=+
—HMEENT

2010 2009
—E-FF —EENF
HK$’°000 HK$’'000
FET FAET
(restated)
=5
Secured bank loans BHEBIRITIER 25,773 88,961
Unsecured bank loans A IRIRITIE N 1,778,039 2,013,574
Less: Amount due within one year shown W ORBABEE TN —F
under current liabilities NI E 2 3B (853,812) (1,127,535)
Amount due after one year shown as FRBEEET—FE
non-current liabilities BIEf 2 5108 950,000 975,000

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had total bank borrowings of
HK$1,803.81 million, of which HK$353.81 million was short-term in
nature which carried interest at rates ranging from 0.89% to 1.64% per
annum and HK$500.00 million was repayable within two to three years
from 31 December 2010 but contained a repayment on demand clause
(shown under current liabilities) which carried interest rates ranging
from 1.08% to 1.13% per annum. The long-term portion of HK$950.00
million carried interest at rates of 0.89% to 1.34% per annum and was
repayable within 3 years. Bank borrowing of HK$975.00 million, with
maturity date in March 2012, was guaranteed by CRH. Furthermore,
CRH is required to remain as a majority beneficial owner of the issued
share capital of the Company and shall maintain its management
control over the Company under the terms of the loan facilities
agreements. Among the Group’s bank borrowings, 1.4%, 98.4% and
0.2% were denominated in Renminbi, Hong Kong dollars and United
States dollars respectively.
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18.038118/8 7T - E H3.53811E % 7T 58 HA
RITIERBRENENF0.89EE1.64FEFE °
AN E—ZEF+ A=+ —HERME=FRNE
BURESRERERKINSEETL (RRBAE
BB TAR) BRFMNENF1.08EE1.13EET
B REIRITEFOSEBLIZFFR0.89EE
1.34E+ 8 BZAR=FREE - FBHAA-ZT
—ZF =AM TSERBTRITEREER (£
E) REER - N BEBEERBRERZOIE
FoEH(EE) BADARRRBEEITRANE
EEREAEA  WEAEBERBSHAAANERE
fl e EASKBERRBITHERT - 1.4%AARERT
B - 98.4%ABTTEHENO0.2%AZETEHE ©
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Capital Expenditures

The Group requires capital to build, expand, upgrade and maintain
its production facilities and equipment. The Group incurred capital
expenditure of HK$487.27 million in 2010, mainly including HK$122.07
million spent on upgrading 6-inch wafer fabrication lines, HK$108.60
million on construction of IC testing and packaging facilities, HK$183.13
million on discrete device manufacture and the rest on construction of
supporting and other facilities.

The Group will continue to implement its prudent capital management
policy and optimize the allocation of its capital resources.

Charge of Assets

As at 31 December 2010, certain Group’s assets with carrying values
of HK$39.35 million were pledged with banks to secure certain
banking facilities.

Commitments and Contingent Liabilities
(a) Capital commitments
As at 31 December 2010 and 2009, the Group had the following

significant capital commitments:

=¢: Nk

mﬁlﬁﬁé%ﬁ%w@* S BT RARGEELE
BEREE  AEER T —TSFNELRHAIR
4.8727BETT - HEZRBBE1.2207E A TH
A RGHE T BB AEELR + 1.086018 7% T A M
EEREEAG REERME - 1.8313EBTAR
AUBRMEE R TRIBRIARERETERHA

AEBRSBENTERNEAFIHE  AE—
TEBAERDE °

AEHT

R-B—BE+-A=1—0  AEEHHEH
853,035/ 7 7T 00 E B B 4R IR T R 1T DL
FRITIEE -

RRRAAE M

(a) EAEIE
RoF-FER-FEAS+-A=+—
B AEEHEAEAREMT -

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—H
2010 2009
=t “TTNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TAERT FHET

Capital expenditure in respect of acquisition of property, BREEDE BEL
plant and equipment HHEMERRL

Authorised but not contracted for EREERETH 388,291 247,071
Contracted but not provided for EHEEE L] 97,509 68,207
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As at 31 December 2010 and 2009, the Group had commitments RZBE—ZEFER_FTTNFTA=1T—
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable H- KE@E’JTTE‘H#‘“%W‘EZ’JI@TE’]*X
operating leases which fall due as follows: RERSHREEDT :

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+-—H
2010 2009
—E-ZF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Within one year —F R 3,415 5,525
In the second to E_EFERTF
fifth year inclusive (BEEEWST) 533 2,072
3,948 7,597
During the year, the Group has provided corporate guarantees FR - AEED AHEEEEFTHGHNITY
for the down payment of loans of its employees amounting to 50,000/ T (=— & Z A, £ : 606,000/ 7T)
approximately HK$50,000 (2009: HK$606,000). The management EHARER - BEEEME L ERETE
anticipates that no material liabilities will be arising from the above EXTFEEAEE -
guarantees.
Save as disclosed above, the Group does not have any other Br EXFTIREE & AN+ A5 [ I AT {A] E B K
commitments or contingent liabilities. EEABE -
Legal Liabilities EREE

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the Company was not involved #HZEZ-_Z—ZTF+_A=+—HILFE ' &~AQ 7
in any material litigation or arbitration and no material litigation or claim I &35 K {F{A] & KeFzAsk & - Bt AR &P
was pending or threatened or made against the Company as far as 40 - JRfE(F ] MR T &t A AR EEAFA
the Company is aware of. R °
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Basis of Preparation and Changes in Presentation and
Reclassification

In prior years, the Group presented the government grants as other
income in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
During the year, the management changed the presentation of the
government grants relating to the expenses as a deduction of the
related items for which they are intended to compensate.

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements
— Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause (“HK-Int 5”) clarifies that term loans
that include a clause that gives the lender the unconditional right to
call the loans at any time (‘repayment on demand clause’) should be
classified by the borrower as current liabilities. The Group has applied
HK-Int 5 for the first time in 2010. HK-Int 5 requires retrospective
application. In order to comply with the requirements set out in HK-
Int 5, the Group has changed its accounting policy on classification
of term loans with a repayment on demand clause. In the past, the
classification of such term loans were determined based on the agreed
scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements. Under HK-
Int 5, term loans with a repayment on demand clause are classified
as current liabilities.

The adoption of the other HKFRSs has had no material effect on how
the results and financial position of the Group for the current or prior
accounting periods have been prepared and presented.
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Basis of Preparation and Changes in Presentation and
Reclassification (Cont’d)

Except for the paragraphs 25 to 27 of HKAS 24 (Revised) “Related
party disclosure” exempting certain disclosures in relation to the
government-related entities, the Group has not early applied the new
and revised Standards, Amendments or Interpretations that have been
issued but are not yet effective.

The details are set out in note 2 and 3 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Going Concern

On the basis of current financial projections of facilities available, the
Group has adequate financial resources to continue its operation
for the foreseeable future. For this reason, the going concern basis
continues to be adopted in preparing the financial statements.

Foreign Exchange Risk Management

The Group undertakes certain sales and purchases transactions
denominated in foreign currencies, hence exposures to exchange
rate fluctuation arises. The Group manages its foreign currency risk
by closely monitoring the movement of the foreign currency rate. The
Group and its subsidiaries are mainly exposed to currency fluctuation
of United States dollars and RMB. The management believes that,
considering the working capital position of the Group, the Group will
have sufficient foreign exchange to meet its foreign exchange liabilities
as they become due. It is the Group’s policy not to enter into derivative
transactions for speculative purpose.

Commodity Price Risk Management

Gold is one of the principal raw materials of the Group’s IC Testing
& Packaging business. In second half of the year, the Group entered
into gold future contracts traded on the Shanghai Gold Exchange to
hedge its exposure against gold price fluctuation and recorded an
increase in fair value of future contracts of HK$2.05 million (2009: Nil).
No outstanding gold future contract is held by the Group as at the
end of the reporting period. It is the Group’s policy not to enter into
derivative transactions for speculative purpose.
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Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2010, the gearing ratio, calculated as net
borrowings divided by total equity was 14.3%, compared with 26.5%
as at 31 December 2009.

Other Significant Matters

On 28 December 2010, the extraordinary general meeting of the
Company approved a proposal regarding an intra-group lending
arrangement between members of China Resources group. The
arrangement, through the master lending agreements which take
effective from 1 January 2011, will give the Company greater flexibility
in the management of its surplus cash resources by enabling it to lend
a portion of its surplus cash resources and those of its subsidiaries to
other China Resources Group companies, including China Resources
Co., Limited and CRH, through the operation of the master lending
agreements. Any advance will only be used by the borrower as short-
term working capital, which is not a substitution for fulfilling the capital
expenditure or long term financing. The annual caps for the maximum
aggregate amount which can be lent at any time from the Group
have been determined by the Company after assessing the maximum
amount of exposure at any time which it is prepared to assume under
the master lending agreements in the context of the Company’s
estimated temporarily surplus cash resources. The annual caps for the
three years ending 31 December 2013 are HK$300 million, HK$350
million and HK$400 million, respectively.
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HONG KONG CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

Save as disclosed below, for the year ended 31 December 2010, the
Company complied with the Code on Corporate Governance Practice
(the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”).

The then Chairman of the Board, Mr. SONG Lin did not attend the
Annual General Meeting on 2 June 2010 due to other crucial business
on that date which required his attention. Mr. Song was aware the
above deviation from the provision E.1.2 of the Code which stipulates
that the Chairman should attend the annual general meeting of the
Company and had arranged the then Vice Chairman, Dr. Peter CHEN
Cheng-yu to attend the Annual General Meeting. The Chairpersons of
Audit, Remuneration and Nomination Committees also attended the
AGM. The Company considers that their presence was sufficient for
(i) answering questions from and (i) ensuring effective communication
with shareholders present at the AGM.

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer of a listed issuer should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. With effect from 4 June 2010, Mr.
SONG Lin has resigned as an executive Director and the Chairman of
the Board of the Company in order to concentrate on overall strategies
and business of CRH as its Chairman, and Mr. WANG Guoping, an
Executive Director and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company,
was appointed as the Chairman of the Board effective on the same
date. The Board decided that Mr. WANG would continue to hold the
office of Chief Executive Officer of the Company notwithstanding his
appointment as Chairman, while the Company was processing the
appointment of the successor of Chief Executive Officer. Accordingly,
Mr. WANG Guoping held the offices of Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company from 4 June to 24 August 2010. On 24 August,
the Board has appointed Mr. Elvis DENG Mao-song as the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company with effect from the conclusion of
the meeting of the Board held on 24 August 2010.
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HONG KONG CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES (Cont’d)

Code provision E.1.3 stipulates that notice of an annual general
meeting to shareholders of a listed issuer should be sent at least 20
clear business days before the meeting. The Company sent notice of
its annual general meeting held on 2 June 2010 to its shareholders
on 10 May 2010, which was less than 20 clear business days before
the meeting. Though the Company was unable to comply with the
foregoing code provision, the requirement of the Company’s articles
of association to give not less than 21 clear days notice for the annual
general meeting was complied with.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS OF LISTED ISSUERS

The Company has adopted Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules. The Company has made specific enquiry to all
Directors, and all Directors have confirmed that, for the year ended 31
December 2010, they have complied with required standard of dealing
set out in the Model Code.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company recognizes its responsibilities to shareholders and aims
to protect and enhance shareholders’ value through proper corporate
governance. The Group is committed to ensuring transparent, open
and accountable disclosures.

The Board continuously upholds the appropriate standards of corporate
governance within the Group, thereby ensuring that the business is
conducted in an honest, ethical and responsible manner.

The Board understands its responsibility to prepare the financial
statements, the annual and interim reports in a balanced manner.
This similar responsibility extends to include other price-sensitive
announcements and other financial disclosures under the Listing
Rules. The Board will also report to regulators any information which
is required to be disclosed pursuant to the statutory requirements.
The statement of the auditors’ about their reporting responsibility on
the financial statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report
on pages 84 to 86.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at 31 December 2010, the Board consists of twelve Directors,
including the Chairman of the Board, two of whom are Executive
Directors and members of the management. There are ten Non-
Executive Directors, of whom five are Independent Non-Executive
Directors. The Board benefits from the experience and expertise of
each Director. All Board members understand their duties to make
decisions objectively in the interests of the Company.

The Board’s primary role is to protect and enhance long-term
shareholders’ value. It sets the overall strategy for the Group, ensures
effective management and provides proper supervision of the Group’s
business conduct.

The Board is responsible both for how the Company is managed
and the Company’s strategic development. Approval of the Board
is required for the strategies of the Group, annual budget, major
acquisition and disposal, dividend policy, appointment and retirement
of Directors, remuneration policy and other major operational and
financial matters. Day-to-day operations of the Group are the
responsibility of the Company’s management.

On 16 March 2011, each Independent Non-Executive Director has
provided a written statement confirming of his/her independence to
the Company pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considered that each Independent Non-Executive Director continues
to be independent.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Cont’d) BEEF (/
As of 31 December 2010, the members of the Board of Directors #HZE—_ZT—Z+_FA=+—H ' —ZT—ZTFE=E
2010 are: FENER:
Date Elected Period

Name Title Or Re-elected of Term  Date First Elected
®E B EZESEERD 25 HEZMEAHY
WANG Guoping Chairman/Executive Director 2 June 2010 3 years 1 September 2006
FET IR/ WOES —T-ZERAZH =4 ZERENA—R
Elvis DENG Mao-song  Chief Executive Officer/Executive Director 24 August 2010 3 years 24 August 2010
ilJ3a/N BRHITE HTES —T-ZFN\AZ+HEH =% —T-ZFN\AZ+HEH
Peter CHEN Cheng-yu  Non-Executive Director 26 June 2009 3 years 28 January 2003
BRIEF FHITER —TTAFRAZTRA =% I =t WA=
DU Wenmin Non-Executive Director 2 June 2010 3 years 20 March 2008
HXE FMTESE —E-ZTFRAZH =% —ETN\F=RA-+H
SHI Shanbo Non-Executive Director 24 August 2010 3 years 24 August 2010
REE FMITES —Z-ZFN\AZ+WAE = —Z-ZF\AZ+WAE
WEI Bin Non-Executive Director 24 August 2010 3 years 24 August 2010
B FHMITES —Z-TF/\AZ+WA = —E-TFN\AZ+EH
ZHANG Haipeng Non-Executive Director 24 August 2010 3 years 24 August 2010
KBS FHiTES —E-ZFE/\AZ+WA = —E-ZF/\AZ+WA
OON Kum Loon Independent Non-Executive Director 28 May 2008 3 years 8 May 2004
neE BUFRITES ZTENFRAZTNRH = —ZEMERANA
Ralph Sytze YBEMA Independent Non-Executive Director 26 June 2009 3 years 8 May 2004

BIUFHTES —ZEEAEASAZTARA = —ZTEMFRANR
KO Ping Keung Independent Non-Executive Director 2 June 2010 3 years 20 March 2008
BRR BUFRITES —T-ZTFRAZH = —EENF=AZTH
LUK Chi Cheong Independent Non-Executive Director 24 August 2010 3 years 24 August 2010
Erg= BUFRITES —Z-ZTF\AZ+WA = —Z-TFN\AZ+@EA
WONG Tak Shing Independent Non-Executive Director 24 August 2010 3 years 24 August 2010
5B BUFRITES —E-ZFN\AZ+WH = —E-ZFEN\AZ+WH
Note: BfaE -

The term of office of each Director, including Independent Non-Executive
Director, is for a period of three years subject to the requirement that one-
third of the Directors shall retire from office by rotation at each annual general
meeting pursuant to the Articles 95 and 112 of Article of Association of
the Company. Mr. WANG Guoping, Dr. Peter CHEN Cheng-yu, Mrs. OON
Kum Loon and Mr. Ralph Sytze YBEMA will retire at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. Mr. WANG Guoping and Dr. Peter CHEN Cheng-yu will offer
themselves for re-election, whereas Mrs. OON Kum Loon and Mr. Ralph Sytze
YBEMA will not ofter themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. Mr. Elvis DENG Mao-song, Mr. SHI Shanbo, Mr. WEI Bin,

Dr. ZHANG Haipeng, Mr. LUK Chi Cheong and Mr. WONG Tak Shing will be
re-elected at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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TXERRSE

BOARD MEETINGS AND BOARD COMMITTEES MEETINGS

The attendance of Directors in Board meetings and Board committees

meetings during the year 2010 are as follows:

N_Z—TF EEMNEELLHANEFTZEERL
FEEMT

Audit Remuneration Nomination
Committee Committee Committee

Board meetings meetings meetings meetings
EREES FMEES REZES
Name ®E BExge g8 a3 =
WANG Guoping FEF 7 4
Elvis DENG Mao-song B 1
Peter CHEN Cheng-yu BRIEF 7 3 4
DU Wenmin xR 3 1
SHI Shanbo AEE 1 1
WEI Bin ot -
ZHANG Haipeng SRS 1
OON Kum Loon BeE 6 4 3 4
Ralph Sytze YBEMA Ralph Sytze YBEMA 6 3 4 4
KO Ping Keung SE T 6 5
LUK Chi Cheong zdi= 1 1 1
WONG Tak Shing =5k 1 1 1
SONG Lin R -
ZHU Jinkun NG 2
JIANG Wei e 1
LI Fuzuo FhrEtF 2
Frank LAl Ni Hium Bk 5
Total number of —E-EFEN
meetings held in 2010 Mg EKE 7 4 4 5

2010.

Mr. SONG Lin resigned as Executive Director of the Company and
Chairman of the Board with effect from 4 June 2010. Mr. ZHU Jinkun,
Mr. JIANG Wei, Mr. LI Fuzuo and Mr. Frank LAl Ni Hium resigned as Non-
Executive Directors of the Company with effect from the conclusion of
the meeting of the board of directors of the Company held on 24 August

Y ARMELEBEARFANTEEREFSIE
BZ-ZFNANBRER - KREMWMELE - &
BEE  FRELCERBLGERECBEERLDA
FATESF  BEARAR_Z-ZFNA=+ME
ARTHNESSSHRARREN -
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TRERMSE

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chairman is responsible for formulating and setting Group
strategies and policies in conjunction with the Board and for
ensuring that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at
board meetings and that all Directors receive complete and reliable
information in a timely manner. The Chief Executive Officer carries
out the strategic initiatives and decisions made by the Board, and is
in charge of the Company’s day to day management. Save as that
Mr. WANG Guoping performed both roles from 4 June to 24 August
2010, while the Company was processing the appointment of the
successor of Chief Executive Officer, the roles of the Chairman and
the Chief Executive Officer are separate and not performed by the
same individual.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the letters of appointment of the Non-Executive Directors
(including the Independent Non-Executive Directors), the term of
appointment for each of them is for a term of three years commencing

from the date of appointment.
The functions of Non-Executive Directors include the following:

° participating in board meetings of the Company to bring an
independent judgment to bear on issues of strategy, policy,
performance, accountability, resources, key appointments and
standards of conduct;

° serving on the audit, remuneration and nomination committees;
and

e scrutinising the Group’s performance in achieving agreed

corporate goals and objectives, and monitoring the reporting of
performance.
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TRERBRSE

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The primary aim of the Remuneration Committee is to formulate
transparent procedures for developing remuneration policies and
compensation packages for the employees of the Group. The
Remuneration Committee is also entrusted to adopt appropriate staff
development and retention policies.

The member of the Remuneration Committee for the year 2010 are
set out on page 7 of this Annual Report.

The primary roles of the Remuneration Committee as delegated by
the Board are as follow:

e  Torecommend to the Board on the Group’s policy and structure
for all remuneration of the Directors, senior management and other
employees of the Group by the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing policy on such remuneration
matters;

e To determine the specific remuneration packages of all executive
directors and senior management;

e To review and approve performance-based remuneration by
reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board
from time to time;

e To consider other relevant matters as referred to it by the
Board.

The Remuneration Committee met four times in 2010 to review
and approve the Directors and senior management’s remuneration
packages.
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TRERMSE

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The member of the Nomination Committee for the year 2010 are set
out on page 8 of this Annual Report.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for considering any
nominations of new members to the Board and makes recommendations
to the Board after a due consideration to the candidate’s background
and experience. The Board will ultimately decide on appointment.

The primary roles of Nomination Committee as delegated by the Board
are as follow:

e To review the structure, size and composition of the Board on
a regular basis and to make recommendations to the Board
regarding any proposed changes;

e To identify individuals suitable and qualified to become Board
members and to make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

e To assess the independence of Independent Non-Executive
Directors, having regard to the requirements under the Listing
Rules; and

e To make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors in particular, the Chairman and
the Executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee met five times in 2010 to discuss the
composition of the Board, selection of the Chief Executive Officer and
make recommendations to the Board.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The member of the Audit Committee for the year 2010 are set out on
page 7 of this Annual Report.

The primary roles of Audit Committee as delegated by the Board are
as follows:

° Review financial statements and formal announcements relating
to financial performance, and review significant financial reporting
judgments contained in them. Review audit plans and reports
of the external auditors and internal auditors, and consider the
effectiveness of actions or policies taken by Management on the
recommendations and observations. Review the independence
and objectivity of the external auditors annually. Review the nature
and extent of non-audit services performed by the auditors;

° Make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor and approve
the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external

auditor;

e  Meet with external auditors and internal auditors, without the
presence of Management, at least annually;

° Ensure that the internal audit function is adequately resourced and
has appropriate standing within the Company at least annually;

° Review interested person transactions;

e  The Committee shall report to the Board on material matters,
findings and recommendations;

e |nvestigate any matters within the Audit Committee’s purview,
whenever it deems necessary; and

° Perform such other functions as the Board may determine.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Cont’d)

The Audit Committee met four times in 2010. Every year, the
Committee meets with the Group’s external auditors to discuss the
annual/interim audit plan before the audit commences, considers
the issues arising from the audit process, reviews the annual/interim
report, and subsequently reports its recommendations to the Board
for further review and approval. The Audit Committee also regularly
reviews the effectiveness of the Company’s financial controls, internal
control systems, and risk management system. The Audit Committee
reviews and approves the annual internal audit plan on a risk-
assessment basis and assesses whether they are in line with the
Group’s business risks.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The Group re-appointed Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as independent
auditor for the year 2010. The remuneration paid to Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu in 2010 includes:

D

A J ] " i el '*".i_-!»'* Sl

runy”
EXESE (8)
BERZBEN_ZT-TFERTHRER - BKE

Be8FNEXMARINERNKEINSZBM SR
WmEE PHERTE  EEERBRETEL
BRRE - REFE T EWE - WRREERASE
BREEREFSUHE-—TERRLE - BX
ZESNEREHAR AP BIESH - RBEPEHIFR
mEkEREERGNR S - BERE B GRAR

HEERMH MAAEFEABEZE - WA AR
ERBEASEEBRBRAF o

S EMEN =

AEBEEREH M= %E FHERTTAR=E
FENBIZHEM R - —FF S'iﬁ%fﬁ

2 o BEMRT 5T E‘J@H% 2ECE

Service Remuneration Type (Audit Service/Non-Audit)
PR %% e BRIl (BB FERE)

2009 Annual Audit HK$3,000,000 Audit

—EENFFERH 3,000,000/ 7T ZE

2010 Annual Audit HK$400,000 Audit

—E-TFFERH 400,000/ 7T e

2010 Interim Review HK$650,000 Audit

—E-TFEREEH 650,000/ 7T e

Tax Service HK$49,200 Non-Audit

5 R 1% 49,2007 7T FERZEX
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INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board and management understand that proper internal controls
not only facilitate the effectiveness and efficiency of operations,
ensuring compliance with laws and regulations, but most importantly,
they serve to minimize risk exposure for the Group. The Group is
committed to the identification, monitoring and management of risks
associated with its business activities and has implemented practical
and effective control systems, including:

e A clearly defined organizational structure;

e  Budgeting and forecasting systems for performance measurement
and monitoring of strategic business units;

e  Regular reviews of financial performance.

The Board has the overall responsibility of maintaining an effective
internal control system and reviews the effectiveness of the system
of internal control of the Group. The Company’s internal controls
are enhanced by the work done by the Company’s Internal Audit
Department, which regularly carries out internal audit reviews and
reports its findings to the Audit Committee for their consideration and
guidance for improvement to the internal control system.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

During the year, the Group has proactively enhanced its corporate
transparency and communications with its shareholders and the
investment community through its annual and interim reports.
Constantly being updated in a timely manner, the Company
maintains its website at www.crmicro.com on which press releases,
announcements, circulars, notices and financial and other information

relating to the Company and its business are disclosed.
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Directors and Senior Management

EEEREEE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. WANG Guoping, aged 49, was appointed as an Executive
Director with effect from March 2008 and the Chairman of the
Company on 4 June 2010. Mr. Wang was the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company since March 2008 and resigned on 24 August 2010. He
is also a director of various subsidiaries of the Group. He has extensive
experience in semiconductor research & development, production
management, strategic planning and business development. Before
joining the Group, Mr. Wang served as the General Manager of China
Huajing Electronics Group Corporation, the largest Semiconductor
Manufacturers in the Mainland China. He is now the Vice President of
China Semiconductor Industry Association and the President of China
Semiconductor Industry Association Integrated Circuit Branch. Mr.
Wang obtained a Master Degree in Engineering from the University of
Electronic Science and Technology, Chengdu, China in 1986.

Mr. Elvis DENG Mao-song, aged 49, was appointed as an Executive
Director and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 24
August 2010. He was a Deputy General Manager of the Group since
March 2008 and the President of the CSMC, the foundry business of
the Group with effect from 1 July 2007. Mr. Deng was formerly an
Executive Director of the Company from July 2007 to March 2008.
Mr. DENG is also director of various subsidiaries of the Company.
Prior to joining the Group in August 2003, Mr. Deng was the co-
founder and Vice President of Resources and Strategy at Ardentec
Corporation in Taiwan and Liaison director for product development
and support of Vanguard International Semiconductor-America, in
California of the United States. He began his semiconductor career
at ERSO/ITRI in Taiwan from 1988. Mr. Deng has over 20 years
of experience in the semiconductor industry and has extensive
experiences in semiconductor industry and corporate management.
Mr. Deng graduated from National Chiao Tung University, Taiwan with
a Bachelor of Science in engineering degree and holds a Master of
Business Administration degree from the Management School of the
National Taiwan University.
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Directors and Senior Management

EEEREEE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Peter CHEN Cheng-yu, aged 72, was re-designated as a
Non-Executive Director and resigned from the Vice Chairman of
the Company on 24 August 2010. Dr. Chen was appointed as an
Executive Director of the Company since January 2003. Dr. Chen was
also the chairman of CSMC Technologies Corporation, the foundry
business of the Group, since 1998. Dr. Chen was the founder and
the former Chairman of Mosel and Mosel-Vitelic Inc. He was also the
founder of Crosslink Technology Partners and the former Chairman
of the board of directors of Abovenet. Dr. Chen has around 40 years
of experience in the semiconductor industry. Dr. Chen graduated with
a Bachelor of Science degree in Electrical Engineering in 1965 from
the National Taiwan University. He was awarded a Doctoral degree in
Electrical Engineering by Cornell University in 1971.

Mr. DU Wenmin, aged 47, was appointed as a Non-Executive
Director of the Company in March 2008. Mr. Du is currently Vice
President of, and the Chief Human Resources Officer of CRH. He is
also a Non-Executive Director of each of China Resources Enterprise,
Limited (“CRE”), China Resources Land Limited (“CR Land”), China
Resources Power Holdings Co. Ltd. (“CRP”), China Resources Cement
Holdings Limited (“CR Cement”) and China Resources Gas Group
Limited (“CR Gas”). Mr. Du has an MBA degree from the University of
San Francisco, USA.

Mr. SHI Shanbo, aged 45, was appointed as Non-Executive Director
of the Company on 24 August 2010. Mr. Shi is the Audit Director of
CRH. He has also been a Non-Executive Director of each of CRE,
CR Land and CRP. Mr. Shi worked as a Deputy General Manager of
Finance Department of CRH from December 2000 to April 2002 and
General Manager of China Resources Textiles (Holdings) Company
Limited from August 2006 to October 2009. He was also Vice Chairman
and General Manager of CR Cement from June 2003 to August 2006.
Mr. Shi holds a master’s degree in Economics by Dongbei University
of Finance and Economics. He joined CRH in 1991.
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Directors and Senior Management

EEEREEE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

Mr. WEI Bin, aged 41, was appointed as Non-Executive Director of
the Company on 24 August 2010. Mr. Wei is the General Manager
of Finance Department of CRH. He has also been a non-executive
Director of each of CRE, CR Land, CR Gas, CR Cement and CR
Power. Mr. Wei joined CRH in 2001. Mr. Wei was a director of
Shanghai Worldbest Industry Development Company Limited from
December 2006 to November 2007 and Shandong Donge E-jiao
Company Limited from June 2005 to June 2008, whose shares
are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange and Shenzhen Stock
Exchange in the PRC, respectively. Mr. Wei was also a director of
Shanghai Worldbest Company Limited (“SWCL”) from March 2007
to November 2007. SWCL had already been in significant financial
difficulty when Mr. Wei was appointed. Mr. Wei sat on the board of
SWCL as a representative from China Resources National Corporation,
the ultimate holding company of the Company, to assist with the
restructuring of SWCL. Mr. Wei resigned from his directorship in SWCL
as a result of the decision of China Resources National Corporation
to appoint another representative onto the board of SWCL. SWCL is
currently subject to bankruptcy proceedings in the PRC and is not
carrying on any business.

Dr. ZHANG Haipeng, aged 40, was appointed as Non-Executive
Director of the Company on 24 August 2010. Dr. Zhang is the Deputy
General Manager of Strategy Management Department of CRH. He
has also been a non-executive Director of each of CRE, CR Land and
CR Power. Prior to joining CRH, Dr. Zhang worked with McKinsey &
Company for 8 years and was a Partner of its Hong Kong Branch,
being responsible for the strategic planning, merger and acquisition,
organizational control, and operational management projects for multi-
national companies and domestic companies covering pharmaceutical,
petroleum, shipping, real estate and consumer industries. Dr. Zhang
also worked at China Merchants Holdings (International) Company
Limited as Director of Internal Control and Auditing. Dr. Zhang received
an MBA degree from Goizueta Business School, Emory University in
USA in 2000 and M.D. degree from Peking Union Medical College in
1998. Dr. ZHANG joined CRH in July 2009.
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Directors and Senior Management

EEEREEE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

Mrs. OON Kum Loon, aged 59, is an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company appointed on 8 May 2004. Mrs. Oon
graduated from the University of Singapore in 1973 with a Bachelor
of Business Administration degree. She was awarded the Esso
Scholarship during her tertiary education and completed her honours
degree in Business Administration at the University of Singapore
in 1974. Mrs. Oon has approximately 30 years’ experience in the
banking industry. Over this period, she led and managed a diverse
range of portfolios in DBS Group. Her extensive experience included
credit management, capital markets and risk management. She retired
from DBS as chief financial officer in 2003. Mrs. Oon is a director of
Keppel Corporation Limited, Singapore Power Limited, Keppel Land
Limited, Keppel Land China Pte Limited, SP PowerAssets Limited,
PowerGas Limited, Aviva Ltd, Aviva Life Insurance Company Limited
and Navigator Investment Services Ltd.

Mr. Ralph Sytze YBEMA, aged 44, is an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company appointed on 8 May 2004. Mr. Ybema
obtained an LLM in business law from the University of Leiden in
1990 and in 19983 gained certification as corporate counsel through
the Dutch bar exam equivalent for in-house counsel. Mr. Ybema was
part of the Corporate Legal Department at Royal Philips Electronics
N.V. of the Netherlands, focusing on its activities in the PRC. Mr.
Ybema was first assigned to Hong Kong in May 1995 where his brief
included Philips’ Asian and PRC Mergers & Acquisitions activities.
In 1997, Mr. Ybema joined US-based Global IT outsourcing giant
Computer Sciences Corporation (“CSC”) in 1997 as European Counsel
in London and in 2000 returned to Asia as General Counsel for
CSC’s Asia Group. He currently has an international corporate and
cross-border M&A practice which involves acting as Asia-Pacific
and China corporate counsel to major MNCs, a venture capital firm
as well as smaller clients in a variety of industries. Mr. Ybema is co-
founder and first (now immediate past) President of the Hong Kong
Corporate Counsel Association and was also a Founding Member of
the Singapore Corporate Counsel Association. He has served on the
Professional Services Advisory Committee of the Hong Kong Trade
Development Council and speaks seven languages including passable
Mandarin Chinese.
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Directors and Senior Management
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Cont’d)
Professor KO Ping Keung, aged 59, Professor Ko received his
Doctor of Philosophy Degree in Electrical Engineering and Computer
Science from the University of California at Berkeley. He was on the
faculty of the University of California at Berkeley from 1983 to 1993,
and served as the Dean of Engineering at the Hong Kong University
of Science and Technology from 1994 to 2001. For his contribution
to the development of device models used for IC design, Professor
Ko was awarded the 2002 |[EEE Solid-State Circuits Award by the
Institute of Electrical and Electronics Engineers. Professor Ko is also
an independent non-executive director of Henderson Investment
Limited and Henderson Land Development Company Limited, shares
of both companies are listed on the Stock Exchange. He was a former
Independent Non-Executive Director of China Resources Logic Limited
(resigned on 20 March 2008).

Mr. LUK Chi Cheong, aged 55, was appointed as Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company on 24 August 2010. Mr. Luk has
been an independent non-executive Director of CR Gas since January
2002. He is a practicing Certified Public Accountant in Hong Kong
and a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants,
United Kingdom. He has been in accounting practice since 1995 and
prior to that he has over 10 years of diversified experience in audit,
construction and airline industry.

Mr. WONG Tak Shing, aged 60, was appointed as Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company on 24 August 2010. Mr. Wong has
been an independent non-executive Director of CR Gas since 1998.
He was admitted as a solicitor of the Supreme Court of Hong Kong in
1984 and has been in private practice in Hong Kong for over 20 years.
From 1984 to 1987, he worked as an assistant solicitor with two local
law firms in Hong Kong before setting up his own practice in 1987.
He was appointed as a China-Appointed Attesting Officer with effect
from 18 January 2003. Mr. Wong holds a master’s degree in Laws
from the Peking University.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Dr. CHEN Nan-Xiang, aged 49, was appointed as a Deputy General
Manager of the Group in March 2008 with responsibilities for the
group-wide strategic planning and business development including
investment, M&A, and government technology grants. He joined
China Resources Microelectronics (Holding) Limited in November
2002 as director and deputy general manager. Dr. Chen was director
and general manager of Wuxi CR Semiconductor Wafers & Chips
Ltd. during the period of 2004 to March 2008, and also an Non-
Executive Director of the Company during the period of 2003 to
the March 2008. Prior to joining the China Resources Group in
November 2002, Dr. Chen had ever worked in turn with the Supertex
Inc located in Sunnyvale, California (1995-2002) as senior staff of
technology development, the Max Planck Institute for Microstructures
in Germany (1994-1995) as senior visiting scientist; the Fraunhofer
Institute of Integrated Circuits in Germany (1992-1994) as research
fellow and visiting professor; and the Institute of Microelectronics,
Dept. of Computer Science and Technology of the Peking University
(1989-1992) as associate professor. Dr. Chen had published over 35
technical papers. Mr. Chen received a Bachelor Degree of EE from the
University of Electronic Science and Technology, Chengdu in 1982,
Master Degree of EE from Shaanxi Microelectronics Institute in 1985
and a PhD of Physics from Beijing Normal University in 1989. Dr. Chen
has been a vice deputy secretary-general of Semiconductor Industry
Association in China in charge of international affairs since 2008, and
a chairman of IP Task Force of World Semiconductor Council (WSC)
for the period of 2009-2010.

Mr. ZHAO Jian-Kun, aged 44, was appointed as a Deputy General
Manager of the Group and General Manager of Wuxi China Resources
Semico Co., Ltd, which is engaged in IC design business. He joined
the China Huajing Electronics Group Corporation in 1989 and has
extensive experience in managing IC and discrete devices operations.
Mr. Zhao holds a Master Degree from the University of Electronic
Science and Technology, Chengdu in 1989.
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Directors and Senior Management
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

Mr. ZHANG Xiao-Jian, aged 49, was appointed as a Deputy General
Manager of the Group in March 2008. Mr. Zhang has been appointed
as the General Manager of Wuxi CR Micro-Assemb Tech. Ltd.,
which is engaged in IC packaging and testing business. He joined
the China Huajing Electronics Group Corporation in 1979 and has
extensive experience in managing IC and discrete devices packaging
operations. Mr. Zhang holds a degree majoring in IC Processing from
the Vocational College owned by the affiliated enterprise of the Institute
of Ministry of Electronic Industries in 1984, and attended an advanced
course of Administration Management at the Remin University of China
from 2000 to 2002 and obtained his Master of Business Administration
Degree from the Barrington University, the USA in 2004.

Mr. MA Wei-Qing, aged 45, was appointed as a Deputy General
Manager of the Group in March 2008 and is also the General Manager
of Wuxi China Resources Huajing Microelectronics Co., Ltd. Mr. Ma
has been involved in semiconductor’s research & development since
he joined the China Huajing Electronics Group Corporation in 1987 and
has extensive experience in manufacturing and business management
of Integrated Circuits and Discrete Devices. Mr. Ma holds a Bachelor
Degree in Physics with major in Semiconductor from the Nanjing
University in 1987 and a Master of Business Administration degree
from the Hong Kong Business Administration College in 2006.

Mr. PENG Qing, aged 39, was appointed as the Deputy Chief
Financial Officer of the Company in October 2008 and re-designated
as an Assistant General Manager of the Company in August 2009
with responsibilities for the Company’s accounting and treasury.
Mr. Peng joined CRH in August 1994. He has worked at China
Resources Microelectronics (Holdings) Limited as the Financial
Manager, China Resources Logic Limited as the Financial Manager,
and China Resources Microelectronics Limited as the accounting
Director of Finance & Treasury Division. Mr. Peng graduated from
the Hangzhou Institute of Commerce with the major in Accounting
and held a Bachelor degree in Accounting in 1994. He was awarded
a Certificate of Completion in Business and Administration from the
People’s University of China in 2005. Since graduation, he has gained
extensive experience in financial, tax administration management in
Hong Kong and PRC companies.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

Mr. Daily KANG Bin, aged 34, was appointed as an Assistant General
Manager of the Company in August 2009 with responsibilities for the
Company’s capital market, legal and listing affairs management. Mr.
Kang joined CSMC Technologies Corporation in 2005 as the Senior
Director of Finance. Mr. Kang graduated from Fudan University and
held a Bachelor degree in Economics in 1998 and a Master of Business
Administration (International) Degree from the University of Hong Kong
in 2010. He worked at one of the most famous accounting firms for
many years and was the former financial controller of a US OTCBB
listed company. Mr. Kang gained extensive experience in financial
management, risk management, internal control and listing affairs.

Mr. Tim NGAN Siu Hung, aged 35, was appointed as the Company
Secretary and Authorised Representative of the Company with effect
from 1 June 2009. Mr. NGAN joined the Group in March 2008 as
Accounting Manager and acted as Senior Accounting Manager
from October 2008 until present. Prior to joining the Group, he was
the Accounting Manager of China Resources Gas responsible for
overseeing the accounting and financial reporting matters. Mr. NGAN
has over 10 years of experience in accounting, financial control
and corporate finance. Mr. NGAN obtained a Bachelor’s degree in
Accountancy from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 1997
and is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants.
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Report of the Directors

EETHRES

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are pleased to submit
their report together with the audited consolidated financial statements
for the Group for the year ended 31 December 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities of
the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements. The Company with its subsidiaries is a leading
manufacturer in the development and operation of semiconductor
business in Mainland China. Its business covers open foundry, IC
design, IC testing and packaging as well as discrete devices.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by geographical
segments is set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results and appropriations of the Group are set out in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on pages 87 to 88
to this Annual Report.

A final dividend of 0.5 HK cent per share totalling HK$43,948,000
has been proposed by the directors and is subject to approval by
the shareholders in the forthcoming annual general meeting. The final
dividend will be distributed on or about 30 June 2011 to shareholders
whose names appear on the Register of Members of the Company
on 24 June 2011. Such final dividend will not be subject to any
withholding tax in Hong Kong.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from Monday,
20 June 2011 to Friday, 24 June 2011, both days inclusive, during
which period no transfer of shares of the Company will be effected.
In order to qualify for the final dividend and attendance at the annual
general meeting, all transfers accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Share Registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited Shops 1712-
1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 17 June 2011.
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SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the movements in share capital and share options of the
company during the year are set out in note 31 and note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Company and of the Group during
the year are set out on page 91 to this Annual Report.

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December 2010 amounted
to HK$2,456.74 million (2009: HK$2,504.06 million).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no pre-emptive or similar rights under the Cayman Islands
law or the memorandum and articles of association of the Company
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata
basis to its existing shareholders.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 91 of this Annual
Report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Company or its
subsidiaries did not purchase, sale or redeem shares of the Company
or its subsidiaries respectively.
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Report of the Directors

EETHRES

DIRECTORS

A summary of the Directors during the year is set out on pages 5 to
6 of this Annual Report.

In accordance with Article 95 and 112 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Elvis Deng Mao-song, Dr. Peter Chen Cheng-yu, Mr.
Shi Shanbo, Mr. Wei Bin, Dr. Zhang Haipeng, Mr. Luk Chi Cheong
and Mr. Wong Tak Shing will be elected at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

Mrs. OON Kum Loon, Mr. Ralph Sytze YBEMA, Professor KO
Ping Keung, Mr. LUK Chi Cheong and Mr. WONG Tak Shing are
Independent Non-Executive Directors. On 16 March 2011, each
Independent Non-Executive Director has provided a written statement
confirming of her/his independence to the Company. The Company
considered that each Independent Non-Executive Director continues
to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Executive Director has entered into a service contract with
the Company for an initial term of three years which shall continue
thereafter unless and until the Company or the Director serves a written
notice of termination three months in advance during the term of the
agreement or anytime thereafter. Particulars of the service contracts of
the Directors are in all material respects the same. The compensation
of the Executive Directors is subject to review each year.

None of the Non-Executive Directors (including the Independent Non-
Executive Directors) has entered into any service contract with the
Company. Pursuant to the letters of appointment of the Non-Executive
Directors (including the Independent Non-Executive Directors), the
term of appointment of each of such Directors is for three years
commencing from the date of appointment. The Company and Mrs.
OON Kum Loon subsequently agree that her appointment may be
terminated with immediate effect by either party.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election has a service agreement
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries, which is not determinable
within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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DIRECTORS REMUNERATIONS

The emolument payable to each Executive Director is based on (i)
his relevant qualifications experience and expertise, (ii) his duties and
responsibilities and (i) performance of the Company. The current
market situation will also be taken into account.

The emolument payable to each Non-Executive Director (including
Independent Non-Executive Director) is based on the responsibilities
and undertaking to the Board.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out in note 13 to
the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company, its holding company or any other subsidiaries
was a party, and in which any Director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly subsisted at any time during the
year ended 31 December 2010.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of Directors and senior management are set out
on pages 45 to 52 of this Annual Report.
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DIRECTORS’ AND KEY EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2010, the Directors, the Chief Executive Officer
of the Company and their respective associates had the following
interests and short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which had to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which he
was taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO)
or which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO to be
entered in the register of the Company referred to therein or which
were required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Companies contained in the Listing Rules, to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange:

A: Interests in Issued Ordinary Shares and Underlying

Shares of the Company

(@) Shares of the Company allocated to the Directors under
the Equity Incentive Plan, Share Option Scheme and
Restricted Share Award Scheme
As at 31 December 2010, there is no outstanding shares
allocated but not exercised to directors and their respective
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) under the Equity
Incentive Plan, Share Option Scheme and Restricted Share
Award Scheme. No options were granted to the directors
during 2010 under the Equity Incentive Plan, Share Option
Scheme and Restricted Share Award Scheme.

= .
-E:*-i---n--—-----------------.-

k. WA

ESREIETHAERESFOER

RZE—ZTF+_A=+—H ARAEF - H
FERTERESS BHBE AR AR R R EH A
FE (ERREBHRBABKOIEXVED) B9kt
RN SESPIHFEREE S RIEKRHIEXY
HE7HEsD HMAEMEARNT KB (BIER
BEHFRIAE GO EBRTERRASIBIRER
BRER AR JRIBEES KB KHIF352
BBEAZGH AN AR R ELMA SR E
FTRAFEN ETARESETELRR ZINEZ
ESFRIESK - BAE AR B KR TR S K%
BT

A: REATEBETEERRZMERMRGER

(a) REBERHEBETE - BRETBIRRF
MRORBABIETFESHNEAQAAR
i)
RZZE—TF+-A=+—H TER
BRI S2EDRT &) - RE AR RT & SRR FI1E
Petn B2EAH B ES MRS HEMNBE
A(EZREWRA) DEECHTER
RITEBBND - R-F—FF » WER
RR) BB ET 8] - BAEST & IR B
P fn B2 AT B T EE B AE -
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Report of the Directors

EEEHES

DIRECTORS’ AND KEY EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN EERFTETHAEREHMES (8)

SECURITIES (Cont’d)

A: Interests in Issued Ordinary Shares and Underlying A: REATERHTEERREFHAKGOES
Shares of the Company (Cont’d) (4)
As at 31 December 2010, particulars of shares held by R-TB—ZFF+-_A=1+—HB EFK
Directors and their respective associates (as defined in the FEZEBNBEA (ERR LEHHRAD
Listing Rules), directly and indirectly, were as follows: HEIEEFAENOROFBOT
Approximate
percentage
of interest
Long or in the Company
Capacity short position  Shares held RAERA TR
Director o =27) HRHKRE iR 5 MENE 2
Mr. WANG Guoping TEIFEE  Beneficial owner Long position 9,589,872 0.11%
EnEAA HE
Mr. Elvis DENG Mao-song BiEM%E4d  Beneficial owner  Long position 6,797,812 0.08%
ExEBA He
Dr. Peter CHEN Cheng-yu FRIEFE+  Beneficial owner Long position 39,623,200 0.45%
EnfEBA e
Mr. DU Wenmin MXR%E4E  Beneficial owner Long position 1,458,000 0.02%
E=EAA HE
Professor KO Ping Keung BRBHIKZ  Beneficial owner Long position 458 0.00%
EREBA HE
Mr. LUK Chi Cheong FERE4E  Beneficial owner Long position 1,165,912 0.01%
ERBEBA e
Total @zt 58,635,254 0.67%
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LINBERANMN

DIRECTORS’ AND KEY EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN EERITIETHASNEHAMERS (&)
SECURITIES (Cont’d)

B: Interests in Issued Ordinary Shares and Underlying B: MREEATIETEERRBRMBRGHERS
Shares of Associated Corporations
Interest in issued ordinary shares and share options granted under RARRBE AR EHAZEDETERRE
the share option schemes of CRE, an associated corporation of BIEE E%Hﬁ%?riﬂ&tﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂgqﬂ HIfER ©
the Company.

Aggregate
percentage
of interest
as at
31 December
2010'
»
—E-ZF§
No. of  Exercise =y
Name of Long or No. of share price Date of =t—Hi
Director Capacity short position shares options  per share grant A
ESpg g4 FERKAE BROBE BREHE SRIEE R AH BOH!
Mr. DU Wenmin Beneficial owner  Long position 100,000 - - - 0.004%
HXREE ERBEAA 59)
Notes: FHEE :
1. This represents the percentage of aggregate long position in 1. WARZZ—ZEF+-A=+—HHARBAEE
ordinary shares and underlying shares of CRE to the total issued A B R AR D B EFENEEA
share capital of CRE as at 31 December 2010. ¥EETRABENESL
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Report of the Directors

EEEHES

DIRECTORS’ AND KEY EXECUTIVES’
SECURITIES (Cont’d)

INTERESTS IN EERFETBAENREHMNER (8)

B: RMEMEAEERTEERRMEMRHER
(&)
RARBBERRERENSHRITEBBR K
RIFEBRAET SR WBRETER -

B: Interests in Issued Ordinary Shares and Underlying
Shares of Associated Corporations (Cont'd)
Interest in issued ordinary shares and share options granted under
the share option schemes of CRP, an associated corporation of
the Company.

Aggregate
percentage
of interest
as at

31 December

2010!
i
—2-%%
No.of  Exercise t=A
Name of Long or No. of share price Dateof =1—HH#H
Director Capacity short position shares options  per share grant A
Y L) FEIKE RPEE BREZE BRITEE R B Aok
Mr. WANG Guoping  Beneficial owner  Long position 328,000 - - - 0.007%
TEY¥EE 62 2PN e
Mr. DU Wenmin Beneficial owner  Long position 297,000 183,240 2.75  12/11/20032 0.010%
HXREE 63/ 2PN e
Mr. SHI Shanbo Beneficial owner  Long position 500,000 - - - 0.011%
AEERE R Z-DN 553
Notes: BMiaE
1. This represents the percentage of aggregate long position in 1. WARZZE-—ZF+_RA=1+—HFMFAE
ordinary shares and underlying shares of CRP to the total issued HEN LB RABRMDITEBELERE
share capital of CRP as at 31 December 2010. NEEITRABENE DL °
2. The exercisable period is divided into 5 tranches, exercisable during 2. 1Mo AREHRE - -_ZTNF - —_F
the periods from 6 October 2004, 2005, 2006, 2007 and 2008 to TRF - ZFTERF - ZTTLFRZTT
5 October 2013. NFE+ARBRE-ZZT—=F+AAAIH
fA] °
3. In each case, HK$1.00 is payable upon acceptance of the share 3. REBERT  BREMFEROERERS

options granted. £11.00% 7T -
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B

DIRECTORS’ AND KEY EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES (Cont’d)

B: Interests in Issued Ordinary Shares and Underlying
Shares of Associated Corporations (Cont’d)
Interest in issued ordinary shares and share options granted
under the share option schemes of CR Land, an associated
corporation of the Company.

------

ESRIETHAERESFOES (F)

B: REEZEATCHTEERRMERRNIER

(%)

RARBMERREBEHESHTEBRR
RIBEBRET SR BT AR -

Aggregate
percentage
of interest
as at

31 December

2010!

i

—E-Ef§

No. of  Exercise =y

Name of Long or No. of share price Date of =t—Hi

Director Capacity short position shares options  per share grant ERAE

EENE =27) HERKXE BOEE BREHE SRITEE b=l Bat

Mr. DU Wenmin Beneficial owner  Long position 790,000 250,000 1.23  01/06/2005° 0.019%

X REE ExRBEEA HE

Mr. SHI Shanbo Beneficial owner  Long position 140,000 - - - 0.003%

AEBEE EnlEEA e

Notes: P EE -

1. This represents the percentage of aggregate long position in 1. WARZE—ZF+_A=1+—HFMFAEE
ordinary shares and underlying shares of CR Land to the total HEMEERLEERD TS RELERE
issued share capital of CR Land as at 31 December 2010. WMEBEITRAEENE DL -

2. The exercisable period is divided into 4 tranches, exercisable during 2. 1IFEHH AWEEHRE - AR RF -
the periods from 1 June 2006, 2007, 2008 and 2009 to 31 May ZTEELF ZEENFRZZETNFRA
2015. —BEREZZ-AFRA=T—B L8R

fiE o
3. In each case, HK$1.00 is payable upon acceptance of the share 3. RBBRT  EREMERNDBRERS

options granted.

£11.005 7T °
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Report of the Directors

EEEHES

DIRECTORS’ AND KEY EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN EERFTETHASNESOES (8)

SECURITIES (Cont’d)

B: Interests in Issued Ordinary Shares and Underlying B: MNEiZEATICRTEERRBREEKRGIER
Shares of Associated Corporations (Cont’d) (48)
Interest in issued ordinary shares and share options granted RAQABERREBRRREZTERER L
under the share option schemes of CR Gas, an associated RIEEEREEIR N EREP R

corporation of the Company.

Aggregate
percentage
of interest
as at
31 December
2010°
®n
—2-Ef
No.of  Exercise t=A
Name of Long or No. of share price Date of =+—H#i
Director Capacity short position shares options  per share grant BERAE
BEEME 5% HRERE BOHE BREHE SROTEE RHLEH B!
Mr. Wang Guoping ~ Beneficial owner  Long position 40,000 - - - 0.002%
FEIFEE ERABAA 1A
Mr. Elvis Deng Beneficial owner  Long position 8,000 - - - 0.000%
Mao-song
HRREE BREBA e
Mr. DU Wenmin Beneficial owner  Long position 54,000 - - - 0.003%
HXREE ERHEAA e
Mr. Shi Shanbo Beneficial owner  Long position 50,000 - - - 0.003%
REBESE ESHEBA e
Mr. Wong Beneficial owner  Long position 80,000 - - - 0.004%
Tak Shing
Bl b ExBEAA HE
Notes: BMiaE -
1. This represents the percentage of aggregate long position in 1. WARZZE—ZF+_A=1+—HFMFAE

MR ERR AR TR B -

ordinary shares and underlying shares of CR Gas to the total issued
share capital of CR Gas as at 31 December 2010.
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Report of
EEEHR %

DIRECTORS’ AND KEY EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN EERITIETHASNEHAMERS (&)

SECURITIES (Cont’d)

B: REtZASERT
(%)
RARBBERAREBKEEHTEBRR
RIBEBRET SR BT AR -

B: Interests in Issued Ordinary Shares and Underlying & 558 B R 4R R A 1) RO HE 2
Shares of Associated Corporations (Cont’d)

Interest in issued ordinary shares and share options granted
under the share option schemes of CR Cement, an associated

corporation of the Company.

Aggregate
percentage
of interest
as at

31 December

20101
»n
—2-2F
No. of  Exercise =y
Name of Long or No. of share price Date of =t—Hi
Director Capacity short position shares options  per share grant ERAE
ESpg % FRRKA ROHE BREHE BSROEE RHBH BAL!
Mr. Wang Guoping ~ Beneficial owner  Long position 120,000 - - - 0.002%
TRTEEE EREAA e
Mr. Elvis Deng Beneficial owner  Long position 50,000 - - - 0.001%
Mao-song
HRmREE EHEAA 1A
Mr. Shi Shanbo Beneficial owner  Long position 280,000 - - - 0.004%
REELE ERBEEA A
Notes: KIEE :
1. This represents the percentage of aggregate long position in 1. WARZZE—ZEF+_A=+—HFHFE

IO BB A M ARRI AR 0 4F B AR RR (G R K
EEBEITRALENADL -

ordinary shares and underlying shares of CR Cement to the total
issued share capital of CR Cement as at 31 December 2010.
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Report of the Directors
EEEHRFE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS OF THE
COMPANY

So far as known to the Directors of the Company, as at 31 December
2010, shareholders (other than Directors or Chief Executive Officer
of the Company) who had interest or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under section 336 of the SFO, or which are expected
to be, directly or indirectly, interested or deemed to be interested in
5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying
rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of the Company,
were as follows:

FERFERAAEMER

BARRESEAH R-T—TF+_A=+—
B RARARMIAABEBROT  HEHEREZES
KB GBIEXVERH 2 K 30 RE IR SRR AR
AIWBENEDIORR  IFEBARAREZEZ M
HAE (B £ 33615 P17 B BV & RC T M P RC 81 i 1
BIORR - AR ERNEREE IR L
EMARMNREMBER TERRBRRAE L&
SHEAEBIRANEES %A FRRER (TEHE
ARRNESHEFENTE) BdmT :

Percentage of

Aggregate Long

Position in

Shares to the

Total Issued

Share Capital of

the Company

Number BERGIFRELE

Company Name of Shares EARATERIT
AEEH BoHE RABEES L
China Resources National R AN R0

Corporation® (“CRN”) ([FREEZEEE]) 5,326,855,822 60.60%
China Resources Co., Limited™ EHRMDBRARO

(“CRCL”) (TEERA]) 5,326,855,822 60.60%
CRC Bluesky Limited™ CRC Bluesky Limited™®

(“CRC Bluesky”) ([CRC Bluesky]) 5,326,855,822 60.60%
CRH® #£H(EE) 5,326,855,822 60.60%
Gold Touch Enterprises Inc.® Gold Touch Enterprises Inc.®

(“Gold Touch”) (Gold Touch ) 5,326,850,822 60.60%
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EEEgHRFE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS OF THE
COMPANY (Cont’d)

Notes:

1. CRN is a state owned enterprise which is the parent company of CRCL, a
company incorporated in the PRC, which in turn is the parent company of
CRC Bluesky, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, which
is in turn the parent company of CRH, a company incorporated in Hong
Kong. CRN, CRCL and CRC Bluesky each is deemed to be interested in
the 5,326,855,822 shares held by CRH.

2.  Gold Touch and Commotra Company Limited each directly held
5,326,850,822 shares and 5,000 shares in CR Micro as at 31 December
2010. Gold Touch and Commotra Company Limited are wholly owned
subsidiaries of CRH, therefore CRH is deemed to own 5,326,855,822
shares of CR Micro as at 31 December 2010.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save the consultancy agreement as disclosed under the paragraph
headed “Directors’ Interest in Contracts", no contracts concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part
of the business of the Company were entered into or existed during
the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the aggregate turnover
attributable to the five largest customers accounted for were less than
20% of the Group’s total turnover.

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the aggregate purchases
attributable to the five largest suppliers accounted for were less than
20% of the Group’s total purchases.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders (which to
the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) has any interest in any of the Group’s five largest
customers or suppliers.

FERRNAFABMER ()

B &E -

1. FEEHABRAELE AEBHAR (RPEHZE
MK/ AR) BE AR % H2AF ACRC
Bluesky (EF R B R ZESEMAZIH AR &
B AF * CRC Bluesky&E M (£ E) (REEF
MRZEAE) AR - FEER - EHQAF
NMCRC Blueskyt &8 AR EE (£E) FiFEEN
5,326,855,822 % ik tn e B # # o

2. R-ZZ—ZF+-A=+—H" Gold TouchX&
Commotra Company Limited& B &HE D RlE4E
# 4 {8 ¥ 15,326,850,822/% % {5 15,0000% %
3 ° Gold Touch}Commotra Company Limited
HRER(EE) WE2EWBALAR Bt EH
(5B BRIEVR-_Z—ZTF+-_A=+—H#A
MM E T #5,326,855,822 ik (5 ©

EEEHN
REXTEFTRANMER] —BRMRENER

BN - FA - WEIT I RFEERSRARE
BN EHAEMEALANERNITHEEN
8K -

FEEFRRMUER
RBE-T-—ZFTF+_A=+—HLFE"
k%ﬁ[ﬁfﬁ%%@%%a\/ﬁé$§%@%@%%%ﬁﬁ’\]
20% -
RBE-Z-ZF+_A=+t—BLFE AKX

ﬁ%ﬁ’éﬁﬁ’éﬁﬁ’ﬂw%ﬁﬁgﬁéBéﬁ%lw%ﬁﬁgﬁﬁ’\]
20% ©

BMEESE RENBEALHEFBR LES
FRAER RN RBIS%IA LRA) RAKBERAKREP
St ER A TR -
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Report of the Directors

EEEHES

BANK LOANS

Details of bank loans are set out in note 26 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

SHARE RELATED INCENTIVE PLANS

(1) Equity Incentive Plan
The Company adopted the Equity Incentive Plan (the “Plan”) on
8 May 2004 by way of ordinary resolution of shareholders. The
principle terms of the Plan, total plan amount as well as current
status is as follows:

The objective of the plan is to share the pride of ownership
among employees and to reward their performance and
contributions.

The eligible participants of the Plan is any full time employee
of the Company or of any subsidiary and any Executive,
Non-Executive or Independent Non-Executive Directors
of the Company or of any subsidiary provided always that
such term shall exclude any person who has tendered his
resignation or who at the relevant time is working out his/
her period of notice pursuant to his/her employment contract
or otherwise.

The Remuneration Committee, comprising Mr. WONG Tak
Shing (Chairman), Ralph Sytze YBEMA and Mr. DU Wenmin,
has been delegated with the power to administer the Plan.
It will, among other things, approve (i) the total number
of shares (which number shall not exceed the total plan
amount mentioned in point (d)) to be allocated to eligible
participants of the Plan, and (ii) the respective entitlements of
the participants, in each case based on the recommendation
of the Executive Directors from time to time.

SRITHER

BRRTERNFEE  ENGaMERERME
26 °

Rz 43 8 Bh =t &l

(1) Bxi32EEhEHE|
RATERR AT RABRRATNIE - R
EEMERANBRMNRG REEE ([5F
gl - FrEIMEZEHK - FrEBERBEAMK
ST

AEMBENEREEDZHAE UL
e PIRRIR M BB 2R -

FEMAER2EE RARQRHEEM
MEARNEMNZBEERE RARAR
HAEAIMEARMEAAITES Ik
TEFLBIUIFATES - EAREIRK
YT BRECEHINERRERERE
)3l B A AR AR AT BB BB A HR RO R A
+o

AARINEMEE S (BEBBELE
(XJE)  Ralph Sytze YBEMA% A K it
NRAEAENK) CERETEE - &
Bgitg (HPeE) #El)n Bt &
EER2EENRORE (TEBET
M()EFTI A EIBRE) 0 k()2 HE
WEMESE U ESEMmE - HEE
WITESTRRINER
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EEGHRES

SHARE RELATED INCENTIVE PLANS (Cont’d)

(1) Equity Incentive Plan (Cont’d)

(d)

Total plan amount and individual limit

Total number of Shares which may be allocated and issued
under the Plan shall not exceed 15% of the total number
of Shares in issue from time to time. The initial total plan
amount, as approved by the shareholders on 8 May 2004 by
way of ordinary resolution, is fixed at 246,900,000 shares.

Total number of Shares which may be issued pursuant to
the Plan in any financial year shall not exceed 3% of the total
number of Shares in issue as at the close of business on the
last business day of the preceding financial year.

Total number of Shares issued and to be issued to any
selected employees in any 12-month period shall not exceed
1% of the total number of Shares in issue.

Allocating and vesting of the shares under the Plan
Among the total plan amount, as at 31 December 2010, a
collective of 160,162,294 shares had already been allocated
to the eligible participants by the Company and are subject
to a four-year vesting period in which a quarter of such
number of shares will vest each year during the four-year
period. No amount is payable for acceptance of allocation
of shares by eligible participants and HK$0.078 per share is
payable by eligible participants for subsequent allotment of
shares so vested. As at the date of this Annual Report, the
total number of shares available for allocation under the Plan
is 86,737,706 which represent about 0.99% of the issued
share capital of the Company.

CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED # # # & + B R 2

R4y 88 BT 8 (&)
(1) IxfrEREHETEl (4)

(d)

(e)

ST B4 PR & {E Bl LR

RIRET ST 88 o B R BEITHIRR (D 4B 88 -
EAAKRETEEEEBITRGOBE
#15% - IRBERER—_ZTZTWHF R AN
HUERABRRA NI ENT LT 8142
RERE T £5246,900,000% i (5

WRIEE B R BERME B B R 1TV AR
DR TSEB L —EMRFERE
BERANAREERFEHITRMN A
#)3% ©

PAER =B A BEA R ER R E R E

BERITRBETOHRMNEH - TSHEE
BEITRD AR %
T8I R D B R
EitdlesET  REE_T-ZTF =

B=+—HBARREMAERLZEED

B2 ££160,162,294/% f 15 » % E1H =
HRUFRED  HESFEEERS
ﬁ&%ﬁm Z mhﬁoAéﬁﬂﬁ

m%ﬁﬂzﬁﬂﬂﬁo 078/%71: o %ﬁii&
Tlzzg e srEl T BEMRSG
%JWJ%M*E$AEE%ﬂh$m
0.99% °
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Report of the Directors

EEEHESE

SHARE RELATED INCENTIVE PLANS (Cont’d)

(1) Equity Incentive Plan (Cont’d)

Rt 2 BhT &I (&)
(1) Ixfr2REETEI (4)

Number of shares allocated

SEERGHE

Balances

as at 31

Balance Cancelled/  December

as at Lapsed 2010

Exercise  1January  Allocated  Exercised during Z=—E-EfF

Date price 2010 during during the year T=A

of grant per share Z=—ZE—EfF the year the year ERE =+-—H

RHBH SRTEE —A-B&H% FrREIR FrETE HEH AN 57

HKS$ '000 '000 '000 '000 '000

BT Fik FH& Fik Fik Tk

Management and ~ 01/10/2003 0.078 964 - 44 912

employees 26/01/2005 0.078 550 - 107 436

EEERESR 16/05/2006 0.078 384 - - - 384
Total

st 1,898 - 151 15 1,732

The weighted average closing price of the shares immediately
before the date on which the options were exercised was

HK$0.328.

The term of the Plan is for ten years from the date of
adoption (8 May 2004), subject to early termination by way
of ordinary resolution of the shareholders of the Company

in a general meeting.

EEEREBRETEBRRZAINRRRK
BRI (B A0.328/8 7T °

AEIHRERMEH (ZTTWFERA
NB) BRH+EF  BARRRKREAR

IRERARE AT BIRESR

stal -
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EEgHRES

SHARE RELATED INCENTIVE PLANS (Cont’d)

(1) Equity Incentive Plan (Cont’d)

(9)

Interested shareholders not entitled to vote

Interested shareholders must abstain from voting in any
general meeting of the Company where approval from
Shareholders is being sought for matters relating to the
Plan.

(2) Share Option Scheme
In addition to the Plan, the Company, as approved by its
shareholders on 27 May 2005 by way of ordinary resolution,
adopted Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme”). The principle

terms of the Scheme, total scheme amount as well as current

status are as follows:

(@)

Objective of the Scheme

The objective of the Scheme is to provide participants
with the opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in
the Company and to encourage participants to work
towards enhancing the value of the Company and its
shares for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders
as a whole. The Scheme provided the Company with a
flexible means of either retaining, incentivising, rewarding,
remunerating, compensating and/or providing benefits to
the participants.

Eligible participants of the Scheme

The eligible participants of the Scheme is any directors,
employees, advisors, consultants, distributors, contracts,
contract manufacturers, suppliers, agents, customers,
business partners, joint venture business partners, service
providers of any member of the Group who the Remuneration
Committee consider, in its sole discretion, have contributed
or will contribute to the Group.

CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED 2 H # & + B R 2

Rz 6y ER bt & (48)

(1) IxfrEREyEtEl (4)

() FARENWRREERE
SRR ER BT ENER - Rl
BRANKRRANRARBEARRERRE
EmEEE-

(2) FERRAESTE

BREt8ION  AABKBEERR —ZETRFAHA
:+":E|DA%@?&E§7REKHZIZIE © BRARFE A
fERTE ([BRERTE ) - BRERTENER
3R - AR Bl RRAA R T

(a) BRESTEHNEW
BRETENENEAN2RERHEE
ARRFEAEESOES - A RSB
28%E  BENAREREROEEN
BHTE  BERARFRERRERERN
& o B EARARRE-BE
TR REARE - BB BE - [
B wEk S SREENT2EE -

(b) BRESENSERSEE
BRETENEERSEERFNER

SEEMNBRAERREEIBHE /AL
EEREMOAL  BREAEEEEX
BRAFAMEMNES B8 - &#A - E

DR AERE - ABLEER - H#

e - R BF - BEREH
EXRBRBH MR HIER -
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EEEHES

SHARE RELATED INCENTIVE PLANS (Cont’d)

(2) Share Option Scheme (Cont’d)

The Remuneration Committee, comprising Mr. WONG Tak
Shing (Chairman), Ralph Sytze YBEMA and Mr. DU Wenmin,
has been delegated with the power to administer the
Scheme. It will, among other things, (i) consider, in its sole
discretion, the eligible participants (ii) approve the total
number of shares (which number shall not exceed the total
scheme amount) to be allocated to eligible participants of
the Scheme, and (iii) approve the respective entitlements of
the participants, in each case based on the recommendation
of the Executive Directors from time to time.

The overall limit on the number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and other share
option schemes of the Company and the shares which
may fall to be issued under the Plan in aggregate must not
exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time.

Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options
to be granted under this Scheme and other share option
schemes of the Company shall not exceed 10% of the
aggregate of the Shares in issue as at the date of approval
of the Scheme by shareholders.

Total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each participant in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total number
of Shares in issue.
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Report of the Directors

EETHRES

SHARE RELATED INCENTIVE PLANS (Cont’d)

(2) Share Option Scheme (Cont’d)

Among the total Scheme amount, as at 31 December 2010,
a collective of 15,954,648 shares had already been granted
to the eligible participants by the Company. HK$1 is payable
for acceptance of an offer of option. The subsequent price
for which share shall be no less than the higher of (i) the
closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotations
sheet issued be the Stock Exchange on the date of grants,
(i) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the
daily quotations sheet issued by the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately before the date of grant, and
(iii) the nominal value of a share. As at the date of this Annual
Report, the total number of shares available for allocation
under the Plan is 249,257,550 which represent about 2.84%
of the issued share capital of the Company.
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Number of shares granted

BRENRGOEHAE

Balances

as at 31

Balance Cancelled/  December

as at Lapsed 2010

Exercise 1 January Granted  Exercised during Z—ZE-Ef

Date price 2010 during during the year +=A

of grant per share Z—Z—ZfF the year the year ERE =+-H

R AH BROTEE —A-A&% ERCRE ERETE 38X e

HK$ '000 '000 '000 '000 '000

BT iR Fiz Fir TR Fix

Management and ~ 08/09/2006' 0.341 12,813 - - 1,266 11,547

employees

EEENESR 28/05/2007> 0.711 1,358 - - - 1,358
Total

st 14,171 - - 1,266 12,905

No shares were granted to the Directors during the year
ended 31 December 2010.

CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED # B 74 & + & [R A A

RBE-T-FF+-A=t—AL%
€ BEETEFEARD -

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 T-ZTEFEHRSE



72

Report of the Directors

EEEHES

SHARE RELATED INCENTIVE PLANS (Cont’d)

(2) Share Option Scheme (Cont’d)

Notes:

1. Share options granted under the Scheme in 8 September 2006
are subject to a four-year vesting period from the date of grant
in which a quarter of such number of share options will vest
each year during the four-year period.

2. Share options granted under the Scheme in 28 May 2007
are subject to one-year vesting period from the participant’s
employment starting date as approved by Remuneration
Committee.

The term of the Scheme is for ten years from the date of
adoption (27 May 2005), subject to early termination by way
of ordinary resolution of the shareholders of the Company
in a general meeting.

Interested shareholders must abstain from voting in any
general meeting of the Company where approval from
Shareholders is being sought for matters relating to the
Scheme.

(8) Restricted Share Award Scheme

The Company, as approved by the Board on 18 December 2008
(the “Adoption Date”), adopted the Restricted Share Award
Scheme (the “New Scheme”), pursuant to which existing shares
of the Company will be purchased by a trustee from the market
out of cash contributed by the Group and be held on trust for the
relevant employees until such shares are vested in accordance
with the rules of the New Scheme. The New Scheme does not
constitute a share option scheme pursuant to Chapter 17 of the
Listing Rules, but is a discretionary scheme of the Company. The
principle terms of the New Scheme, total scheme amount as well
as current status is as follows:
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EEGHRES

SHARE RELATED INCENTIVE PLANS (Cont’d)

(8) Restricted Share Award Scheme (Cont’d)

(@)

Objective of the New Scheme

The purpose of the Scheme is to recognise and motivate the
contribution of certain Employees and to provide incentives
and help the Group in retaining its existing Employees and
recruiting additional Employees and to provide them with a
direct economic interest in attaining the long-term business
objectives of the Company.

Eligible Participants of the New Scheme

The eligible participant of the New Scheme is any full-time
employee employed by any member of the Group (including
without limitation any executive and non-executive director
of any member of the Group).

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee, comprising Mr. WONG
Tak Shing (Chairman), Ralph Sytze YBEMA and Mr. DU
Wenmin, may, from time to time, at its absolute discretion
select the Selected Employee(s) (excluding any Excluded
Employee) after taking into account various factors as it
deems appropriate for participation in the Scheme as a
Selected Employee and determines the number of Restricted
Shares to be awarded.

Total Scheme Amount and Individual Limit

The Remuneration Committee shall not make any further
Award which will result in the aggregate number of Shares
awarded by the Board under the Scheme in excess of
2.5% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the
Adoption Date.

The maximum number of Restricted Shares which may be
awarded to a Selected Employee under the Scheme shall not
exceed 0.25% of the issued share capital of the Company
as at the Adoption Date.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHESE
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SHARE RELATED INCENTIVE PLANS (Cont’d)

(8) Restricted Share Award Scheme (Cont’d)

During the year ended 31 December 2010, no shares of
the Company were purchased. The shares prior purchased
and held by BOCI-Prudential Trustee Limited, the trustee
appointed by the Company to the New Scheme, represent
1.708% of the issued shares of the Company as of the
Adoption Date. There are no shares granted to the Directors
during the year ended 31 December 2010.

2

A E_T—ZTF+_A=+—HLHF
B BMERARRMDEEE - RIEEEK
HRREETERAR (RRARFRIET
BEZEMNZTEA) BABERIFANR
MEBEZERMABAR B BEITRDH
1.708% c REBE-ZT—ZTF+=-A=+
—HIFE  BERTESEAR®D -

if

Number of
Method of Shares Highest Lowest Aggregate
Purchase Purchased Price/Share Price/Share Consideration
BERE BENROHE EREEE SRSEE AIRE
HK$ HK$
BIT BT
Management and On the Stock 100,000,000 0.21 0.18 19,465,203
employees Exchange
ERENES TRBSERZ P

The term of the Scheme is for ten years from the Adoption
Date, unless sooner terminated as determined by the Board
of Directors by a 3 months prior notice.

The Trustee shall not exercise the voting rights in respect of
any Shares held under the Trust (including but not limited
to the Restricted Shares, the Returned Shares, any bonus
Shares and scrip Shares).
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Report of the Directors

EETHREE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group had the
following transactions, which would need to be disclosed as connected
transaction or continuing connected transactions in accordance with
the requirements of the Listing Rules.

1. The services agreement with Fab 2

On 30 April 2008, CSMC Technologies Corporation, an investment
holding company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands on
29 October 2007 and a wholly-owned subsidiary of CR Micro,
entered into a services agreement with Fab 2, in which CRH and
the Company indirectly holds 81% and 19% interest respectively.
Under the services agreement, CSMC Technologies Corporation
agrees to provide, and/or to procure its subsidiaries to provide,
certain supporting services to Fab 2 in relation to the setup
and operation of its 8 inch facility as well as certain general
administrative support. The service agreement took effective
from 30 April 2008 to 31 December 2010, which is a continuing
connected transaction to the Group.

The basis of the payment for services rendered under the services
agreement by Fab 2 will be 60% of the actual costs incurred
by the Group for the above functions on its foundry operations.
This percentage has been determined by the approximate
proportionate net asset value of Fab 2 and the other foundry
operations of the Group.

The annual caps for the three years ending 31 December 2010
are HK$90,000,000, HK$100,000,000 and HK$110,000,000,
respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2010 the aggregate transaction
amount for the above amounted to HK$101,698,384.
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EEEHESE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

2.

FERX S (&)

The tenancy agreement with China Resources Property 2. HERMYEETHAERATNEE RS
Management Limited

On 17 November 2008, CRM Management Services Limited RZZBZENF+—A+ER  Z=WEERS
(“CRM Management”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, ERAR ([EMEBER]D (RAAFKN—HE2E
entered into a tenancy agreement with China Resources Property B R) HEHEENEERREHDE
Management Limited (“CR Property”), an associate of CRH. ERERAR ([EBHWED T —HHEE
The tenancy agreement took effective from 17 November 2008 Wi - ZHEHBERE TN \FT+—A+L
to 31 March 2011. Under the agreement, CRM Management ARE-_T——F=HA=+T—HILBR - R
rent certain office premises from CR Property for its principal BahE EMERREEDERRSE T
place of business in Hong Kong. The terms of the transaction, NREYEEREABRBETEEEME - 3218
including the rent, were determined after arm’s length negotiations REGMEGER (BERS) DEEHFRAFHE
between the parties and after making reference to prevailing open WEKBRERITAAMSHEE RERYEEE
market rents and standard tenancy agreements entered into MBI HPEI L WFEEMEERRBETE ° %
by China Resources Property with other independent tenants. BERXHBARNRINFERER S -

The transaction is a continuing connected transaction to the

Company.

The annual caps for the three years ending 31 December REBEEZZE—ZEF+-_A=+—HI=1@
2010 are HK$2,140,000, HK$2,320,000 and HK$2,500,000, FEMFE LR 5 R /2,140,000 7T -
respectively. 2,320,000/ 7T % 2,500,000/8 7T °

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the aggregate transaction REBZE_Z—ZFTFT_A=1T—HIFE "
amount for the above amounted to HK$2,426,021. FRBER SRR 5 HEERE2,426,02178 7T °
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Report of the Directors

EETHREE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

3.

Wafer foundry services agreements and wafer purchase
agreement with Fab 2

On 28 February 2010, the Company’s subsidiaries, namely Wuxi
Semico, CR PowTech and InPower Semiconductor (Wuxi) Co.,
Ltd (“IPS Wuxi”), have entered wafer foundry services agreements
with Fab 2, respectively. On the same day, the Company’s
another subsidiary, namely InPower Semiconductor Company
Limited (“IPS HK”), has entered a wafer purchase agreement
with CSMC Asia, the sales agent of Fab 2 in Hong Kong for Fab
2’s overseas business. All of the aforementioned agreements
are for a term of three years starting from 1 January 2010 to
31 December 2012. Under the agreements, Fab 2 will provide
wafer processing services to Wuxi Semico, CR PowTech and IPS
Wuxi and assist them in preparing for mass production of wafers
designed by them, and CSMC Asia will sell wafers, which are
produced by Fab 2, to IPS HK in accordance with the specified
requirements of IPS HK.

The pricing for the production of the wafers and purchase
of wafers is to be agreed by the parties after arms’ length
negotiation each time when an order is being placed, which takes
effect from 1 January 2010 to 31 December 2012.

The annual caps for the three years ending 31 December
2012 are HK$41,600,000, HK$55,200,000 and HK$67,600,000,
respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the aggregate transaction
amount for the above amounted to HK$14,234,919.
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EEEHES

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

4,

Mask sale agreement between Fab 2 and Wuxi CRM

Wuxi China Resources Microelectronics Company Limited (“Wuxi
CRM?”), an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, has
entered into a mask sale agreement on 28 February 2010 with
Fab 2 for a period of three years starting from 1 January 2010
to 31 December 2012. Under the agreement, Wuxi CRM wiill
provide masks to Fab 2 for the production of wafers in Fab 2 in
accordance with the specified requirements of Fab 2. The pricing
for the masks is pre-determined and agreed by the parties after
arms’ length negotiation in the mask sale agreement.

The annual caps for the three years ending 31 December
2012 are HK$11,700,000, HK$14,000,000 and HK$16,800,000,
respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the aggregate transaction
amount for the above amounted to HK$5,472,303.

Direct Power Supply from CRP (Changshu) to Wuxi CRM
and Fab 2

On 26 August 2010, Wuxi CRM entered into the Direct Power
Supply Agreement with China Resources Power (Changshu) Co.,
Ltd. (“CRP (Changshu)”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of CR Power,
pursuant to which CRP (Changshu) agreed to supply and Wuxi
CRM agreed to purchase electricity on a continuing basis for a
period of one year from 1 October 2010 to 30 September 2011. It
is also agreed that Wuxi CRM will facilitate Fab 2 to consume part
of the electricity supplied by CRP (Changshu) under the Direct
Power Supply Agreement and Fab 2 shall bear the expenditure
for the actual volume of electricity consumed by it. Wuxi CRM
will only act as the payment agent for Fab 2 to pay for such utility
charges.
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Report of the Directors

EETHRES

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

5.

Direct Power Supply from CRP (Changshu) to Wuxi CRM
and Fab 2 (Cont’d)

Pursuant to the Direct Power Supply Agreement, the unit price
for the electricity is determined after arm’s length negotiation and
with reference to the range of on-grid tariffs chargeable by CRP
(Changshu) to the power grid and the end user tariffs applicable
to Wuxi CRM.

On the basis the Direct Power Supply Agreement becomes
effective on 1 October 2010, the estimated annual caps for the
transaction under the Direct Power Supply Agreement for CR
Power are HK$40 million and HK$120 million for each of the two
periods: (1) from 1 October 2010 to 31 December 2010; and (2)
from 1 January 2011 to 30 September 2011, respectively.

On the basis the Direct Power Supply Agreement becomes
effective on 1 October 2010, after deducting the estimated
amount of electricity to be consumed by Fab 2, the estimated
annual caps for the transaction under the Direct Power Supply
Agreement for CR Microelectronics are HK$28 million and HK$85
million for each of the two periods: (1) from 1 October 2010 to 31
December 2010; and (2) from 1 January 2011 to 30 September
2011, respectively.

As at 31 December 2010, the transaction of Direct Power Supply
is still under process to obtain necessary approvals from the State
Electricity Regulatory Commission and other relevant authorities.
Thus for the year ended 31 December 2010, the aggregate
transaction amount for the above amounted to nil.
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EEEHRES

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor
has issued his unqualified letter containing his findings and conclusions
in respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed by the
Group in pages 75 to 79 of the Annual Report in accordance with Main
Board Listing Rule 14A.38. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been
provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange. The Independent
Non-executive Directors have reviewed the on-going connected
transactions and confirmed that the on-going connected transactions
have been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i)  on normal commercial terms or, if there are not sufficient
comparable transactions to judge whether they are on normal
commercial terms, on terms no less favourable to the Group

than terms available to or from (as appropriate) independent third
parties and on arm’s length basis;

(i) in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them;

(iv) on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interest of the
shareholders as a whole; and

(v)  without exceeding the relevant cap disclosed in previous relevant
announcements.

The Company confirms that it has complied with the disclosure

requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules for
the year ended 31 December 2010.
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Report of the Directors

EETHRES

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE PRACTICES OF THE LISTING RULES

The then Chairman of the Board, Mr. Song Lin did not attend the
Annual General Meeting on 2 June 2010 due to other crucial business
on that date which required his attention. Mr. Song was aware the
above deviation from the provision E.1.2 of the Code which stipulates
that the Chairman should attend the annual general meeting of the
Company and had arranged the then Vice Chairman, Dr. Peter Chen
Cheng-yu to attend the Annual General Meeting. The Chairpersons of
Audit, Remuneration and Nomination Committees also attended the
AGM. The Company considers that their presence was sufficient for
(i) answering questions from and (ii) ensuring effective communication
with shareholders present at the AGM.

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer of a listed issuer should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. With effect from 4 June 2010, Mr.
Song Lin has resigned as an executive Director and the Chairman of
the Board of the Company in order to concentrate on overall strategies
and business of CRH as its Chairman, and Mr. Wang Guoping, an
executive director and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company,
was appointed as the Chairman of the Board effective on the same
date. The Board decided that Mr. Wang would continue to hold the
office of Chief Executive Officer of the Company notwithstanding his
appointment as Chairman, while the Company was processing the
appointment of the successor of Chief Executive Officer. Accordingly,
Mr. Wang Guoping held the offices of Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company from 4 June to 24 August 2010. On 24 August,
the Board has appointed Mr. Elvis Deng Mao-song as the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company with effect from the conclusion of
the meeting of the Board held on 24 August 2010.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHESE

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE PRACTICES OF THE LISTING RULES
(Cont’d)

Code provision E.1.3 stipulates that notice of an annual general
meeting to shareholders of a listed issuer should be sent at least 20
clear business days before the meeting. The Company sent notice of
its annual general meeting held on 2 June 2010 to its shareholders
on 10 May 2010, which was less than 20 clear business days before
the meeting. Though the Company was unable to comply with the
foregoing code provision, the requirement of the Company’s articles
of association to give not less than 21 clear days notice for the annual
general meeting was complied with.

Save as disclosed above, in the opinion of the Directors, the Group
has been in compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance
Practices, as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited throughout
the financial year. The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the
Group’s internal control systems and has assumed this responsibility
through formalized financial and legal procedures within the Group,
the Group’s auditors and the Audit Committee.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of corporate governance are set out in the section headed
“Corporate Governance Report” on pages 34 to 44 of this Annual
Report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirm that the
Company has maintained during the year the amount of public float
as required under the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Each of the Directors and their respective associates (as defined in
the Listing Rules) has confirmed that none of them had any business
or interest in companies that competes, or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly with the business of the Group.
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SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Directors believe that there are no significant subsequent events
to be disclosed.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-appointment.

Within two years ended 31 December 2010, the Company appointed
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditors to the Company.

On behalf of the Board,

WANG Guoping
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 March 2011
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Independent Auditor’s Report
VARG E

Deloitte.
=E)

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Resources Microelectronics Limited
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
87 to 189 which comprise the consolidated statement of financial

(the “Company”) and its

position as at 31 December 2010, and the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BULRZEMERES

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
VARG E

OPINION BER

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and ~ F iR A - SZ??%SHH%?E%%E@TFE\}% B 754
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2010 ES2BEEMATWRMEFENR T —FF+—
and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended HA=+—HWESRANEEFHEZB LFEEH
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and a&#lRIRERE @ WELRE S D aHEHI A H R
have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure #REEEHE o

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu =g o FEMR S AT

Certified Public Accountants HEEE AT

Hong Kong B

22 March 2011 —E——%=A-+CZH
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

SEEHWER

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZT—FF+=-F=+—HILFEE

2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
{hr=s F#ExT FHEIT
(restated)
(&%)
Turnover WA 8 3,874,207 3,036,881
Cost of sales SHE AN (2,901,244) (2,485,078)
Gross profit EF 972,963 551,803
Other income/gains and losses HaW A Wk REE 9 147,579 186,364
Selling and distribution expenses HENMDHER) (101,098) (84,972)
Administrative expenses THER (871,427) (324,546)
Research and development expenses  #fi %5 K FiZ & B (225,004) (194,231)
Other operating expenses Hip &2 (79,816) (69,482)
Finance costs BB RN 10 (23,332) (43,747)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale At EREREREE
investment 18 - (190,000)
Profit (loss) before taxation M BDEF (E8) 319,865 (168,811)
Taxation F18 11 (40,317) (13,566)
Profit (loss) for the year AEZRF (E5E) 12 279,548 (182,377)
Other comprehensive Hit2mEmz (BX)
income (expenses)
Exchange differences arising on MmEEARER =%
translation 128,321 343
Total comprehensive income (expenses) E A2 Ekz (Bx) 4258
for the year 407,869 (182,034)
CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED 2 8 # & ¥ & fR 2 7 ANNUALREPORT2010 — T — T 4 4 F # &
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

e EmHRE X

For the year ended 31 December 2010 i 2 —ZT—ZTF+—_A=+—HILFE

2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
h=s FH&xT TET
(restated)
(&%)
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to: A TN&HFEGEERNEA (BE)
Owners of the Company RRBIFFEA 272,364 (172,206)
Non-controlling interests IR A 2 7,184 (10,171)
279,548 (182,377)
Total comprehensive income (expenses) LA & FELMEE
attributable to: Wz () #2758
Owners of the Company ARBIFIE A 397,648 (172,030)
Non-controlling interests FEIE R R A 10,221 (10,004)
407,869 (182,034)
HK Cents HK Cents
AL AL
Earnings (loss) per share FRAEF (EE) 15
Basic FHAK 3.13 (2.35)
Diluted By 3.13 (2.35)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MR R R

At 31 December 2010 R=E—FEF+=-B=+—H

31/12/2010 31/12/2009 1/1/2009
—2-BF —TTNF
+=A +=A —TTNF
=+—H =—E —H—H
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
k=3 FTHET FAT FAT
(restated) (restated)
(E71) (&71)
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BEREE 16 3,138,849 3,170,864 3,592,396
Prepaid lease payments B REE 17 169,515 168,570 174,906
Available-for-sale investment AHEERE 18 573,141 564,092 741,698
Loans receivable WS =% 19 284,729 186,248 -
Derivative financial asset TTESRMEE 19 1,513 - -
Goodwill HES 20 21,024 21,024 21,024
Technical know-how PSS 21 19,415 815 1,629
Deferred tax assets ELF I A 29 47,910 26,700 18,589
Deposit for acquisition of property, WEEYE - R REREILRS
plant and equipment 15,225 13,646 21,120
4,271,321 4,151,959 4,571,362
Current assets nREEE
Inventories ey 22 730,170 602,850 812,721
Debtors, deposits and prepayments FEUNEBERR « 1#& RIE A 23 1,231,526 996,165 876,431
Prepaid lease payments BT HHEE 17 4,335 4,191 4,176
Tax recoverable B ER R - 187 9,329
Restricted bank deposits ZIRAIETIER 24 13,577 8,603 492
Bank balances and cash RITEBR LIRS 24 1,271,969 1,221,089 856,877
3,251,577 2,833,085 2,560,026
Current liabilities REAE
Creditors and accrued charges BRI R ERTE A 25 1,676,437 1,332,923 1,352,722
Government grants BFEE 38 29,545 29,745 26,308
Bank borrowings RITEN 26 853,812 1,127,535 1,015,891
Provisions oAy 27 22,878 25,048 39,303
Taxation IR 9,025 16,016 5,088
Financial guarantee contract MBERERN 30 - - 10,790
2,591,697 2,531,267 2,450,102
Net current assets RBEEFE 659,880 301,818 109,924
Total assets less current liabilities EEZAERABERE 4,931,201 4,453,777 4,681,286
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MR R R

At 31 December 2010 R=E—FEF+ =B =+—H

31/12/2010  31/12/2009 1/1/2009
—E-FF ZTTNEF
+=A +—A —TTNF
=t+—H =—=E —A—H
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
B aE FEx FHET FHET
(restated) (restated)
(&%) (&%)
Capital and reserves BRAEARGHE
Share capital Ba AR 31 878,955 878,940 585,521
Share premium and reserves R B R 2,751,513 2,353,775 2,400,135
Equity attributable to owners of KATIFTE ANEEER
the Company 3,630,468 3,232,715 2,985,656
Non-controlling interests PR 98,379 88,158 98,162
Total equity SR 3,728,847 3,320,873 3,083,818
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Bank borrowings RITE 26 950,000 975,000 1,413,590
Long-term payables REAFETRR X 28 - 15,324 59,456
Deferred tax liabilities EIERIAE & 29 4,712 4,712 4,718
Government grants BTN ® 38 247,642 137,868 119,704

1,202,354 1,132,904 1,697,468

4,931,201 4,488,777 4,681,286

The consolidated financial statements on pages 87 to 189 were #HWEN+ELE—N\NENGEMBERRENZ
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 22 ZT——FZA -+ _HEZZSHELRKEERD

March 2011 and are signed on its behalf by: o W TIEERREE
Wang Guoping T B Elvis DENG Mao-song B/% A
Director &% Director %
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Consolidated &at ent o‘f\'éhange
EAEREH %% P

For the year ended 31 December 2010 2 —ZE—FF+-A=+—H | FE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RARME ARl
Shares
Share held for Non-
Share Share  Merger Translation  option Other  award Retained controlling Total

capital premium  reserve  reserve  reserve reserves  scheme profit Total interests  equity
BRE KEER FER

RE ROBE ARG TREE W HtRE SEZRG REEA ag BE READ

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HKS$'000

Tér TAr TEr TEr  TEx  TEr  TEr  THEr  TEr  TER AR

(Note a) (Note b)
(Kita) (izkn)

At 1 January 2009 WZEENF-F-H 585,521 2,178,773  (639,277) 603,435 3254 151,026 - 102,924 2,985,656 98,162 3,083,818
Exchange differences EHzE - - - 176 - - - - 176 167 343
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - - - (172,206) (172,208)  (10,171) (182,377)
Total comprehensive income (expenses)  ERZEMA (B%) L3

for the year - - - 176 - - - (72208 (172,030  (10,004) (182034
Shares issued upon exercise of WTERGREEET

options under Equity Incentive Plan HERESBITR R 474 1,652 - - (1787 - - - 369 - 369
Recognition of equity-settled BARAEENROFTR

share-based payments - - - - 568 - - - 568 = 568
Purchase of shares under RER R KR 2]

Share award scheme (Note 32) BERR (His2) = = = = = - (19,469) - (19,.469) - (19,465)
Shares issued under allotment of BEREEREHETRE

Right Shares 292,945 144,672 - - - - - - 437,617 - 437,617
Transfers between categories PEREY - - = = - 13517 - (13517) - - -
At 31 December 2009 R=ZEZnF+-A=1-H 878,940 2,325,097 (639,277) 608,611 2,085 164,543 (19,465  (82,799) 3,232,715 88,158 3,320,873
Exchange differences ERZES - - - 125,284 - - - - 125,284 3037 128,321
Profit for the year FREF - = = - - - - 272,364 272,364 7184 279,548
Total comprehensive income for the year  FRZ2ERAEE - - - 125284 - - - 272364 397,648 10,221 407,869
Shares issued upon exercise of PR EREET

options under Equity Incentive Plan HNERERETRD 15 54 - - (57) - - - 12 - 12
Recognition of equity-settled BARALEENRANHR

share-based payments = = = - 5] - - - %3 = 8]
Transfers between categories PERER - - - = - 38010 - (38010) S S -
At 31 December 2010 WZE-F%+-A=1-H 878,955 2,325,151  (639,277) 728,895 2,101 202,553 (19,465 151,555 3,630,468 98,379 3,728,847
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
RERGTBH R

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZE—FF+_-_F=1+—HILEE

Notes:

(@)

The exchange differences arose from translation of assets and liabilities
of foreign operations and respective group entities’ functional currencies
into the presentation currency.

Other reserves comprise general reserve, statutory surplus reserve,
enterprise expansion fund, statutory public welfare fund and discretionary
surplus reserve of subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic
of China (“Mainland China”) and deemed distribution to and capital
contribution by China Resources Gas Group Limited. General reserve
was appropriated each year on the basis of 5% to 10% of the profit after
taxation of certain subsidiaries as determined by their board of directors
in accordance with the Articles of Association of the subsidiaries. This
reserve should only be used for making up losses, capitalisation into
capital and expansion of production and operation.

B &E -

(0)

ERERERSIEBNEERAEBERSEE
ERNMEERRESEHRERMELNERE

HitpEERERPEARIMNE ([HEAH])
FRZEOT B A R — R RERBFE
TCEZERES FELRE  BISAKMEER
BIEREBRRELNDIREREBRRERE
RARMWEE - —REBHEFEETHER
AR TR FIRE% E10%E EES B » I M
FENEZSRESMBERARNAMERAAG
TEE ZFHEERBHER BXEANRE
REENREBZA -

CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED 2 B # & + & R 2 7] ANNUAL REPORT 2010 T TEFEHRSE



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

o) iﬁ%um%é@

For the year ended 31 December 2010 & & —

= i

2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHET
Operating activities R
Profit (loss) before taxation BRELRTRF (E1E) 319,865 (168,811)
Adjustments for: FELATIEE -
Finance costs A& B AR 23,332 43,747
Interest income FEHA (32,856) (11,121)
Government grants recognised BRI S (40,365) (35,979)
Income from release of financial R BERBERHRA
guarantee liability = (1,790)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale At ERERERBE
investment - 190,000
Depreciation of property, plant and Y - BB RRETE
equipment 545,485 508,990
Impairment loss on property, plant and Y - B REERIE
equipment BB 23,217 13,138
Amortisation of technical know-how Al A ok 4 £ 1,360 814
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments A 4,335 4,361
Write off of inventories T E M 5,421 2,534
(Reversal of) allowance for doubtful debts ~ RBR (@) Bt (91) 4,761
Share-based payment expense BO A 93 568
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, HEWE  BEX
plant and equipment HEREE (Es) 31,729 (12,968)
Gain on disposal of an available-for-sale HE—EAHHE
investment TE MW = (840)
Write back of provisions (net) RERLE OF88) = (8,633)
Increase in fair value of a commodity EmEEEY
future contract B AT EEE) (2,045) -
Operating cash flows before movements LEESEHIINLERE
in working capital mE 879,480 528,771
(Increase) decrease in inventories =& (Em) md (111,806) 207,337
Increase in debtors, deposits and JEUERTR « e &
prepayments FEA FRIBIE AN (200,677) (116,759)
Increase in creditors and accrued charges FERTBR X R FET & A3 AN 287,050 56,009
Decrease in a commodity future HAmEESL
contract upon maturity 2| ER B e 2,045 -
Utilisation of provisions ) R (2,235) (5,621)
Cash generated from operations KEEWELENRE 853,857 669,737
Profits tax paid B FIER (66,758) (1,612)
Payment for purchase of shares for AR, EEN RS 2
share award scheme R 133 = (19,465)
Net cash from operating activities REERELNESTE 787,099 648,660
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERETRER

For the year ended 31 December 2010 & & —

T t-ASt-ALEE

2010 2009
—E-FF —ETNEF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
{hE=s FET FHT
Investing activities REETE
Payments and deposits for acquisition BEVE  BENM
of property, plant and equipment REON R RIRE (471,200) (222,949)
Development costs paid B A (19,932) -
Proceeds on disposal of property, HEME - BERZE
plant and equipment Fr8 3R 9,599 34,255
Loan advanced to a fellow subsidiary BIEEI NG E 0= (91,515) (206,248)
LLoan advanced to Star Venture #{ F Star Venture
Asia Limited Asia Limited#) &5k 19 (7,964) -
Proceeds on disposal of an HE—EAHEHE
available-for-sale investment TESIE - 1,446
Interest received 24 F & 23,488 9,121
Increase in restricted bank deposits SZPR HIERTT 17 5K 0N (4,974) (8,111)
Net cash used in investing activities BETEHEANE S EE (562,498) (392,486)
Financing activities METE
New borrowings raised WEEE 328,812 519,491
Repayments of borrowings BEEE (627,535) (846,437)
Net proceeds from rights issue BRSPS FXIE = 58 - 437,617
Repayment of long term payables EERIEMAER (16,633) (11,316)
Repayment to fellow subsidiaries BER XM B A RRIE = -
Advanced from (repayment to) fellow RIEKTBARFEMR (EBE
subsidiaries GEINENGIERED) 12,458 (7,577)
Interest paid 2T A (22,023) (42,885)
Government grants received BT B & 144,808 57,580
Exercise of share options e 12 369
Net cash (used in) from financing BESEE (FTA) B
activities HEFE (180,101) 106,842
Net increase in cash and RERASEEWEMFER
cash equivalents 44,500 363,016
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January, A— B —HHWELR
HEZEEY 1,221,089 856,877
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes HINEETE R BN A R 6,380 1,196
Cash and cash equivalents at Rt-ZA=1+—-HHEE
31 December, representing bank RESEEYEHBTER
balances and cash E#EE 1,271,969 1,221,089
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LA MBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZT—FF+=-F=+—HILFEE

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability and its shares are listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). The Company’s parent company is Gold
Touch Enterprises Inc., a company incorporated in British Virgins
Islands and its ultimate holding company is China Resources
National Corporation (“CRNC”), a company established in the
People’s Republic of China. The addresses of the registered office
and principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in
the Introduction section to the annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities
of its principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 39.

The functional currency of the Company is United States dollars
and the presentation currency of the financial statements is Hong
Kong dollars as the directors consider that Hong Kong dollars
is preferable in presenting the operating and financial position
of the Group because the Company is listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange.
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96

CHANGE IN PRESENTATIONS AND RECLASSIFICATION 2. ERI&HREHSE
In prior years, the Group presented the government grants as other RBEFE  AEEBEEGEE2AKERERT
income in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. BB IEEMIA c RAEE @ &
During the year, the management changed the presentation of the BEEEREEAYERRAEBENR2Y A
government grants relating to the expenses as a deduction of the =A% B A BRI VE B (E O AB A TE B A9 30
related items for which they are intended to compensate. BRIER °
Accordingly, amounts recognised in profit or loss in respect of At - MEAZTTAFEMBA WKk
government grants included in other income/gains and losses EEN TR MERR T BRNKIED
for 2009 have been reclassified to ensure comparability and T EH D FEATERIT 25 E B AT L1 K —
consistency of presentation. B o
The effects of changes in presentation described above on the L2 B EEARFE KRBT FEEEEK
results for the current year and prior year by line items are as W 28iETER 25T ¢
follows:
2010 2009
—E-=F —ETNhEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Decrease in cost of sales in respect of BRETEERNHEERAE
depreciation expenses (Note 38) W (BFEES8) 20,527 13,390
Decrease in other income/gains and losses HAupU A Uezs & &5 8 (28,083) (21,481)
Decrease in research and development expenses i Es & A (BMIsE38)
(Note 38) 7,556 8,091
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LA MBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZT—FF+=-F=+—HILFEE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 3.
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time,
a number of new and revised Standards, Amendments and
interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).

HKFRS 2 (Amendments) Group Cash-settled Share-based
Payment Transactions
HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations

HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements
HKAS 39 (Amendments) Eligible Hedged ltems

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs 2009
HKFRSs (Amendments) Amendments to HKFRS 5

as part of Improvements to
HKFRSs 2008

HK(IFRIC) — Int 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets
to Owners
HK - Int 5 Presentation of Financial

Statements — Classification

by the Borrower of a Term
Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause

Except as described below, the application of the new and
revised Standards, Amendments and Interpretations in the current
year has had no material effect on the amounts reported in these
consolidated financial statements and/or disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Cont’d)

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial
Statements - Classification by the Borrower of a Term
Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements
— Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains
a Repayment on Demand Clause (“HK-Int 5”) clarifies that term
loans that include a clause that gives the lender the unconditional
right to call the loans at any time (‘repayment on demand clause’)
should be classified by the borrower as current liabilities. The
Group has applied HK-Int 5 for the first time in the current year.
HK-Int 5 requires retrospective application.

In order to comply with the requirements set out in HK-Int 5,
the Group has changed its accounting policy on classification
of term loans with a repayment on demand clause. In the past,
the classification of such term loans were determined based
on the agreed scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
agreements. Under HK-Int 5, term loans with a repayment on
demand clause are classified as current liabilities.

As a result, a bank loan that contain a repayment on demand clause
with the carrying amount of HK$500,000,000 and HK$500,000,000
as at 31 December 2009 and 1 January 2009 respectively have
been reclassified from non-current liabilities to current liabilities. As at
31 December 2010, the bank loan (that is repayable more than one
year after the end of the reporting period but contain a repayment
on demand clause) with the carrying amount of HK$500,000,000
has been classified as current liabilities. The application of HK-Int 5
has had no impact on the reported profit or loss for the current and
prior years.

Such term loans have been presented in the earliest time band

in the maturity analysis for financial liabilities (see Note 26 for
details).
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Cont’d)

Amendments to HKAS 17 Leases

As part of “Improvements to HKFRSs” issued in 2009, HKAS 17
“Leases” has been amended in relation to the classification of
leasehold land. Before the amendments to HKAS 17, the Group
was required to classify leasehold land as operating leases and
to present leasehold land as prepaid lease payments in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The amendments to
HKAS 17 have removed such a requirement. The amendments
require that the classification of leasehold land should be based
on the general principles set out in HKAS 17, that is, whether or
not substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of a leased asset have been transferred to the lessee.

In accordance with the transitional provisions set out in the
amendments to HKAS 17, the Group reassessed the classification
of unexpired leasehold land as at 1 January 2010 based on
information that existed at the inception of the leases. The
adoption of amendment to HKAS 17 “Leases” had no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

HKAS 24 (Revised) Related party disclosures

Paragraphs 25 to 27 of HKAS 24 (Revised) “Related party
disclosure” exempt certain disclosures in relation to the
government-related entities. The Group has early applied this
disclosure exemption in the consolidated financial statements.
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Cont’d)

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
Standards, Amendments or Interpretations that have been issued
but are not yet effective.

HKASs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs issued in

2010
HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Transfers of
Financial Assets®
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments*

HKAS 12 (Amendments) Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets®

HKAS 24 Related Party Disclosures®
(as revised in 2009) (except for paragraphs 25 to 27)
HK(IFRIC) — Int 14 Prepayments of a Minimum
(Amendments) Funding Requirement®
HK(IFRIC) — Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities

with Equity Instruments?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010 or 1
January 2011, as appropriate

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZT—FF+=-F=+—HILFEE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 3.
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Cont’d)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (as issued in November
2009) introduces new requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
(as revised in November 2010) adds requirements for financial
liabilities and for derecognition.

° Under HKFRS 9, all recognised financial assets that are within
the scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement are subsequently measured at either
amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments
that are held within a business model whose objective is to
collect the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods.
All other debt investments and equity investments are
measured at their fair values at the end of subsequent
accounting periods.

° In relation to financial liabilities, the significant change
relates to financial liabilities that are designated as at fair
value through profit or loss. Specifically, under HKFRS 9, for
financial liabilities that are designated as at fair value through
profit or loss, the amount of change in the fair value of the
financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit
risk of that liability is presented in other comprehensive
income, unless the presentation of the effects of changes
in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or
loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a financial liability’s
credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
Under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the
fair value of the financial liability designated as at fair value
through profit or loss is presented in profit or loss.

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013, with earlier application permitted.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Cont’d)

The directors anticipate that HKFRS 9 will be adopted in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for financial year ending
31 December 2013 and that the application of the new Standard
may have a significant impact on amounts reported in respect
of the Groups’ financial assets but not on financial liabilities.
However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate
of that effect until a detailed review has been completed.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments
that are measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below. Historical cost is generally based on the
fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the
Company has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired (except for those which are
regarded as continuing entities which are accounted for as a
combination of entities under common control) or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the effective date of acquisition or
up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Basis of consolidation (Cont’d)

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group’s equity therein.

Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-controlling
interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary is
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

Business combinations

Acquisition of businesses was accounted for using the purchase
method. The cost of the acquisition was measured at the
aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets
given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree, plus
any costs directly attributable to the business combination. The
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
that met the relevant conditions for recognition were generally
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition was recognised as an asset and
initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the
acquisition over the Group’s interest in the recognised amounts
of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
recognised. If, after assessment, the Group’s interest in the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities exceeded the cost of the acquisition, the
excess was recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Business combinations that took place prior to 1 January
2010 (Cont’d)

The non-controlling interest in the acquiree was initially measured
at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of the assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of the acquiree.

In applying merger accounting, financial statements items of the
combining entities or businesses are presented as if they had
been combined from the date when the combining entities or
businesses first came under the control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses are
consolidated using the existing book values from the controlling
parties’ perspective. No amount is recognised in respect of
goodwill or excess of acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over cost at the time of common control combination, to the
extent of the continuation of the controlling party’s interest.

The consolidated statement of comprehensive income includes
the results of each of the combining entities or businesses from
the earliest date presented or since the date when the combining
entities or businesses first came under the common control,
where this is a shorter period, regardless of the date of the
common control combination.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated financial information
are presented as if the entities or businesses had been combined
at the previous end of reporting period or when they first came
under common control, whichever is shorter.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost less any accumulated impairment losses and is presented
separately in the consolidated statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising from an
acquisition is allocated to each of the cash-generating units, or
groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is
an indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising
on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before
the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated first to the unit, and then to the other
assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount
of each asset in the unit. An impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised directly in profit or loss in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the determination of
the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold and services provided in the normal course of
business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when goods are
delivered and title has passed.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 4. FEEEBR (8)

Revenue recognition (Cont’d) W \TERR (48)

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is S RLEEMF B RAREEF A 1 8L A
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and REBEWRESERISFAERER - 2/

the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. Interest income
from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including buildings held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes other than construction in progress, are
stated at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, over their estimated useful lives and after taking into
account their estimated residual values, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for
on a prospective basis.

Construction in progress represents property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production or for
own use purposes. Construction in progress is carried at cost
less any recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional
fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Construction
in progress is classified to the appropriate category of property,
plant and equipment when completed and ready for intended
use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
property, plant and equipment, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

LA MBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZT—FF+=-F=+—HILFEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in profit or loss.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to the Group.
Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including any lump-
sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element of
the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised over
the lease term on a straight-line basis. When the lease payments
cannot be allocated reliably between the land and building
elements, the entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease
and accounted for as property, plant and equipment, unless it is
clear that both elements are operating leases, in which case the
entire lease is classified as an operating lease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Technical know-how
Technical know-how comprises the acquired rights to use certain
technologies for the manufacture of wafer products.

Costs incurred in the acquisition of technical know-how are
capitalised and carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is provided
on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of four
to five years.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are tested for impairment
when there is an indication that an asset may be impaired (see the
accounting policies in respect of impairment losses for tangible
and intangible assets below).

Gain or loss arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are
measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised in profit or
loss in the period when the asset is derecognised.

Research and development expenditure

Research and development expenditure is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred. An internally-
generated intangible asset arising from development activities (or
from the development phase of an internal project) is recognised
if, and only if, all of the following have been demonstrated:

e the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so
that it will be available for use or sale;

e the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell
it;

o the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

o how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 4. EaTBUR (48)

Research and development expenditure (Cont’d) e R BHEER (48)

e the availability of adequate technical, financial and other e RERM - WBEAMEIRAMHER -
resources to complete the development and to use or sell AEKFERERASHERTEEE : &
the intangible asset; and

e the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to o NAZHEUSHI=EEFEERGERX
the intangible asset during its development. BIBET) ©

The resultant asset is amortised on a straight-line basis over FIEAMNZSEERE AFHUEGEES
its useful life, and carried at cost less subsequent accumulated 85 - WIRAAS R E 18 R AT 8 R AR RETR
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. EEERZYK
The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible NHBEENEBENEELRENEEFEREG L
asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when MR ER R 2R BREma R E
the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed R MEANTEENELEER THER - A
above. Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be 3B AR E £ R BRIk -
recognised, development expenditure is charged to profit or loss
in the period in which it is incurred.
Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible RERERE NBPEENETLEELK
asset is measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and N R R RFREEE (F) &t
accumulated impairment losses, if any, on the same basis as 2 HEEEBEFHNENELEENTIRE
intangible assets acquired separately. ZEFER o
Borrowing costs BEEE
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, BEERKE  BRNELE BN ALE KR
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets EREBT TAERERAEIEENSGER
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to ready for their BEMEENEERSE  HBTEERAD
intended use or sale, and added to cost of those assets until such —#n EEEEARNB EEERAERTE
time as the assets are substantially ready their intended use or RAEktEARL - FRAREGEREENETE
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of ERBRFIRERDNNEERABEERER
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets LRI EER AR R ©

is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the FIBEHEMEERANEESBRENERRNA

period in which they are incurred. TR o
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching
to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group recognises
as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended
to compensate. Specifically, government grants whose primary
condition is that the Group should purchase, construct or
otherwise acquire non-current assets are recognised as deferred
income in the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss over the useful lives of the related
assets. Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in the profit or loss in the period in
which they become receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are
charged as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

LA MBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZT—FF+=-F=+—HILFEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 4. EEFEBUR (8)
Taxation (Cont’d) BIE (88)
Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying HEVBHRERNEERBEREEETERE
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial AEUBANEEETERE AN EZRERRE
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the LEHIE - BEHRIBEBE R IBERT Y
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally Rt ZRERER - IRIERIBEE —MRAE R
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax R E B = RERER - MELAB AT BEAS FEER TR
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary AR EEEZE R EREER AR o
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will SR EEREREETRERTZE R
be available against which those deductible temporary differences WA ENNZ RN EMEEEEE
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if (EBEORIN) - AT 2mREEERLETIA
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial EERKBE-
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary BB ENENNB AR ZKE 2 ER
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries except where TOE R AR - MR AN B AT A
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary MEERBEEREEZEZ0 TS RAZE
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not R4 [0 Al BR AN o
reverse in the foreseeable future.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the RIERIAE ENREER S ERS ARER
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is 5 WA KR BEH B 50 SR A m ) A UK 2]
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available ZES D EERERR °
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates ELEHBEEERBEDRERNBESES
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is BEESRHAMERNNESTE  MaHETY
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) ERHmEHREBMAEE LEBMAFE
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of (BFE) o
the reporting period.
The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the BLEHRBEBEREENGTERRIEBRAEE
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which FIEEiM AR - RiEHRKEKEERE
the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover ERGENEAESTLENTBER - BE
or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. Deferred TRIEN B R R MR - e H B B 2 E
tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates to items R EERNERERNIEEAEAR - Rt
that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in BRT  IRERIBID IR EA2E KR
equity, in which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other BERERER o
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average method.
The costs of finished goods and work in progress comprise raw
materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related production
overheads. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable selling expenses.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets at fair value through profit or loss)
are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

The Group’s financial assets comprise financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), loans and receivables and
available-for-sale financial assets. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

LA MBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZT—FF+=-F=+—HILFEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and allocating interest income
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including loans receivable, debtors, amount due from a fellow
subsidiary, restricted bank deposits and bank balances and cash)
are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on
impairment loss on financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated or not classified as financial assets at FVTPL,
loans and receivables, or held-to-maturity investments. At the end
of each reporting period, available-for-sale equity investments
that do not have a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are measured at
cost less any identified impairment losses at the end of each
reporting period (see accounting policy on impairment loss on
financial assets below).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets at FVTPL includes financial assets held for
trading.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the near future; or

° it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments
that the Group manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value arising from remeasurement recognised
directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting period.
The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately
unless the derivative is designated and effective as a hedging
instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in profit
or loss depends on the nature of the hedge relationship.

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are treated
as separate derivatives when their risks and characteristics are
not closely related to those of the host contracts and the host
contracts are not measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.

CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED % & it & + & R 2

e I - N =RE

4.

a]  ANNUAL REPORT 2010

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

%éﬂﬂi%iﬁ%ﬁﬁi

For the year ended 31 December 2010 & —

EERTBR (&)
ST R (&)

BRAFHEFARR
RENEBMEE -

SNEREERRERERS

—HEREEBIBERTERS  {:

. WEZAESTEMENSA TS
£ %
o BRETEENTHRERILEEN
— 5 I AEREEE MR AR
FEE

BRAREER - BEREPTANITE
IH-

/1

BRAFESABGENESREER A FER
B MEHFEELENAFEZPUER

AZHNBER -
TTETRAVSRMTETIASHNTILE BE
RNFERR  HERNSMEMRAELQFE

B E - ISRaER RN ERRE
R MRFBATETARBEERYMTA
BT - AEFH BB EEEURER
B R ERAEH -

o7 TAMER & FEET S HW I
BE - MESDLIENRFEARBERF
EZ2PHRBERER  JIAFTEETEHH
TTHETERIREFEBLITETA -

T-TREFERE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

LA MBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZT—FF+=-F=+—HILFEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 4.

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are impaired where there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash
flows of the financial assets have been affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below its
cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or financial re-organisation; or

e the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment
is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence
that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective
interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in
subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of debtors and loans receivable where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the
carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit
or loss. When a trade debtor is considered uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit and loss to the extent
that the carrying amount of the investment at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the group after deducting all of its
liabilities.

Financial liabilities, including creditors, borrowings, amounts
due to fellow subsidiaries and a group company of a non-
controlling shareholder of a subsidiary, and long-term payables,
are measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method subsequent to initial recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period. Interest expense is recognised on
an effective interest basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

LA MBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZT—FF+=-F=+—HILFEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly from equity. No gain or loss
on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s
own equity instruments.

Financial guarantee contract

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the
issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the original or modified terms of
a debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract issued by the
Group and not designated as at fair value through profit or loss
is recognised initially at its fair value less transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the issue of the financial guarantee
contract. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures
the financial guarantee contact at the higher of: (i) the amount
determined in accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and (i) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation
recognised in accordance with HKAS 18 Revenue.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition of
a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received
and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Derecognition (Cont’d)

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid or payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation
as a result of a past event, and it is probable that the Group will
be required to settle that obligation. Provisions are measured at
the directors’ best estimate of the consideration required to settle
the present obligation at the end of reporting period, taking into
account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.
Where a provision is measured using a cash flow estimated to
settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of these cash flows (where the effect is material).

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor
Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant lease.

The Group as lesses

Where the Group is the lessee, operating lease payments are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the
relevant lease term.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction
of rental expense on a straight-line basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of
exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end
of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the
date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the translation of assets and liabilities of the Group’s
foreign operations and translation from a group entity’s functional
currency) into the presentation currency of the Company (i.e.
Hong Kong dollars) are translated at the rates of exchange
prevailing at the end of reporting period, and their income and
expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for the
year. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired
arising on an acquisition prior to 1 January 2005 is treated as
non-monetary foreign currency items of the acquirer and reported
using the historical exchange rate prevailing at the date of
acquisition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the
fair value of the options granted at the grant date is expensed on
a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share options reserve).

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to ultimately
vest. The impact of the revision of the estimates during the vesting
period, if any, is recognised in profit or loss, with a corresponding
adjustment to share options reserve.

At the time when the options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will continue to
be held in share options reserve.

The financial impact of options granted is not recorded in the
consolidated financial statements until such time as the options
are exercised, and no charge is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income in respect of the value of
options granted. Upon the exercise of the options, the resulting
shares issued are recorded as additional share capital at the
nominal value of the shares, and the excess of the exercise price
per share over the nominal value of the shares is recorded as
share premium. Options which lapsed or are cancelled prior to
their exercise date are deleted from the register of outstanding
options.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

LA MBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZT—FF+=-F=+—HILFEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions (Cont’d)

The fair value of the service received, determined by reference
to the fair value of awarded shares granted at the grant dates,
is expensed on a straight line basis over the vesting period,
with corresponding increase in share award reserve. The cost
of acquisition of the Company’s share held for the share award
scheme is recorded as treasury shares (shares held for share
award scheme). At the time when the awarded shares are vested,
the amount previously recognized in the share award reserve and
the amount of the relevant treasury shares will be transferred to
retained profits.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of award shares that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the estimates during
the vesting period, if any, is recognised in profit or loss, with a
corresponding adjustment to share award reserve.

Impairment losses of tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect of
goodwill above)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the assets is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any. In addition, intangible assets
not yet available for use are tested for impairment annually, and
whenever there is an indication that they may be impaired. If the
recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to
its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an
expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future in preparing accounting estimates. The resulting accounting
estimates may not be equal to the actual results. The estimates
and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both the current and future periods. The key
estimates and assumptions that may have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

Estimation of useful lives of property, plant and equipment
Management estimates the useful lives of property, plant and
equipment. The estimated useful lives are based on the expected
lifespan of those property, plant and equipment. The useful lives
of property, plant and equipment could change significantly as a
result of technical obsolescence. When the actual useful lives of
property, plant and equipment due to the change of commercial
and technological environment are different from their estimated
useful lives, such difference will impact the deprecation charges
and the amounts of assets written down for future periods.

Estimated impairment of available-for-sale investment
The Group assesses annually whether available-for-sale investment
has any indication of impairment, in accordance with the relevant
accounting policies. The recoverable amount of available-for-
sale investment has been determined using a discounted cash
flow analysis based on the estimated future cash flows. These
calculations and valuations require the use of judgment and
estimates on present value of the future cash flows expected to
be generated by the investee and discount rate adopted. Where
the actual cash flows is different from the original estimate, a
material change in the amount of impairment may arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

LA MBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZT—FF+=-F=+—HILFEE

5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY 5. {43 AABEEMEERE (&)

(Cont’d)

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation
of the value in use of the cash-generating units to which goodwill
has been allocated. The value in use calculation requires the
Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise
from the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value. Where the actual future
cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss
may arise. As at 31 December 2010, the carrying amount of
goodwill is HK$21,024,000 (2009: HK$21,024,000). Details of the
recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in Note 20.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that
the Group will be required to settle that obligation. Provisions
are measured at the directors’ best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the obligation at the end of reporting period,
and are discounted to present value where the effect is material.
As at 31 December 2010, the carrying amount of provisions is
HK$22,878,000 (2009: HK$25,048,000). Details of the estimation
of the provisions are disclosed in Note 27.

Allowance for inventories

The Group makes allowance for inventories based on an
assessment of the net realisable value of inventories. Allowances
are applied to inventories where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the net realisable value is lower than
the cost of inventories. The identification of obsolete inventories
requires the use of judgment and estimates on the conditions
and usefulness of the inventories. As at 31 December 2010,
the carrying amount of inventories is HK$730,170,000 (2009:
HK$602,850,000).
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Cont’d)

Income taxes

As at 31 December 2010, a deferred tax asset of HK$47,910,000
(2009: HK$26,700,000) has been recognised in the Group's
consolidated statement of financial position. The realisability
of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether sufficient
future profits or taxable temporary differences will be available in
the future. In cases where the actual future profits generated are
less than expected, a material reversal of deferred tax assets may
arise, which would be recognised in profit or loss for the period
in which such a reversal takes place.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to maintain a balance between
continuity of cash flows from operating activities and the flexibility
through the use of bank borrowings. The Group also monitors the
current and expected liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants regularly to ensure that sufficient working
capital and adequate committed lines of funding are maintained
to meet its liquidity requirements.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts, which
include borrowings, bank balances and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued capital, retained
profits and other reserves.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure on
a regular basis. As part of this review, management considers
the cost of capital and the associated risk, and take appropriate
actions to adjust the Group’s capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of
new debts or the extinguishment of existing debts.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 BiE —E—FF+ - A=+—H|LFE

S

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 7. £MIH
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) &BTEER
31/12/2010 31/12/2009 1/1/2009
—E2-%F ZETNE ZETNEF
+=A=+—-R +=-A=+—~ —A—8
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FAT FHBIT
Financial assets SREE
Loans and receivables (including cash &3t FEUBR X
and cash equivalents) (BRERELREEEY) 2,655,629 2,329,797 1,627,519
Available-for-sale investments AEHERE 573,141 564,092 741,698
Derivative financial asset MEEMEE 1,513 - -
Financial liabilities cReE
At amortised cost DAEE SHA ARG 3,367,421 3,377,619 3,789,042
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZE—FF+_-_F=1+—HILEE

7.

CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED #= & {# &

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include loan
receivables, debtors, available-for-sale investments, bank
balances and cash, creditors, bank borrowings and long-
term payables. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments include market risk (foreign
currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out
below. The Group manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

Market risk

The Group conducts certain sales, purchases and funding
transactions in foreign currencies, i.e. United States dollar,
Hong Kong dollar or Renminbi, hence is exposed to foreign
currency risk. The Group manages its foreign currency risk
by closely monitoring the movements of foreign currency
exchange rates. The Group currently has not entered into
any foreign currency forward contracts to hedge against
foreign currency risk. Management will consider hedging
foreign currency exposure should the need arises.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary assets and
monetary liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, i.e.
currency other than the functional currency of the respective
group entities which are mainly debtors, creditors and bank
balances and bank borrowings at the reporting dates are
as follows:

7.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemer
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 BiE —E—FF+ - A=+—H|LFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 7. &@IA (8)
Market risk (Cont’d) TGS (48)
(i) Foreign currency risk (Cont’d) (i) MERE (&)
2010 2009
—E-=F —ETNEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTERT FAT
Assets BE
United States dollar xE7T 202,393 481,491
Hong Kong dollar BIT 20,327 34,032
Renminbi AR 257,849 93,899
480,569 609,422
Liabilities aE
United States dollar ey 29,851 18,384
Hong Kong dollar BIT 811,775 9,186
Renminbi AR 227,409 279,426
1,069,035 306,996
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mE B RRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZE—FF+_-_F=1+—HILEE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 7. £€MTIH (&)
Market risk (Cont’d) hiGERE (8)
Foreign currency sensitivity analysis SNEBBE T

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a
5% increase in the functional currencies of the Group
entities, mainly Renminbi (“RMB”) and United States dollar,
against relevant foreign currencies. 5% is the sensitivity
rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to
key management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign
currency rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items
and adjusts their translation at the year end for 5% change
in foreign currency rates. A negative number below indicates
a decrease in profit for the year (2009: an increase in l0ss)
when the functional currencies strengthens against the
relevant foreign currencies. For a 5% weakening of the
functional currencies against the relevant foreign currencies,
there would be an equal but opposite impact on the result
for the year.

TRANREEERNNGEER (T2
BARE (TAR®]) RET) LEH
SNEE £ FB%H B - 5% B K
- ERRARAEIREEABREN
BRI &S TR B N [ R A B

BNaBEZEHNNE - BRENTER
AL IBEAINEDERN EHIRE A
MERIZE%ME TR B FHEEER -
HZhee 1 L ERINE L7 - RITSIE
EBEXRTEFNENRD (ZFTNF
BHRIEM) - M SR L AEMINET
B5% RleHFEXEELASFEMR
RE R4

o

e .

2010 2009
—EB-EF —ZTNEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
United States dollar EpH
Result for the year FREEE (5,977) (15,997)
Hong Kong dollar BT
Result for the year FEELE (393) (1,024)
Renminbi ARYE
Result for the year FREHE (1,281) 7,885
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZT—FF+=-F=+—HILFEE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 7. &BTE (&)
Market risk (Cont’d) hiZEMRE (8)
Foreign currency sensitivity analysis (Cont’d) INEHBE T (F)

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that
the Group’s sensitivity to the change in United States
dollars against Hong Kong dollars is low as Hong Kong
dollar is pegged to United States dollar. As a result, the
above sensitivity table does not include the impact of such
change.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk as
the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during
the year.

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the cash flows of
the financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. The Group’s interest rate risk relates
primarily to the Group’s floating rate borrowings and loans
receivable from a fellow subsidiary. It is the Group’s policy
to maintain its borrowings at floating interest rate so as to
minimise the fair value interest rate risk.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative
instruments. The analysis is prepared assuming the financial
instruments outstanding at the end of reporting period
were outstanding for the whole year. A 200 basis point
(2009: 200 basis points) increase is used when reporting
interest rate risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.

CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED # B 7 & + & [R A A
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mE B RRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZE—FF+_-_F=1+—HILEE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

Market risk (Cont’d)

Interest rate sensitivity analysis (Cont’d)

At the end of reporting period, assuming the bank borrowings
outstanding at the end of reporting period had been
outstanding for the whole year, if interest rates had increased
by 200 basis points (2009: 200 basis points) and all other
variables were held constant, the Group’s profit for the year
would decrease by approximately HK$30,132,000 (2009:
the Group’s loss would increase by HK$11,304,000). In the
opinion of directors, sensitivity analysis is not presented for
a decrease of interest rate because a further decrease in
interest rate is unlikely to occur.

The Group’s exposure to cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of London interbank offered
rate (“LIBOR”), Hong Kong interbank offered rate (“HIBOR”)
and People’s Bank of China lending rate arising from the
Group’s United States dollar, Hong Kong dollar and Renminbi
(“RMB”) denominated borrowings. In the management’s
opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the
inherent cash flow interest rate risk as the year end exposure
does not reflect the exposure for the whole year as a result
of the repayment of a substantial amount of the Group’s
borrowings during the year.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of the
counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations in relation to
each class of recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of
those assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position and the amount of unrecognised portion of liabilities in
relation to financial guarantees issued by the Group disclosed
in Note 30. In order to minimise the credit risk, the Group has
policies in place for determination of credit limits, credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action
is taken to recover overdue debts.

£RTHE (48)
misEgE (&)

FlE GUREE T ()
RIWERR - BERBREHAREREE
WIRITTEREEFA—EAREE i
FIZE EH200MEER (ZEFNF : 200
BER) BEFBEEMESHIFTE - 8
7N E B F A F AR 4 £930,132,000
BT (ZEENGE - NEBEBEAAEM
11,304,000 7C) - EERAE - WEAE
AL EZ S M ERE A B EA T
BEHE— D TBR o

AEEEENRESRENXARIES
TRIFEAKERT BTRAREE
ENRBRTEERE (RBERTH
ERRD BERTRAERL ([FE
RITAERE ] RPRBEARRITER
MERE - ERERS  BRAKEE
REREEANERE - HEFREKRD
BRI RREFEER - FEHEE
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fSEERE
HRXZHRREBITREEAZHERRE
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 2 —Z—FF+-A=+—H I FE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

Credit risk (Cont’d)

Before accepting any new customer, the Group carries out
searches on the creditability of the new customer and assesses
the potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits
by customer. Limits attributed to customers are reviewed once
a year.

In addition, the Group reviews the recoverability of each individual
debt on a regular basis to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
Group considers that the credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on bank deposits is limited because the
counterparties are financial institutions with good credit standing.

Other than concentration of credit risk on loans receivable from
a fellow subsidiary, the Group has no significant concentration of
credit risk, with exposure spread over a number of counterparties.
No single trade debtor outstanding at the end of reporting period
exceeds 5% of the total balance of trade debtors.

However, the Group is exposed to significant concentration
of credit risk by geographical location as 85% (2009: 80%)
of debtors are mainly in the Mainland China within the high-
technology industry.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The
management monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and
ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant source
of liquidity. As at 31 December 2010, the Group has available
unutilised bank loan facilities of HK$1,328,195,000 (2009:
HK$1,975,567,000). Details of which are set out in Note 26.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZE—FF+_-_F=1+—HILEE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 7.

Liquidity risk (Cont’d)

The following table details the Group’s contractual maturity for
its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
in accordance with the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. Specifically, a bank loan with a repayment on
demand clause is included in the earliest time band regardless
of the probability of the bank choosing to exercise the right. The
table includes both interest and principal cash flows.

On demand
or less than 181-365
180 days days

H1180A 181-365H
HK$000 HK$'000

T H (8)

mENEEEME (8])
TRAAFIIAEEFRTESRABENGL
AME - TRIOBRBEASEREEESRE
BENRFAHNRTBERSREMBER - T
REREMNEERAENRERE - LERE M
BREFEFERNBITERGFARER
B MAEERIRTTEFITEZEN AL
o

Total
1-2 2-3 undiscounted Carrying
years years  cash flows amounts
g5
1-2F -3 BEREMG REE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TEn ThEL TAR Thn TEn TEL
As at 31 December 2010 R-E-ZE+-A=t-A
Non-interest bearing %8
Trade creditors ERESER 1,144,971 - - - 1,144971 1,144,971
Other payables At ENERR 401,450 - - - 401,450 401,450
Long-term payables REEMNER - 17,628 - - 17,628 17,188
Variable interest rate instruments ¥ &= T &
Bank borrowings RITER 697,296 167,762 655,466 302,010 1,822,534 1,803,812
2,243,717 185,390 655,466 302,010 3,386,583 3,367,421
As at 31 December 2009 RZZEENF+-A=1—H
Non-interest bearing %8
Trade creditors EREZER 912,636 = = = 912,636 912,636
Other payables At RERR 330,088 - - - 330,088 330,088
Long-term payables REEAER 17,036 - 17,036 - 34,072 32,360
Variable interest rate instruments & FETA
Bank borrowings FITER 977,712 167,372 332,201 651,440 2128725 2,102,535

2,237 472 167,372

349,237 651,440 3,405,521 3,377,619
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LA MBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZT—FF+=-F=+—HILFEE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 7. €MTIH (&)
Liquidity risk (Cont’d) nBEASEE (&)
Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are included in BIEFREERERKEENRITEREL
the “on demand or less than 180 days” time band in the above WMEIEA ST ARSI A TAR ZEKEHR180H
maturity analysis. Taking into account the Group’s financial AEE] HEFRBER  KZERAKE YT
position, the directors do not believe that it is probable that the B - EERBZERITHETAILITHEE
banks will exercise their discretionary rights to demand immediate ERENFFERIBHRE -
repayment.
For the purpose of managing liquidity risk, the management REEBRDECRARMNE  EEEBEEN TR
reviews the expected cash flow information of the Group’s &l R ER B RS ASEW AL
bank loans with a repayment on demand clause based on the EREERBGROBITERNBRRSREE
scheduled repayment dates set out in the agreement as set out e

in the table below:

Total
0-180 181-365 1-2 2:3 Over undiscounted Carrying
days days years years 3years  cash flows amounts
AR

0-1808  181-365H 128 2:3% SENL  BemEM FEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tign Ti#n THT THR T Tign Ti#n

As at 31 December 2010 R-Z-F+-A=1-A
Variable interest rate instruments ~ [ZEIFIETE
Bank borrowings with a repayment  ERERERERNFTER
on demand clause 5,404 2,799 5,598 501,399 - 515,200 500,000

5,404 2,799 5,598 501,399 - 515,200 500,000

As at 31 December 2009 R-EENET-R=1-H
Variable interest rate instruments ~ [ZE)FIRTE
Bank borrowings with a repayment  BARERER KRR

on demand clause 5,401 2,892 5,784 5,784 501,445 521,306 500,000
5,401 2,892 5,784 5,784 501,445 521,306 500,000
The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments i FBF R EFBIEN AR ERRETHZF
for non-derivative financial liabilities is subject to change if HEFEARE - B EXgpIESTE S aE Y
changes in variable interest rates differ to those estimates of BTEH ANESESENE -

interest rates determined at the end of the reporting period.

iy
il
i
feh
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost are determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow
analysis.

The fair value of the financial guarantee is determined using
valuation model where the main assumptions are the probability
of default by the specified counterparty extrapolated from market
based credit information and the amount of loss, given the
default.

The fair value of the derivative financial asset is calculated using
Binomial Option Pricing Model based on applicable risk free rate,
volatility, maturity date and dividend yield.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE B RRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZE—FF+_-_F=1+—HILEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 EE T —ZTF+-_A=1+—HILFE

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Turnover represents revenue arising on sales of goods of
HK$3,042,563,000 (2009: HK$2,411,320,000) and rendering of
service of HK$831,644,000 (2009: HK$625,561,000) for the year.

The Group is organised into five operating divisions according
to the nature of the products or services. The Group, therefore,
determines its operating segments based on these five operating
divisions by reference to the products or services, for the purpose
of reporting to the chief operating decision maker (the Executive
Committee of the Company).

The Group’s operating segments under HKFRS 8 are as
follows:

e  Open Foundry
e Integrated Circuits (“IC”) Design
e |C Testing and Packaging

o Discrete Devices

T\ & 5y 2R & #

W AIEAFE R B HE EmAY3,042,563,000
BT (ZZEZT A F ¢ 2,411,320,0008 7T) &
TR AR H1831,644,000/8 7T (ZZEZE N4 ¢
625,561,000/8 7T ) HIHES °

RIBEMIRBIEE - AEEH A EEES

FIAERK - Bt - AEER2EF B E @S RE

?ﬁ hEZERIECELEDE - UAE
ZEEBREE (RARRAMITEES) WME -

BRBEEEWHHRELERFR

3 83 2 518
ED BN

ZN
=

o FMASETAT

o SRER ([EREK]) &K

e Supporting Function o TR

The operating segments are managed separately as each division LB D IR IR & E PR H R E m R RS
offers different products and services. o Rl E IR o

The activities of these divisions are as follows: ZEIPIREBNT

Open Foundry — open foundry for manufacturing of wafers with
technical platforms, such as CMOS, BiCMOS, DMOS, BCDMOS
and Bipolar

AR RERT — AREREREMBRA
TR - EHMHCMOS - BICMOS » DMOS -
BCDMOSKk #iRETHF &5

IC Design - design and development of semiconductor IC SRREREAT — Rt R EREKRER
products Em
£= ﬁ:‘

IC Testing and Packaging — provision of IC assembly and testing
foundry services
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 2 —ZE—FEF+_-_A=+—H I FE

8. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 8. WARSEPEE (4)
Discrete Devices — manufacture of discrete device wafers and paVA Lo %&L%ﬁ’\ﬁ BERREA - KA ERS
finished products for energy saving lightings, home appliances, THEGlES REAGTEREN D LR &
industrial control devices and personal computers Bl & A A
Supporting Function — provision of utilities and other supporting XERT — RHKE RHE M TR RS

services

BRAZEDHMHEMZRAT -

Information regarding these segments is reported below.

136

Year ended 31 December 2010 BE_F-FEF+-A=+—HLEE
Open IC Testing &  Discrete Supporting
Foundry IC Design Packaging Devices Function Total
BHR  RHER RRER
RERT #it  EREREE PUEH XERB CH
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000
ThER TER ThER ThER ThER ThER
Turnover from external customers RENDEEMEERE 1,204,234 647,246 831,644 1,105,733 85,350 3,874,207
Intersegment turnover NEELER 199,662 4,057 43,533 26,503 361,777 635,532
Segment turnover NEBERE 1,403,896 651,303 875177 1,132,236 447,127 4,509,739
Segment profit A RED R 135,878 36,284 31,710 146,664 9,531 360,067
Segment assets RENHEE 2,665,789 543,711 1,051,279 1,462,435 1,422,889 7,146,103
Segment liabilities HRENDEE 529,744 211,413 547,400 554,416 146,499 1,989,472
Included in measure of segment SESHE e
profit or segment asset: PHEEREFA
Interest income MEKA 14,271 154 82 20 13,511 28,038
Finance costs RERKA (1,785) - (1,207) (1,083) (2,836) (6,911)
Depreciation and amortisation HEREH (256,921) (16,270)  (114,239) (94,774) (68,283)  (550,487)
Impairment of assets EERE - (763)  (21,894) (560) - (23,217)
Reversal of (allowance) for A (BD) &6
doubtful debts 2,173 (2,799) - 7 - 91
Additions to property, plant mE - BE
and equipment and prepaid REERE
lease payments LEMEE 122,069 29,188 108,600 183,135 24,299 467,291
Addition to deposit for acquisition ARBENE  BE
of property, plant and equipment R EHREEM 11,664 - 722 2,839 - 15,225
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 E —Z—ZFF+_A=+—HILFE

8. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 8. WARSEIPEE (&)

Year ended 31 December 2009 HEZZZNF+_A=1T—HILFE
Open IC Testing & Discrete  Supporting
Foundry  IC Design  Packaging Devices Function Total
AR ERER  ERER
mERT Fit ARREE AuRH XERB CH

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT  TAL  TAR  TER  TER  TAR

Turnover from external customers RANFEEMEEE 964,572 589,210 625,561 795,250 62,288 3,036,881

Intersegment turnover HEEEER 155,286 4,868 44,739 25,222 308,273 538,388
Segment turnover DHEEE 1,119,858 594,078 670,300 820,472 370,661 3,575,269
Segment (loss) profit AREDS (BE) &F  (170,534) 11,475 (17,008) 43,459 19,876 (112,727)
Segment assets AREDHEE 2,527,787 395,123 965,080 1,202,924 1,779,828 6,870,742
Segment liabilities IRENFEE 491,084 208,851 452,381 393,821 180,446 1,726,583
Included in measure of segment FELY (EE) 5F#

(loss) profit or segment asset: PEBEEREFA
Interest income FEMWA 4,644 58 160 248 5,504 10,614
Finance costs REKK (6,681) - (3,844) (1,927) (2,041) (14,493
Depreciation and amortisation FEREH (244,551)  (14549)  (105159)  (89,362)  (60,345)  (513,966)
Impairment of assets BERE (198,791) - (4,347) - - (203,138)
Reversal of (allowance) for R (BE) &

doubtful debts 3,154 (5,376) (309) (2,170) (60) (4,761)
Additions to property, plant LER =

and equipment and prepaid RRERE

lease payments LEfES 41,902 12,981 29,639 23,497 45,599 153,618
Addition to deposit for acquisition RREENE - BR

of property, plant and equipment REERREEM 753 10,126 26 - 2,741 13,646

CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED 2 i i & F A R 2 A ANNUALREPORT2010 =T — T F F E H & 137



138

CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED % & it & + & R 2

8. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)

(@) The accounting policies of the operating segments are the

same as the Group’s accounting policies described in Note
4. Performance is measured based on operating segment
profit (loss) that is used by the Executive Committee of
the Company for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance. Taxation is not
allocated to segments.

The turnover, profit or loss, assets and liabilities of the Group
are allocated based on the operations of the segments.

Segments profit is profit (loss) before taxation, excluding
unallocated corporate finance costs from borrowings raised
by headquarters and other corporate expenses (mainly
including staff costs of general management and other
general administrative expenses).

Segment assets exclude tax recoverable, deferred tax
assets, unallocated bank balances and cash held by
headquarters and unallocated corporate assets (mainly
including prepayments and deposits of headquarters).

Segment liabilities exclude taxation, deferred tax liabilities,
financial guarantee contract, unallocated bank borrowings
raised by headquarters and unallocated corporate liabilities
(mainly including accrued charges of headquarters).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ﬁv?\éﬂﬂi%iﬁ%ﬁﬁi

For the year ended 31 December 2010 & & —

8. WARSEREH (&)

(a)

Al  ANNUAL REPORT 2010

B IE D EPETER A A 2 R ECR Ty EL R 524

FTEAEBEMN S EERAR - KB IIR

BARARMITZE AR DR ER KT

fﬁgk’ﬁﬁﬁi’ifﬁm/\* wm ) (E18) &
c MBI EDMEZ D °

REFENWA - 8%  BERBEDR
DEEEEEENE o

BIE D Es A AR AR M (B1R)
TEREENMEREEN RO R
BERAREMERERS L (FRBHE K
EEEMNE TR R HEAM—&RTTHE
) e

LEDHEETERAKEHRIEA BT
BIREE - mAKANRDBERITAE
BEREARARDEEREE (2R
FRRASNBENRERRS) °

LEDHMABRBTEEREA  BEEHRER
f& ﬁﬁk?ﬂ%/\fﬁ RETERANARD
RRITERERIECEXEE (TER
AR ER)

T-TEFEERE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

LA MBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 i 2 =T —ZTF+-_A=+—HILFE

8. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 8. WARHSZEFE (1)

(b) Reconciliation of the segment turnover, profit or (b) HEBUEA - 1EZE « BEREEIEER
loss, assets and liabilities
Segment turnover, profit or loss, assets and liabilities are DERA - B BERBBREALEE
reconciled to total assets and total liabilities of the Group BERENEERENEEROT
as follows:
Turnover PN 2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Segment turnover D EBUA 4,509,739 3,575,269
Elimination of intersegment turnover 88 25 30 e A (635,532) (538,388)
Turnover per consolidated statement of RiZEE2EMEER
comprehensive income E A0l ON 3,874,207 3,036,881
Inter-segment sales are charged at cost plus a percentage S ERRI S E B AS I — T B R &9 F 8
profit mark-up. i€ °
Profit or loss B 2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT THET
Segment profit (loss) b ) (EE) 360,067 (112,727)
Unallocated amounts: RAOBLHIA :
Release of financial guarantee liability PR IERAE - 1,790
Unallocated interest income KoBEF B A 4,818 507
Unallocated corporate finance costs AP E RN E R A (16,421) (29,254)
Unallocated corporate expenses RAOBERS (28,599) (29,127)
Profit (loss) before taxation per RiZEEEMERER
consolidated statement 25 HBRT A& A
of comprehensive income (1) 319,865 (168,811)
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 & —

8. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)

e e

(b) Reconciliation of the segment turnover, profit or

8. WARSEBEH (&)

(b) SEUWA -z  EERBROHER

loss, assets and liabilities (Cont’d) (%)
Assets BE 31/12/2010 31/12/2009 1/1/2009
—2-2F —EENEF —ETNEF
+=A=+—-H +=-A=+—H —HR—H
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FAT FET
Segment assets DEEE 7,146,103 6,870,742 6,898,069
Unallocated assets: ROBLEE :
Tax recoverable AT Uy [a] 7 78 - 187 9,329
Deferred tax assets BT E 47,910 26,700 18,589
Unallocated bank balances RO BLERITAE R
and cash kEE 319,470 80,317 197,352
Unallocated corporate assets RAOMEEEE 9,415 7,098 8,049
Total assets per consolidated RERE B SRR &
statement of financial position 2N EELLE 7,522,898 6,985,044 7,131,388
Liabilities &1 31/12/2010  31/12/2009 1/1/2009
—E-ZF —ETNF —ETNF
t=A=+-8 +-A=+-H —A—A
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHIT FHT
Segment liabilities HEAE 1,989,472 1,726,583 2,018,808
Unallocated liabilities: AOBEE :
Taxation 1A 9,025 16,016 5,088
Deferred tax liabilities ELEHIBA G 4,712 4712 4,718
Financial guarantee contract BITEIERE 4 - - 10,790
Unallocated bank borrowings AOERIRITER 1,775,000 1,900,000 2,000,000
Unallocated corporate liabilities ROBEEEEE 15,842 16,860 8,166
Total liabilities per consolidated WA R R
statement of financial position 2IMBaER%E 3,794,051 3,664,171 4,047,570
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZT—FF+=-F=+—HILFEE

8. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 8.

(c) Geographical information

The following table provide an analysis of the Group’s sales
by geographical market attributed to the group entities’
countries of domiciles (i.e. the Mainland China and Hong
Kong) and attributed to all foreign countries. Majority of the
non-current assets other than available-for-sale investment
and deferred tax assets are located in the Mainland China,

the entity’s country of domicile.

WBARSEBEF (8)
(c) bEHISEER

AT RAKEZMEMmSE S NEEE
BAMEBRR (AP BERREE) kA
BOIBEXRBRIGHERINER - K%
BHERDEE (IHLEREMELHR

REERN MR EBMEBERTER

Hh o

fl

2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHEx TET
Domicile country/region: FrEERR,E :
Mainland China A [ A 3t 2,314,760 1,742,353
Hong Kong &5 15,903 16,016
2,330,663 1,758,369
Foreign countries/regions: GNER bR
Mainland China H [ A 4t 23,829 8,505
Hong Kong BE 493,480 505,607
Taiwan =9 290,946 210,317
United States EH 434,820 332,801
Europe &M 16,998 17,901
Others Hih 283,471 203,381
1,543,544 1,278,512
3,874,207 3,036,881
Turnover is analysed on the basis of the customer’s WATHRE FETERE D AT ©
location.
(d) Information about major customers d) EEEZFR&EH
In 2010 and 2009, the revenue from the Group’s largest RZE—ZTER_FTNF  REAXE

customer amounted to less than 10 per cent of the Group’s

revenue.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZE—ZFF+_-_F=1+—HILEE

9. OTHER INCOME/GAINS AND LOSSES

9 HtlA Wi R EIE

2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
(restated)
(Z5)
Included in other income/gains and losses are: SFAEMUA
W RkEENIER A
Interest on bank deposits RITIERAE 19,338 7,925
Interest on loan to a fellow subsidiary EEGEPNGIESI=E I 13,518 3,196
Income from release of financial BRBR I TS IR BB
guarantee liability (Note 30) WA (BFEE30) = 1,790
Government grants (Note 38) BFmEE (ME38) 12,285 14,498
Net (loss) gain on disposal of property, HEWE BE
plant and equipment NEEENF (Bi18) ke (31,729) 12,968
Increase in fair value of a commodity EmEEA A F(EE N
future contract (Note) (B 3E) 2,045 -
Gain on disposal of an available-for-sale investment & At H &£ 15 &tk zs - 840
Supporting and administrative service income 2 U —FE B 2B B A Bl
from a fellow subsidiary (Note 37) I8 MATBURFS WA
(P3E37) 101,698 88,733
Tax refund on re-investment of profit of R B R e B B R B A1)
subsidiaries in the Mainland China BIRERRE = 12,302
Write back of provisions (Note 27) BmEm (MHE27) - 9,625

Note:

GEE

Gold is one of the principal raw materials of the Group’s IC Testing &
Packaging business. During the year, the Group entered into gold future
contracts traded on the Shanghai Gold Exchange to hedge its exposure
against gold price fluctuation and recorded an increase in fair value of
future contracts of HK$2,045,000 (2009: Nil). No outstanding gold future
contract is held by the Group as at the end of the reporting period.

B RAARBEERERD AN R EBH BN —
BIZRHM - FAR AEEFTLELEESRS
EENESHEANNE T EESERKIN
[k - WERFHE A KR FEHEK2,045,0008 T
“ZRNF B AEERREHRLESE
AFENEEHESH -
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10. FINANCE COSTS 10. BB A
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETRF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T
Interests on: ME

Bank loans wholly repayable within five years ARAFANBHEED
RITER 22,023 42,885
Long-term payables RHFE(T BRI 1,309 862
23,332 43,747
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZE—FF+_-_F=1+—HILEE

| Statements

11. TAXATION 11. BilE

2010 2009
—E-ZF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F&T FET

Current tax BNEATH 18
Mainland China R B A 3 56,742 22,718
Hong Kong BB 204 24

BEFERENZ

Under (over) provision in prior year (FREE RS ) 1,316 (1,060)
58,262 21,682
Mainland China — withholding tax MR ke FEFO AR 1,692 -
Deferred tax (Note 29) RIERIE (FisE29) (19,637) (8,116)
40,317 13,566

Profits tax arising in the Mainland China is calculated based on
the applicable tax rates on assessable profits. The relevant tax
rates for the Group’s subsidiaries in the Mainland China for both
years range from 15% to 25%.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of EIT
Law, the domestic tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from
1 January 2008 onwards.

Certain subsidiaries have obtained approval from the relevant tax
bureau and are qualified as High and New Technology Enterprise
which would be subject to a tax rate of 15% for both years.

In addition, certain subsidiaries operating in the Mainland China
were exempted from tax applicable in the Mainland China for two
years starting from 2008 and were granted a 50% relief for the
following three years.

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for both years.

FAFR B (A b E A O R 1S B T AR 15 B AR B 0
BREAMEFTE - RAFR EF - AEEF
B AHHTE QR NEBEHENT15%E25%
A

RE(FEARKAMBEEERESHE)(TE
EMEMRZED M(EXMB/HEZE A
) PENBARE _ZZN\F—-H—H
MEIL25% B R BURB AT o

ETHBARNESEMRGERILERAER
BB MR EMRAE K EFEH15%H
B

s - BT RPE AN EENHEBARE =
TE)N\FEMFARLHEATBEARMERD
B WRER=FFX50%HBERR

RExMEFER - BEFF RIS ER
BmF#916.5%FT &
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 & & —

11. TAXATION (Cont’d)

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit (loss)

= i

11. $IE (4B
FRHIBT KA EBBRFB AT (EE) Bk

before taxation as follows: U
2010 2009
—EB-EF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ExT THET
Profit (loss) before taxation Brii A= Al (E518) 319,865 (168,811)
Tax at the applicable tax rate of 15% Z15% M EARETER
(2009: 15%) (Note) I (ZZTNF  15%) 47,980 (25,322)
(B 3E)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible e ATIA B MR A FSZ
for tax purpose E’Jffd?&“ 14,713 39,053
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose BEATTE B AR A U A
E’ﬁﬁf%g/’ (2,605) (10,619)
Under (over) provision in respect of prior year FEBEBTE (BEEE) 1,316 (1,060)
Tax effect on concessionary deduction of HaEERERBLVHFRGTE
research and development expenses (13,665) -
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RIS R IEE Y
BBRE - 9,240
Tax effect of other deductible temporary ﬂiﬁEEw\ﬁﬁ—Hﬂ/ﬂzﬁﬁq
differences not recognised ERNMBTE 16,075 2,918
Withholding tax on dividend distributed from R A — K HTE A
a subsidiary in the Mainland China BRI S BB 1,692 -
Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised &) J«Aﬁuﬂi%« HRE R IA R 1B (17,534) (910)
Utilisation of other deductible temporary E) A SR AR AR A ELAth
differences previously not recognised AR ERER (1,576) (190)
Effect of tax exemptions and concession granted AR B A b 7 7] b [ 4 48 )
to subsidiaries of different regions operating in M Rl TR THER % I
the Mainland China BENTE (1,002) (2,065)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries A E Wiﬁg?ﬂf@@
operating in different regions of the Mainland China & & /KB A
EANRITE E!’J%% 897 1,080
Recognition of deferred tax assets previously not  #& 2 LA Bl K FE R HY
recognised BEFTREE (7,677) -
Others EAh 1,703 1,441
Tax charge for the year FERIEZ W 40,317 13,566

Note:

FiEE

ZMEERPBEAMK L REE B RERFRS
HMEMEXNNBEAREANTIE -

The rate represents the tax rate applicable to the subsidiaries established
in the Mainland China which are regarded as High and New Advanced
Technology Enterprises by the local tax bureau.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZE—FF+_-_F=1+—HILEE

12. PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR

12. FhiaF| (F548)

2010 2009
—ZT-ZF —ZETNF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FETT
Profit (loss) for the year has been arrived Fraf (BE) ek
at after charging (crediting): (FTA) ¢
Staff costs fE B
Directors’ emoluments (Note 13) BE=ME (H:E13) 9,423 4,631
Other staff HiER
— Salaries and other benefits — Fre LEMEF 624,318 535,501
— Retirement benefits schemes contributions — RGBT B R 83,378 60,382
Share-based payment expense AR B 2 93 568
Total staff costs BE KA 4258 717,212 601,082
Auditor’s remuneration % EREN BN 3,000 3,000
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment  ¥1% - ME MR EREEE
(included in other operating expenses) (FFAEfM&EEST ) 23,217 13,138
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment Y BEREEITE 545,485 508,990
Amortisation of technical know-how 20 R0 o 8E
(included in administrative expenses) (FFATTEHRER) 1,360 814
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments SELNR ek ! 4,335 4,361
551,180 514,165
Write off of inventories (included in FEME GEAHEM
other operating expenses) LT H) 5,421 2,534
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses EERBATMHEENR 2,211,634 1,911,069
(Reversal of) allowance for doubtful debts RER (D) BE& (91) 4,761
Operating lease rentals in respect of EHAEYENLE
rented premises HERS 10,324 8,624
Loss on suspension of production FEEL (GTAEM
(included in other operating expenses, T BT fsEa)
see note a below) = 42,055
Reversal of impairment for other receivable and 1 [0] E i g U 30 I8 Rl (E
accrual of severance payment MEMES T
(included in other operating expenses, (GFAHMEE L -
see note b below) BT xki5Eb) = (19,716)
Net exchange (gain) loss X (le) BB (8,033) 387
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 & & —

12. PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR (Cont’d)

Note:

(@)

As a result of the financial crisis in the second half of 2008, the
Group’s open foundry business has been adversely affected and
the Group temporarily suspended certain production units during
the year to reduce operating losses. The loss on suspension of
production mainly includes depreciation of the production facilities
which has been included the total depreciation expenses separately
presented above. The Group had resumed these production since
March 2009.

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group reached
agreement with dismissed employees on severance payment and
negotiated with landlord on early termination leases in connection
of the relocation of production line. Upon settlement, a reversal
of HK$11,972,000 was recognised. In addition, other receivables
previously written off of HK$7,744,000 were recovered.

CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED # & % & F 45 R 2 7 ANNUAL REPORT 2010 — =
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12. FRim# (B518) (&)

B RE

(a)

HR-ZZENFE L FHESREE  AEE
MEERTEBZBTANEZE $%J§’\$
NERETEEBUAREEERE - FE
BRIBEELEERENE Bt ALXE
BEIMTERXER - FEEER-FZ
NEFE=ZHRIRIEZIRLE ©

REE-ZEThE+_A=1+—RHILtEE -
AN E BB E B 5B B E KBRS R
BEEGEETERRERIERLN - RE
{THE 8 SR IE & - # Bl 5K IE11,972,0007% 7T
EEMER o LbHN - 5T ATH S A L th FE W K8
7,744,0007 0 E M E ©
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13. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 13.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE B RRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZE—FF+_-_F=1+—HILEE

EENERAREHES

EMPLOYEES
Directors =
The emoluments paid or payable to the directors are as follows: ENENEEMSEIINT ¢
2010 2009
It 2 ZEENE
Performance Retirement
related benefit
incentive schemes
Name of Director Note Fees Salaries  payments contributions Total Total
BAER
EspZ (i ik ¥E&  Eue  HEER @t @t
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER THER THER THER THER THER
Executive directors BTES
SONG LIN R a 70 - - - 70 70
WANG GUOPING AT 70 1,153 260 36 1,519 671
DENG MAQ-SONG, ELVIS B b 70 1,062 325 - 1,457 -
Non-executive directors FHTES
CHEN GHENG-YU, PETER BT c 70 2,737 2,378 - 5,185 1,830
FRANK LAI NI HIUM FRANK LAI NI HIUM d 50 - - - 50 1177
ZHU JINKUN Keth d 50 - - - 50 50
JIANG WEI i d 50 - - - 50 50
LI FUzUo 3 d 50 - - - 50 50
DU WENMIN HXE 50 - - - 50 50
WEIBIN B e 50 - - - 50 -
SHI SHANBO RER e 50 - - - 50 -
ZHANG HAIPENG i e 50 - - - 50 -
KUM LOON OON BEE 210 - - - 210 233
RALPH SYTZE YBEMA RALPH SYTZE YBEMA 221 - - - 221 264
KO PING KEUNG BRH 175 - - - 175 186
WONG TAK SHING Btk f 93 - - - 93 -
LUK CHI CHEONG [iFt= f 93 - - - 93 -
1,472 4,952 2,963 36 9,423 4,631
CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED % B 4 & F 74 | 22 7] ANNUALREPORT2010 — T — T F F E H &
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 & & —

13. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES (Cont’d)

Directors (Cont’d)
Note:

(a)

Mr Song Lin had been resigned as an executive director on 4 June
2010.

Mr. Deng Mao-song, Elvis had been appointed as an executive
director on 24 August 2010.

Mr Chen Cheng-yu, Peter had been resigned as an executive
director and had been appointed as an non-executive director on
24 August 2010.

Mr. Frank Lai Ni Hium, Mr. Zhu Jinkun, Mr Jiang Wei and Mr. Li
Fuzuo had been resigned as non-executive directors on 24 August
2010.

Mr. Wei Bin, Mr. Shi Shanbo and Mr. Zhang Haipeng had been
appointed as non-executive directors on 24 August 2010.

Mr. Wong Tak Shing and Mr. Luk Chi Cheong had been appointed
as independent non-executive directors on 24 August 2010.

Performance related incentive payment is determined by reference
to the individual performance of the directors and approved by
the Remuneration Committee.

—BE A= t—RLEE

13. EEMERAfIR

BFES (8)

BE=E (&)
P &E -

RAMFEER T —
=o

ZERNANBEBERTE

MEMELER T —
ERBITEE -

TENA-tHBRER

BMEFEER _FT—TF/N\A-_THBEEE
HITEEWTRZERIFNTES -

Frank Lai Ni Hiumt4E « Kt E - BE
EERTERELTER=ZE—TF/N\/=1+H
ABEIENITES ©

WL E AEBEERKREBELEAER-Z
—RENAZTOAERERIERITES -

BERBAEERESERER_T—
“tMABERERBIIFNITES -

TENR

BRReH2EERMRRAMET - BRES
BSR4
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mE B RRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 i 2 —ZT—ZTF+—_A=+—HILFE

13. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 13. EEMERAMNREHES (4&)
EMPLOYEES (Cont’d)
Employees =]
The five highest paid individuals of the Group included one AEEBREREFALTEE—Z (ZTZA
(2009: one) executive directors and one (2009: nil) non-executive F:—R)RATESEER R (ZZEZNF:
director, details of whose emoluments are set out above. The /) ERTES  BENMEFBEIEN L
emoluments of the remaining three (2009: four) highest paid X AEFREK=ZF (ZZETNF : IH)
employees of the Group are as follows: ERFEENMENT
2010 2009
—E-=F —ETAF
HK$°000 HK$’000
F&T T
Salaries and other benefits e RHEART 5,111 6,532
Performance related incentive payments EES 1,077 936
6,188 7,468
The emoluments of the above employees are within the following FlEENB S /N TRMA :
bands:
2010 2009
—E-=F —ETNhEF
Number of Number of
employees employees
EE A BB AE
HK$ BT
1,000,001 to 1,500,000 1,000,001% 1,500,000 -
1,500,001 to 2,000,000 1,500,00122,000,000 1 3
2,000,001 to 2,500,000 2,000,001%2,500,000 2 1
14. DIVIDEND 14. B2
A final dividend of 0.5 HK cent per share totalling HK$43,948,000 FEECEZFTRARAREEFRSBMN - &
(2009: Nil) has been proposed by the directors and is subject to 5143,948,0008 T (ZZ T NF : &) - IfE
approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming annual general ARERRRENGRTHIRRBFE RS EH#
meeting. FAHER °
No dividend has been declared or paid during the year (2009: Nil). FAMESRIREEMRE(ZZTZN
FmE) e
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 & & —

15. EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share

= i

15.

BRER (EB8)

BREAR#ETRTN (BE) HERTIIH

is based on the following data: BErE
2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT T
Earnings: AR -
Earnings (loss) for the purposes of basic and TETERRN TR AR
diluted earnings (loss) per share (profit (loss) for HARFEFIRERNK
the year attributable to owners of the Company) BERT (E8)
msmaF (&EE) 272,364 (172,206)

Number of shares:

Weighted average number of shares for the
purpose of basic earnings (loss) per share

Effect of dilutive potential shares:
Share options — Equity Incentive Plan
Share options — Share Option Scheme

Weighted average number of shares for the
purpose of diluted earnings (loss) per share

K7 8H -

RIEAHERELRRT
(B518) mhntEF5

f&1p e B 8,689,479,479 7,327,643,487
BEEBRONTE

AR — IR REET S 1,401,718 -
FERE — BB R 220,241 -

AT EESREERR (BER)

B N S A 81 B

Diluted loss per share for the year ended 31 December 2009 did
not assume the exercise of the share options because inclusion
of the share options in the calculation of diluted loss per share

would result in a decrease in loss per share.

The weighted average number of shares shown above has
been arrived at after deducting 100,000,000 shares (2009:
100,000,000) held by share award scheme trust under the
Restricted Share Award Scheme as set out in Note 32(jii) and
accounted for by the Group as treasury shares held by the

Group.

CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED # B i & + & R 2

A

8,691,101,438 7,327,643,487

REE-_EZAF+-_A=+—HILFEN
tk%EﬁEITF“%k%E%HE &
ARTESRESERRTABRESEN
#h%%&ﬁ

EXFTRE IR IR BB TH A H0RR R AR
15 22 B =T B{= 7T AR I B s 32 AT R 14 A%
DEREFTEI A B RS BIRFEEFR D
A BR #9100,000,000/% f& 15 (ZZEE L F -
100,000,000) M#EEEL °

Fr
il
|
feh
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16. ¥1% -« BB R#R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE B RRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZE—FF+_-_F=1+—HILEE

Furniture  Machinery
Leasehold and and Motor Construction

buildings fixtures  equipment vehicles in progress Total

HEET HEREE HBERRE hE  ERIR @5t

HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000

TAn Thn Thn Thn TEn TEn

COST 73
At 1 January 2009 RZEENE-A-H 459,234 206,026 4,308,752 52,406 383,023 5,409,441
Exchange adjustments ERAE (67) (28) (986) (8) (56) (1,145)
Additions RE S 1742 698 741 150,437 153,618
Transfer to vendor (Note 28) BYER (fi:28) - - (155,140) - - (155,140)
Disposals/write-off HE / Him (14,205) (11,276) (63,020) 2,676) = (91,177)
Transfers between categories PEmEA 56,548 34,073 357,010 652 (448,283) -
At 31 December 2009 RZEENE+-A=1—H 501,510 230537 4,447 314 51,115 85,121 5,315,597
Exchange adjustments B mE 17,833 7,781 162,920 1,757 3,229 193,520
Additions RE 1,030 1,928 2,284 298 461,800 467,340
Disposals/write-off HE /WA (190) (6,170) (83,094) (3,755) - (93,209)
Transfers between categories HERER 47 17,832 300,556 1,250 (320,055) -
At 31 December 2010 R-E-Z2£+-A=+-R 520,600 251,908 4,829,980 50,665 230,005 5,883,248
DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT RERAE
At 1 January 2009 RZEENE-A-H 102,233 85,492 1,595,998 33,322 - 1817045
Exchange adjustments ERAE (16) (36) (258) (4) = (314)
Depreciation provided for the year FRHERRE 21912 33,028 448,384 5,666 - 508,990
Impairment loss recognised in profit or loss ~ 2REREXEANEEER - 3,762 9,376 = = 13,138
Eliminated on transfer to vendor (Note 28)  EFE ;B (Fiz28) S - (130,036) - - (130,036)
Eliminated on disposals/write-off REERESE /H0 (4,939) (7,294) (49,727) (2,134) - (64,090)
At 31 December 2009 RZEENE+-A=1-H 119,194 114952 1,873,737 36,850 - 2144733
Exchange adjustments ERE% 4,650 3,892 73,608 1,275 - 83,420
Depreciation provided for the year FRNERE 20,745 33,927 486,522 4,291 - 545,485
Impairment loss recognised in profit or loss 2R ERE RN EEER - 105 23,112 - - 23217
Eliminated on disposals/write-off P ERHSE /R (55) (6,097) (43,348) (2,956) - (52,456)
At 31 December 2010 R-E-2£+-A=+-R 144,534 146,779 2,413,626 30,460 - 2,744,399
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2010 R-E-2£+-A=+-R 376,066 105129 2,416,354 11,205 230,005 3,138,849
At 31 December 2009 RZEENFT-A=1—H 382,316 115,585 2,573,577 14,265 85,121 3,170,864
At 1 January 2009 RZEENF-A—-H 357,001 120534 2,712,754 19,084 383,023 8,592,306
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

LA MBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 i 2 =T —ZTF+-_A=+—HILFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’d) 16. Y1%¥ - BMERRE (8)
The above items of property, plant and equipment, other than Lt - BE REHE (EELIIERIN) &
construction in progress, are depreciated over their estimated EErAI RS - Rt REGTAERUER
useful lives and after taking into account their estimated residual ERTEE10%FTER T LATE -
values, ranging from zero to 10%, using the straight-line method,
as follows:
Leasehold buildings 25 to 40 years or over the HEEF 25ZF 405 3 i% A A 1H A
relevant lease terms, if shorter (HAEEE)
Furniture and fixtures 5 to 10 years REREKEE 5Z&104F
Machinery and equipment 5 to 10 years HEs & R 52104
Motor vehicles 5 to 6 years B 5264
During the year, impairment losses of HK$23,217,000 (2009: BREREE LR  FAERYE -
HK$13,138,000) have been recognised in respect of property, W5 & % 5 FE7R828,217,0008 7T (ZEE A,
plant and equipment due to physical damage and technical % : 13,138,000/ 7T) HRERIE °
obsolescence during the year.
The Group’s leasehold buildings are situated on land: REBMESEFARAL T M :
2010 2009
—E-=F —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTER FET
Outside Hong Kong on BEBIEI
— medium-term lease — FRERFR 49 376,066 382,316
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE B RRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 i 2 —ZT—ZTF+—_A=+—HILFE

17. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 17. At L EE
The Group’s prepaid lease payments comprise of land situated AEEMEN THEE BB FEZEPHELORF
outside Hong Kong on medium-term lease: BRI BB AN T3,

31/12/2010 31/12/2009 1/1/2009

—E-2F —ZEENF —ZETNEF

+=ZA=+—-H +ZA=+—H —A—H

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FTER FHET FAT

Analysed for reporting purposes as BERBEMONE

Non-current assets EREEE 169,515 168,570 174,906
Current assets REEE 4,335 4,191 4176
173,850 172,761 179,082

18. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT 18. Tt ERE
31/12/2010 31/12/2009 1/1/2009
—E-EF —ZTTNF —ZETNF
+=A=+-B +=—A=+—8 —A—H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FET FAETT FAETT

Unlisted equity investments, at cost R EMBRAEKE

YL R AN 763,141 754,092 741,698
Less: Impairment loss recognised B BERBEBE (190,000) (190,000) -
573,141 564,092 741,698
The investments mainly comprise of the Group’s 19% equity ZERETEBRRAEENER L2 (M)
interest in a fellow subsidiary, CSMC Asia Limited (“*CSMC BRAR ([EELEZE (M) HERWE
Asia”). CSMC Asia is a company incorporated in Hong Kong NEEARI19%ARHE - ZEH L2 (2M) &
which is principally engaged in manufacturing 8 inch wafers in —EREEEMA IR EXEXEKA
the Mainland China. Such investment is carried at cost less any KA B A AEESE T &E - HRAARE
impairment loss, and is not carried at fair value since the directors RETEASHFTEREN A FE - Wiz
of the Company are of opinion that the fair value of the investment RERKA AR EBEIE - mIEUA
cannot be measured reliably. FEZI 8 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

LA MBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 2 —ZE—FF+-A=+—H | FE

18. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT (Cont’d) 18. T[#EHERSE (&)

At 31 December 2010, the directors reviewed the carrying value RZE—ZEFF+_A=+—H EFEFH
of the Group’s available-for-sale investments and determined that AEEHRDERENEREEE  WEENA
no additional impairment loss was recognised in current year. The FEWERRBINGEEE - Z2BRERRE
investment was included in the Group’s open foundry segment. RASERBABERISE - AIEHER
The recoverable amount of the available-for-sale investments had BRA el eBEREREHERLE ($
been determined on the basis of their estimated present value M) EENGEERKBESRENGFTIRES
of the estimated future cash flows expected to be generated by FHE14% (ZEZNF  14%) TUETE °
the CSMC Asia with a discount rate of 14% (2009: 14%) per

annum.

19. LOANS RECEIVABLE/DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSET 19. FEWGER THEEREE

31/12/2010 31/12/2009 1/1/2009
—E—2F —EETNEF —ETNEF
+=ZA=+—-B +ZA=+—H —HA—H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHBT FAET
Variable-rate loan receivable A EES NG
from a fellow subsidiary FEER 278,249 186,248 =
Loan receivable from Star Venture [EUZStar Venture Asia
Asia Limited (“Star Venture”) Limited ([ Star Venture])
A 6,480 - -
284,729 186,248 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE B RRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZE—FF+_-_F=1+—HILEE

19. LOANS RECEIVABLE/DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSET 19. FEiEsk T4 SREE (88)

(Cont’d)

Loans receivable

On 8 September 2009, the subsidiaries of the Company and
CRH as lenders and CSMC Asia as borrower entered into a
shareholders’ loans agreement pursuant to which the lenders
agreed to provide shareholders’ loans in the aggregate amount
of US$202,000,000 to CSMC Asia on a pro rata basis according
to their respective shareholdings. As such, the subsidiary of the
Company will provide 19% or US$38,380,000 and the subsidiary
of CRH will provide 81% or US$163,620,000. The loan is
unsecured, interest bearing at LIBOR plus 1% and repayable at
a fixed maturity of 3 years. The fair value on initial recognition has
been determined based on an effective interest rate of 5% per
annum and the fair value adjustment was adjusted to the cost of
the available-for-sale investment.

Derivative financial assets

During the year, the Group has provided a loan of US$1,027,000
(equivalent to HK$7,964,000) to Star Venture Asia Limited (“Star
Venture”), an independent third party to the Group. The loan is
secured by 51% of ordinary shares of a Taiwan incorporated
company held by Star Venture (the “Pledged Shares”), bearing
fixed interest rate at 1.5% per annum and has no fixed term of
repayment. In addition, the Group has been granted an option
at nil consideration to buy the Pledged Shares at the nominal
amount of the loan at any time commencing from the date of the
agreement and expiring on the date six months after obtaining
approval from the relevant government authority. The option is
considered as a separate derivative and has been separately
accounted for as a derivative financial asset. No change in fair
value has been recognised to profit or loss for the year as the
amount involved is insignificant.

The derivative financial asset is classified into level 3 based on
the degree to which the fair value is observable. Level 3 fair value
measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that
include inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs).

e &R

R_ZEZNFENANE > KABIKBAR KR
EHEE ((EREXRA) BER EE (TM)
(ERMEBRA) ST ERERBE - Bt
EXFREREES B RERLOIRER L
#= (gM) SR 4R%E202,000,0003 7T Y % R
B e Bt - AR EIK B A RS RE19%5
38,380,000% 7T * EHEBMKIE A AR
#81%3%163,620,000 7T ° % B 3% & &K
| RMBERITRER BN EFT B ER
EEFH=FANEE SYERXFETIR
BEBRFANEEETAATFERN THES
A ERERA o

TTEEREE

FR - ANEBE R ASBRELE = FStar
Venture Asia Limited ([ Star Venture]) 32
£ 5 3k1,027,0003% 7T (18 % 77,964,000/
JC) ° ZZEFAStar VentureFEH—FKRE
VA SZ B A B 51 9% i AR ([HE48
EH)) - BEFFEE1.5%  BXEET
BRH - N AEBUTRERE TEE
T - AR R B BB R 2 AR R BUT SR P B
2 BRANEAEMEERAEROEEREBA
ZEERRD - WIHEERFERREBFEITE
TR REBUIETESREE - ARFT
FRNSHEMN MU ERFRANEBERA
HRAFEZEE -

TEEREERBERAFEABRENRZERD
BARFEIR - FEIMAFEAERBEER
i BREMEEXRENHABLIFER
AERNTISHE (BEEENEAR)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

LA MBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZT—FF+=-F=+—HILFEE

20. GOODWILL 20. HE

2010 & 2009
—E-BFR
—EBBAF
HK$’000
FHx

CARRYING AMOUNTS ;
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—BER+ZH=+—H 21,024

The goodwill at 31 December 2010 arose on acquisition in 2002
of subsidiaries engaged in semiconductor business. The Group
determines that the goodwill, which had been allocated to two
cash generating units (“CGU”), including two subsidiaries engaging
in 1C design and IC testing and packaging business amounting
to HK$7,539,000 and HK$13,485,000 (2009: HK$7,539,000 and
HK$13,485,000), was not impaired by comparing the carrying
amount of the CGU including the goodwill, with its recoverable
amount.

The recoverable amount of the relevant CGU had been determined
on the basis of value in use calculation. The value in use
calculation use cash flow projections which were based on
approved financial budgets covering a 5-year period, and the
discount rate of approximately 14% (2009: 14%). Zero growth
was projected for cash flows beyond the 5-year period. Other
key assumptions for the value in use calculations included the
budgeted sales and gross margins, such estimations were based
on past performance and management’s expectations for the
market’s development. Management believed that any reasonably
possible change in any of these assumptions would not cause the
aggregate carrying amount of the CGU to exceed the aggregate
recoverable amount of the CGU.

CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED # B 7 & + & [R A A

RZE—ZEFE+_-_A=+—HHREETIX
BER-_ZEE-FWENEFERBELHNKH
BRAl - AEEHReELESN (BIED
B) miREESRE AT E S EEL L ERE -
BESEEMEREEELN (BRERRL
EENEBERFTREXNE R AR R EER
R B AR RIPSE N IR AE - M{ER
REABEUANEE S A7,539,000% 7T &
13,485,000/ 7t (= & £ N, & : 7,539,000
77T 513,485,000/ 7T) ©

HARCELBEMMAIKESEDIRERE
BEtEEET - FAEENEZRARESR
=TER - mARETER TR RSB T F A
BIEE KRR EL14% (ZZFNF - 14%)
FE e AT ENRERELERETEN A
ToFHEENEZNEMEIEBRRRER
BB EEREMNE  ZE G RERT
FAREEEBHMSERRENEHEL - 18
BRE  ZEBEMNIMNAEAEESH T
BYRRSELBENMNEARRAEBDZACE
A EBRTA AU E S B4R EE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE B RRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZE—FF+_-_F=1+—HILEE

21. TECHNICAL KNOW-HOW 21. Ffismask
2010 2009
—EB-EF —ETNEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THExT T
cosT A
At 1 January w—H—H 3,458 44,389
Exchange adjustments & 5 A% 124 (6)
Development costs A EE R A 19,932 =
Transfer to vendor (Note 28) BT ER (Mi7E28) = (40,925)
At 31 December R+—_A=+—H 23,514 3,458
AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT B R RE
At 1 January mR—A—H 2,643 42,760
Exchange adjustments PE 5 2 96 (6)
Provided for the year FNRE 1,360 814
Impairment loss recognised in profit or loss EREERERNRERE = =
Eliminated on transfer to vendor (Note 28) 88T F Ry (MisE2s) = (40,925)
At 31 December Rt+t—_A=+—H 4,099 2,643
CARRYING AMOUNT AR E E
At 31 December Wt+—-_HA=+—H 19,415 815
At 1 January n—H—H 815 1,629
Amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis over their M DREMAGAERAFHNERFUER
estimated useful lives of four to five years and included in EEHR  WETAZE ZERERHNITEHEA
administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of A o
comprehensive income.
22. INVENTORIES 22. 58
31/12/2010 31/12/2009 1/1/2009
—E2-EF —ZTEREF —ETNEF
+=ZA=+—-H +ZHA=+—H —H—H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET
Raw materials R 208,400 164,707 248,987
Work in progress ER M 306,948 243,174 261,124
Finished goods 2K M 214,822 194,969 302,610
730,170 602,850 812,721
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

LA MBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZT—FF+=-F=+—HILFEE

23. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

23. FEER « I RFEMNRIE

31/12/2010 31/12/2009 1/1/2009

—E-EF —ETNEF —ETNEF

+=ZA=+—-H +=ZA=+—H —A—H

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FERT TET TFET

Trade debtors 2 5 R AR 1,073,500 928,168 798,039
Less: allowance for doubtful receivables Jg, : FEUL R BR B & (37,035) (36,314) (84,273)
1,036,465 891,854 763,766

Deposits and prepayments e RIEMFIE 195,061 104,311 112,665
1,231,526 996,165 876,631

The Group generally allows credit periods ranging from 30 to
90 days to its trade customers, which may be extended to 180
days for selected customers depending on their trade volume and
settlement terms. The aged analysis of trade debtors, including
notes receivable, net of allowance for doubtful debts, presented
based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period, is

AEEGETHEIEPHNEER—RABI0X

0K HREFMNEE

BFRENZHEREEIRAME - RRE
HIRZEZARC MR REREENE SR

HAR] E 180K -

B (BREKRER) SREOTAOT

as follows:
31/12/2010 31/12/2009
—E-EF —EENF
+=BA=+—H +=-A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
F&T TET
0 - 60 days 0ZE 60X 621,497 549,424
61 — 90 days 61290K 108,783 103,753
91 - 180 days 91E180K 293,858 227,562
Over 180 days 180 KM 12,327 11,115
1,036,465 891,854
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

hE B RRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZE—FF+_-_F=1+—HILEE

23. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (Cont’d) 23. FEUERSX « & RIEFRIE (&)

160

Included in the Group’s debtors are receivables of HK$48,889,000
(2009: HK$14,267,000) due from a fellow subsidiary arising from
transactions carried out in the ordinary course of business of the
Group. The amounts is unsecured, interest-free and are repayable
within the credit periods similar to those offered to the Group’s
customers.

Included in the Group’s debtors are receivables of HK$92,100,000
(2009: HK$85,052,000) which are past due at the reporting
date but are regarded as not impaired as there has not been
a significant change in the credit standing of the debtors. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these receivables.

Included in Group’s trade debtors are notes receivables with the
carrying amount of HK$512,303,000 (2009: HK$363,947,000),
in which HK$25,773,000 (2009: HK$88,961,000) are discounted
with full recourse to obtain general funding. The amounts are
unsecured, interest free and with a maturity period of 180 days.

The credit quality of trade debtors that are neither past due nor
impaired has been assessed by reference to historical information
about counterparty default rates. The existing counterparties do
not have significant defaults in the past.

91% (2009: 90%) of the debtors are neither past due nor impaired
and have either been subsequently settled or maintain active
trade business relationship with the Group.

Included in the Group’s debtors are receivables with carrying amounts
of HK$50,660,000 (2009: HK$49,018,000), HK$149,553,000 (2009:
HK$74,702,000) and HK$10,542,000 (2009: HK$21,615,000) which
are denominated in United States dollar, Renminbi and Hong Kong
dollar respectively, being the foreign currency of the respective
group entities.

AEBERKERBREANEBRBEEKA
BAETHNRZMEENEKRZRKE
A B X TH48,889,000/8 T (Z T T N & ¢
14,267,000/ 7T) c ZEHIEAEER - &
BERERBGETAEERFHEAENEEHRA

fEiE -

AEBEREUERRBIERRE B @R
HY & UK BR 3092,100,0008 7T (ZZEZ L4 -
85,052,000/ 7t) - HAAEB AKE R
WHESRNEEH HILZIRBERER B
B o NEBWE % E KRR A E K
e

AEEMNESRERERBEEREDE
7%512,303,000% Tt (= T T L F:
363,947,000/ JT) W fE W E - H
25,773,000/ 7L (ZZFZ N4 : 88,961,000
BIT) it (AR o BRE) UBE—R
BE - ZRNBAEER 22 RK180KA
FIHY o

RARBH AN ERENEZREETNER
BRNESEHFHOBEEREETER]R
ELFHE - REBFHIRNBELES AR
FOER °

91% (ZZTT/LF : 90%) B FE Y R = K
BHRAYERE BERBRENIEFH
—HEASERSEREZIEBHER -

7N ER (B #Y) FE WBR 5B 4R AR I {8 750,660,000
B (= T T N F 49,018,000
JL) ~ 149,553,000 L (= T T N F -
74,702,000/ 7t) }&10,542,000%8 7T (= &
TNF 1 21,615,000 70) WEKERR © 5
RIAZETT - ARBRBITAEN (BIEEE
EEEBINE) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

LA MBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZT—FF+=-F=+—HILFEE

23. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (Cont’d) 23. FEUHRSX « & RIEFRIE (&)

Aging of trade debtors which are past due but not

Ef B KR ERE 5 AR RS

impaired
31/12/2010 31/12/2009
—E-EF —ETNF
+=A=+—-H +=-—A=+—8H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
0 - 60 days 0ZE 60X 76,483 66,056
61 — 90 days 61E90K 4,326 6,436
91 — 180 days 91£2180K 6,962 10,250
Over 180 days 180K 4,329 2,310
92,100 85,052

In determining the recoverability of a receivable, the Group
considers whether there has been adverse change in the credit
standing of the debtor from the date credit was initially granted.
The concentration of credit risk is limited as the Group’s customer
base comprises of a large number of customers. Accordingly, the
directors believe that there is no further credit provision required
in excess of the allowance for doubtful debts already provided
for in the consolidated financial statements.

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually
impaired receivables due from certain trade debtors with an
aggregate amount of HK$37,035,000 (2009: HK$36,314,000)
which are in financial difficulties. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these receivables.

CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED # & 7 & + & [R & A

RETRUEREE A KREER  AEEZEE
BEHEANERRLERTELERERRER
BEEMIFES - HRAKEN TS ER
BRAEEF HEERARETAR-
It EFERRBREESRAMBREMFLAR
ARE SN - BAFHBIMEERE -

REBRBRIERERKE TESEBSANERR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

hEMBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 2 —Z—ZTF+_A=+—HILFE

23.

24,

DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (Cont’d)

23. FEWAR « I RFEMNRIE ()

Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts RIRRAEE
2010 2009
—E-ZF —EThF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FTER FAT
Balance at beginning of the year FY 36,314 34,273
Exchange differences PE 3 =R 1,102 (5)
Amounts written off as uncollectible WEE TR O 5 (290) (2,715)

(Decrease) increase in allowance recognised REEZH R P HER R

in profit or loss CRi) 180 (91) 4,761
Balance at end of the year FIREERR 37,035 36,314

BANK BALANCES/RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS

Bank balances carry interest at market rates ranging from 0% to
2.20% per annum (2009: 0% to 1.98% per annum). The restricted
bank deposits carry interest at market rates ranging from 0.01%
to 2.79% per annum (2009: 0.01% to 2.79% per annum).

Restricted bank deposits of HK$13,577,000 (2009: HK$8,603,000)
were pledged to banks for long-term payables (Note 28), letters
of credit and guarantee issued by those banks for the Group and
for employees’ mortgage loans.

Included in the Group’s bank balances are balances with
carrying amounts of HK$151,733,000 (2009: HK$432,473,000),
HK$108,296,000 (2009: HK$19,197,000) and HK$9,785,000
(2009: HK$12,417,000) which are denominated in United States
dollar, Renminbi and Hong Kong dollar respectively, being the
foreign currency of the respective group entities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

LA MBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZT—FF+=-F=+—HILFEE

25. CREDITORS AND ACCRUED CHARGES 25. FE{TERFA R FESTER (8)

The aged analysis of trade creditors based on the invoice date
which are included in creditors and accrued charges at the end
of the reporting date is as follows:

REE B RENEAMEAERTEENE
SENERORES T (REZAHME)
L

31/12/2010 31/12/2009

—g-%F —TIAE
+=A=+-8 +=A=+—~

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHT

0 - 60 days 0&60K 677,669 632,185
61 - 90 days 61£90K 192,843 92,278
91 - 180 days 91£180K 254,562 156,311
Over 180 days 180K £ 19,897 31,862
1,144,971 912,636

The other creditors and accrued charges mainly include:

HitENERAREFERAETZEE

31/12/2010 31/12/2009

—E-=F —ETNF
+=A=+—8 +=ZA=+—H
HK$°000 HK$’000
FTER FAT
Payables for acquisition of property, WEEM = -« BB Mk
plant and equipment B FE 1T BR X 103,054 87,024
Accrued staff costs FERTE B AR 142,545 81,360
Deposits received Bz e 49,004 54,026
Current portion of long-term payable (Note 28) K HARE f~F BR A BN EA SR 19
(Mt7E28) 17,188 17,036
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries FEAH R 2 B B A B FRIE 21,727 9,269
Amount due to a group company of JEAS — 2 B8~ B FEIE A%
a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary A& R A & B A RIRIE 134,124 162,435
CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED % 8 % % F 4 [£ 24 71 ANNUAL REPORT 2010 — & — = & F & # &
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25. CREDITORS AND ACCRUED CHARGES (Cont’d)

The amounts due to a group company of a non-controlling shareholder
of a subsidiary and fellow subsidiaries were unsecured, interest-
free and are mainly repayable within the credit periods similar to
the Group’s suppliers.

Included in the Group’s trade creditors are notes payable with
a carrying amount of HK$545,344,000 (2009: HK$357,444,000)
which are unsecured, interest free and with a maturity period of
180 days.

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 7 to 180
days. The notes payable have maturity period of 180 days. The
Group has financial risk management policies in place to ensure
that all payables within the credit timeframe.

Included in the Group’s creditors are creditors with a carrying amount
of HK$29,851,000 (2009: HK$18,384,000), HK$227,409,000 (2009:
HK$133,492,000) and HK$11,775,000 (2009: HK$9,186,000) which
are denominated in United States dollar, Renminbi and Hong Kong
dollar respectively, being the foreign currency of the respective
group entities.

CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED % & it & + & R 2

e I - N =RE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ﬁv?\éﬂﬂi%iﬁ%ﬁﬁi

For the year ended 31 December 2010 & —

25. FEMIRARRESTER (&)

e — %MT%QT?H (R E0E SENCTPN

R RKERERAT AEER - 28 KK
Tﬁé,\ﬁééﬁi$’§l1 tERERAENEESR
fE& o

AEEMNESENERBEERRDE
#545,344,0008 (= & T Nh F:
357,444,000% 7T) MENZE - HAEK
- B ERN180KAEIE] o

BERRNTHEERATEIS0K - ENE
BR800 RN EIE - NEE B ) E B R B
EEBR 0 UWRRIAERMERREESHR
g

5iR

AEBMEMNEREREERAE 29,851,000

B oT(Z F T N 18,384,000

JL) + 227,409,000% T (= T T N F -

133,492,000/ 7T) K&%11,775,000% 7T (=

TENF 9,186,000/ 7T) BER R © 9

IAET - ARBRBTAEMN (IZESE
EEEAINE) o
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 & & —

= i

26. BANK BORROWINGS 26. SRITIER
31/12/2010 31/12/2009 1/1/2009
—E-EF —ETNF —EENF
+=—B=+—-H +=ZA=+—H —H—H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T T
(restated) (restated)
(E31)) (&%)
Bank loans IRITIEX
Secured AHEHA 25,773 88,961 128,603
Unsecured AR 1,778,039 2,013,574 2,300,878
1,803,812 2,102,535 2,429,481
Carrying amount repayable*: FE(S B SIAR E A
Within one year —FA 353,812 627,535 515,891
More than one vyear, ZR—F BB B
but not exceeding two years Y 650,000 325,000 438,590
More than two years, LI F BT BB
but not exceeding five years e 300,000 650,000 975,000
1,303,812 1,602,535 1,929,481
Carrying amount of bank loans that REBEE NATRA
are repayable within five years RipzmBAE (8=
from date of agreement (within two T—TF+A=
to three years from 31 December +—HEME=F
2010) but contain a repayment N) BRAFREE
on demand clause (shown under BEEHEEZENE
current liabilities) BIERAIRITER
B ARE(E 500,000 500,000 500,000
1,803,812 2,102,535 2,429,481
Less: Amounts due within one year B OREEE T
shown under current liabilities R—F R EIHRY
IR (853,812) (1,127,535) (1,015,891)
Amount due after one year shown as EMBEEFIRR
non-current liabilities —F & B HARRIR 950,000 975,000 1,418,590

dates set out in the loan agreements.

At
H o
Ean

CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED 2 & i & + & R 2 8] ANNUAL REPORT 2010 = —
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

hE B RRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZE—FF+_-_F=1+—HILEE

26. BANK BORROWINGS (Cont’d)

Note:

(@)

CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED #= & {# &

The bank loans include Hong Kong dollar revolving credit and
term loan facilities of HK$975,000,000 (2009: HK$1,300,000,000),
which carry interest at floating rate based on HIBOR plus a margin.
The average interest rate for the year is 0.78% (2009: 1.39%). The
loans have been guaranteed by CRH since 19 March 2008. Under
the terms of the loan facilities agreements, CRH, the controlling
shareholder of the Company, is required to remain as a majority
beneficial owner of the issued share capital of the Company and
shall maintain its management control over the Company. The loan
has maturity date on 14 March 2012.

The bank loans include United States dollar, Hong Kong dollar and
RMB floating rate borrowings of HK$3,039,000, HK$800,000,000 and
HK$25,773,000 (2009: Nil, HK$600,000,000 and HK$202,535,000)
which carry interest based on LIBOR, HIBOR and People’s Bank of
China Lending rate plus margin respectively. The effective interest
rates ranged from 1.08% to 1.64% (2009: 1.15% to 3.51%) per
annum and have maturity date ranging from on demand to three
years from the end of reporting period.

At 31 December 2010, the Group had unutilised bank loan facilities
of HK$1,328,195,000 (2009: HK$1,975,567,000).

Included in the Group’s bank loans are loans with carrying amounts
of HK$800,000,000 (2009: Nil) and Nil (2009: HK$113,574,000)
which are denominated in Hong Kong dollar and Renminbi
respectively, being the foreign currencies of the respective group
entities.

26. R1T

&= (&)

M

(@)

BOEREEELBREEREHER
& F 88975,000,0007% 7t (Z T T 1L F ¢
1,300,000,000%8 7t) (IR BB RITRZEHFE
BNBLZEF R L) - FRMHFHFE
50.78% (ZETNF :1.39%) - XS &
REZZETNF=ZA+IAEHEHEERE
R BBEERREBRGER - NARKIER
IRREBEEBERBEERNRREEITRA
MAZHESEEA  WAEBERFHAR
AIMERLGE ERIPE AT ——F
=A+mA -

BITEREEIIUGBRITRAERE - &
BIRITREFRERFBRARRITERFER
MEABEENET BTRAREZHF
= {& 3,039,000/ Jt * 800,000,000/ JT
§25,773,000/8 7 (T NE : TH T
600,000,000 7T }202,535,000/8 JT) ° &
BAENTF1.08EE1.4E (ZTTHF
1.15EE351F)  WRERERBEHRE
HRFRT = FREIH -

R-E-—ZTE+-_A=+—H KXEEHK
FARITIERA1,328,195,0008 T (—EF
FLEE : 1,975,567,000/87T) °

AEBNROERRIEEDEASR
800,000,000 T (ZETHE : THT) &
T (CTETNE 113,574,000/ 7T) B
B ARIUBTRARE BEMN (S E
SEEREMINEG) o

FAHEMBRAT ANNUALREPORT2010 —E —ZE FE W&



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 & & —

= i

27. PROVISIONS 27. #Bi&

Staff Employee

housing termination
benefits benefit Total
EIGEREFN EEERBER #Et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET TET FHET

(Note a) (Note b)

(MtzFa) (Mf3Eb)
At 1 January 2009 RZEZTNF—H—H 29,204 10,099 39,303
Exchange adjustments VE R = (1) 1)
Provided for the year FNEE - 992 992
Utilisation of provisions EREHE (1,876) (3,745) (5,621)
Write back of provisions Ol Bl (9,625) = (9,625)
At 31 December 2009 RZZEZNFE+=_A=1T—H 17,703 7,345 25,048
Exchange adjustments TE 58 - 65 65
Utilisation of provisions ) A (1,588) (647) (2,235)
At 31 December 2010 N-—ZE—=S&+-HA=+—H 16,115 6,763 22,878

The amount includes provision for staff housing benefits and

ERcHRREMETIERRHBERESH

provisions for employee termination benefit.

(@)

The provision for staff housing benefits represents
management’s best estimate of the liabilities of certain
subsidiaries established in the Mainland China in respect
of housing allowances available to the remaining eligible
staff for the purchase of residential properties, based on
the local government policy in this regard. The outflow is
expected upon the receipt of application to be submitted
by the eligible staff for such allowance.

During the year ended 31 December 2009, management
reconsidered the staff housing benefits and, as a result,
determined that the provision for staff housing benefits to
the extent of HK$9,625,000 previously made is no longer
required. Such provision had been written back for the year
ended 31 December 2009.

CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED 2 & 7§ &

E T AR A

BtE R -

(@)
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BB BEBUR - stE TR B AR /Y
MEBARATEENEGERETRHEEA
FEMENTEEZUNEFEHORE
fhEr o MEEE éﬁiﬂé\lﬁ‘fﬁ?‘aﬁﬁi
BRI MR - FIEHRANL SR -
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E -EREENEREEIXERA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

hE B RRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZE—FF+_-_F=1+—HILEE

27.

28.

PROVISIONS (Cont’d)

(b) The provisions for employee termination benefit represents
management’s best estimate of the liabilities in relation to
restructuring activities of subsidiaries which are to be utilised
to meet restructuring expenses, including staff redundancy,
in accordance with the restructuring plans adopted when
such subsidiaries were acquired in prior years.

LONG-TERM PAYABLES

In previous years, the Group acquired property, plant and
equipment and technical know-how and incurred long-term
payable which were repayable over a period of 10 to 12 years.
Due to the relocation of manufacturing facilities in prior years,
certain of these assets have been impaired as at 31 December
2008. In last year, the Group entered into an agreement with the
vendor of these assets to revise the terms of the outstanding
long-term payable and reduce the amount due to the vendor
to HK$45,430,000 by transferring the related property, plant
and equipment and technical know-how with a carrying amount
of HK$25,104,000 back to the vendor. The revised payable is
non-interest bearing and repayable by installments in three years
commencing from October 2009. The present value of the revised
amount is HK$42,814,000 estimated using an interest rate of
5.40% at initial recognition.

CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED #= & {# &

27.

28.

F B B 2 7 ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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b) EBEBBEMNIEAEEEHHELTF
ERRBEMRMNARIELAREMRET
BESREATFREREZSHE QR
BATRMNEAAEMBAE - UXNE
HER (BRREEEME) -

REAFEMARIR

RBEFE  AKBEEEME  WERRE
LA R B ily A B AR B T & - — F EAR(E
ENRAEMEERE AR E—FERERHE
BE FTZREEEER=ZEZT/N\F+=A
=t+—HRE - REF AEEHEZEEE
ME RN — D WEFIREERERE
1~ BR T8 &9 16 5% 3F 37 38 12 AR T {8.25,104,000
BITHBEBYE  BERZEREMNNE
HETES  RMEEMERREBHRE
45,430,000/ 7T ° £&EFT BN RIBR R B
BEZZEENFTAR=ZFASEE - B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

LA MBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZT—FF+=-F=+—HILFEE

28. LONG-TERM PAYABLES (Cont’d) 28. REAFEFTARIE (&)
At the end of reporting period, the carrying amount of the RBEEHEBAR RFTREASRLRE A
outstanding consideration with an aggregate undiscounted 17,628,000 7T (ZZZ L4 : 34,072,000
principal amount of HK$17,628,000 (2009: HK$34,072,000), BIT) BNETEARERENREERT -

which are non-interest bearing, are as follows:

31/12/2010 31/12/2009 1/1/2009
—EB-2F —ZTENF —EThE
+=A=+—-HB +ZA=+—H —HR—H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT FHT
The present value of long term RHEIEA R
payable is as follows: WEWNT :
Within one year —F 2R 17,188 17,036 8,462
More than one vear, Z R —F BT BIERF
but not exceeding two years - 15,324 8,760
More than two year, ZAMEETBARF
but not exceeding five years - = 26,282
More than five years ZRAF - = 24,414
17,188 32,360 67,918
Less: Amount due within one year B RN ERR R
included in creditors and EEtEA
accrued charges shown A ERR
under current liabilities —FNE R
I (FIA
mEAREET) (17,188) (17,036) (8,462)
Amount due after one year shown as R —F1& 2| Hia) 18
non-current liabilities GItEIERBBE) - 15,324 59,456

CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED 2 )8 i & F & B 2 7] ANNUAL REPORT 2010 T TEFEHRS
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mE B RRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZE—FF+_-_F=1+—HILEE

29. DEFERRED TAXATION 29. EEHIE
The following are the major deferred tax (liabilities) assets UNTAAFERBAFEEHANEZRT
recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior HIE (AfE) BEREZE) -
years:
Withholding
tax on Accelerated Allowance/ Other
undistributed tax impairment temporary
profit depreciation on assets differences Total
AR B & BE Hith
EMHE RERE BE/HAE HBREER st

HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
TR TERT FERT TERT FRERT

At 1 January 2009 R-_ZEZh&E—F—H (4,712) (©) 7,304 11,285 13,871
Exchange adjustments fE 5 R = - 1 - 1
Credit to profit or loss RiBzEHE A - 6 2,649 5,461 8,116
At 31 December 2009 RZZEENFTZA=T—H (4,712) - 9,954 16,746 21,988
Exchange adjustments 0E i gk — = 347 1,226 1,573
Credit to profit or loss PEZEREA = = 5,527 14,110 19,637
At 31 December 2010 R-Z2-F5+=-A=+-H (4,7112) - 15,828 32,082 43,198

Other temporary differences mainly include deferred income on

HERMEZRFrZ0EAEE TR
certain government grants which has been taxed upon receipts. SRR A (RUELRF B &iFi) -

170 CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED 25 & {#{ & + & R 2 7] ANNUAL REPORT 2010 T TEFEHRSE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

LA MBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZT—FF+=-F=+—HILFEE

29. DEFERRED TAXATION (Cont’d) 29. IREHIIA (48)

The following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances for
financial reporting purposes.

ATRARHEREELNRTEHBELERD
w7

31/12/2010 31/12/2009 1/1/2009

—E-ZF ZETNF —EENF

+=HA=+—HB +=-A=+—H —A—8

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

F&T T FHEIT

Deferred tax assets BEETRIBEE 47,910 26,700 18,589
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEA & (4,712) 4,712) (4,718)
43,198 21,988 13,871

At 31 December 2010, the Group had unused tax losses of
HK$286,796,000 (2009: HK$363,781,000) available to offset
against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of such losses due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams. Losses of HK$28,211,000, HK$45,865,000,
HK$72,039,000 and HK$136,813,000 will expire in 2011, 2012,
2013 and 2014 respectively. Other losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.

At 31 December 2010, the Group also had other unrecognised
deductible temporary differences of HK$376,114,000 (2009:
HK$483,390,000), mainly arising from impairment losses on
property, plant and equipment, technical know-how, write down
of inventories to net realisable value and allowance for doubtful
debts. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation
to such deductible temporary differences as it is not probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilised.

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on dividends
declared and distributed in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries from January 2008 onwards to non-PRC residents.
Deferred taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of temporary differences
attributable to accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries
amounting to HK$373,274,000 (2009: HK$115,146,000) as the
Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED 2= & &

S THERRAR

R_E—ZEF+-_A=+—H A&EEAEX
& /3 i T8 55 18286,796,000/8 T (—TZ N,
4 : 363,781,000/ Jr) A K 88 R 2K g A o
HRARENELERL MU EREBE
BRRELRHIEE E - £51828,211,000%8
I~ 45,865,000/ JT 72,039,000/ 7T M
136,813,000 T D RIR =T ——F + =
T——F - =FR-FT-HFRH-
HEfEsianl & EaEE - B I ERRR o

RIE—FBF+-_A=+—8 A&EERH
Ho{th R 1 3R BT 0 B 1% = 88376,114,000
BT (ZEZ LA ¢ 483,390,000 70)  E
SR - B REE - B AEA R EE
B WRATEENERFERRERBENE
A o NIRRT BEEE A T 0 E B 1 2= B A
RERINERTER - L\t ZE 08
EH | = ERREAEERIEEE

BREFRCEMSHE BT NF—
B—B#  3EBEWEE R R FTHECE ) A
FEERSIR LSRR S ANHZEN
ot o BB A 7N S [ AT 428 48 2 B B A RE A B
MEERMEEZERT R ERG T2 RE -
I A R B BT BB A R) R AR s A A R
1% 2 373,274,000 T (Z T T N F:
115,146,000/ 70) R4 & B IS R & 1B LB
TR TE R -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE B RRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZE—FF+_-_F=1+—HILEE

30. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACT

31.

On 24 November 2008, the Group and CRH issued a financial
guarantee to the extent of US$140 million to a bank in respect
of a term loan facility agreement granted to a fellow subsidiary,
CSMC Asia, of which US$26.6 million (representing the portion
of the financial guarantee covered by the Group) was attributable
to the Group. The fair value of the financial guarantee contract at
initial recognition of HK$10,790,000 was capitalised as investment
cost of the available-for-sale investment. CSMC Asia repaid the
loan and cancelled the undrawn portion of the facility during the
year ended 31 December 2009. An amount of HK$1,790,000 has
been released to profit or loss for the year ended 31 December
2009 up to the date of cancellation of the facility. The remaining
balance of HK$9,000,000 was adjusted to the cost of the
available-for-sale investment as return of investment since the
fair value of the financial guarantee on initial recognition was
previously treated as deemed contribution to CSMC Asia.

SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

30. HAIRIREY

RZBEENE+—AZ+WHE AEE R
EHEERRTRARKBAR (AEFEH L
() MEBEFRRE ER —MIEITE
& %8#£140,000,0003F T BF FE IR - E
#126,600,0003 7T (A8 & A4 & B FT{E L 8
MRS ) AAREEAE - ZBESEE
RE DRV HEREH A F{E10,790,00078
TTHENME A HEHERENRERA - #
BEE (DM BEEEERTEUEHEZE=-F
THEFT-_AZ+T—HIEFENARSHRME
iy o BEEUHRLE B H - A#1,790,000
BITHNCEEERRITTABRE_STNF
TZAZT—BHLEFEMNBRRA - ARZ
B BERN S EREN R FELAES
BAEMZEE L2 (N) JTEHNE - W45
9,000,000/ L B {E &% & B R AL = 7]
HHERERAS o

31. KAFRKRE

Number Nominal value
of shares of shares
B#HEE BHEE
HK$’000
FExT
Shares of HK$0.10 each £ 120.1038 T 19 IR 17
Authorised: JETE ¢
At 1 January 2009 R-ZEZAF—F—H 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
Increase during the year F A IE N 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
At 31 December 2009 and R-ZBEZENE+-_HA=+—HBK
31 December 2010 —ZE-ZTF+-_A=+—H 20,000,000,000 2,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEETREHEE
At 1 January 2009 R-ZBEZAF—F—H 5,855,209,864 585,521
Shares issued under allotment RIE LA R B 35 1T
of right shares KR 15 2,929,447,319 292,945
Shares issued under Equity B D B ET 21317
Incentive Plan B RZ (D 4,744,775 474
At 31 December 2009 R-EEhE+=-BA=+—A 8,789,401,958 878,940
Shares issued under Equity BE IR D B ET 21317
Incentive Plan AL (D 150,750 15
At 31 December 2010 N-_E—ZEF+=-_A=+—H 8,789,552,708 878,955

CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED #= & {# &
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LA MBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZT—FF+=-F=+—HILFEE

31. SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY (Cont’d) 31. EATKRE (4§)

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders of
the Company on 20 August 2009, the authorised share capital
of the Company had been increased from HK$10,000,000 to
HK$20,000,000 by creation of 10,000,000,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.10 each rank pari passu in all respects with the existing
shares of the Company.

To strengthen the Company’s capital base and working capital
position, the Company raised approximately HK$439,417,000
before expenses of HK$1,800,000 by way of the rights issue of
2,929,447,319 rights shares at the subscription price of HK$0.15
per rights share on the basis of one rights share for every two
existing shares for the year ended 31 December 2009. The
proceeds from the rights issue were applied towards payment to
finance the operating and capital expenditure for CSMC Asia and
used in capital expenditure and working capital of the Group.

CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED # B 7 & + & [R A A

BEARRBREAZEZAFNA_+HE
B —IBLRRER  ARAAETRAE
# $%10,000,000,000/% & f% M {E0.107 T

VEBAR (TEFTA A EEEARRBR ARG
ZHERE#Z) B 810,000,000 T i1 =
20,000,000/ 7T °

BRERRARNERERREEE AR
AAREBUBE—TEEAF+=_A=+
—BIEFESRRIR ARG E —RHER
BRHEEEZRABESTRHEKARHD0.15E
JCHEA%2,929,447, 31908 AR B 10+ &R LY
439,417,000% 7t (1B 7 21,800,000 7T
AT) o HRFTERIBE AR AEMN L2 (&
M EEREAFAXREEES ARSI E
ENERARAZREEER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE B RRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZE—FF+_-_F=1+—HILEE

32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(i)

CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED #= & {# &

Equity Incentive Plan

The Company, as approved by its shareholders by way of
ordinary resolution, adopted an “Equity Incentive Plan” (the
“Plan”) on 8 May 2004. Under the Plan the Company may
allocate the Company’s shares to full time employees of
the Company and its subsidiaries, and the directors (the
“participants”). The objective of the Plan is to share the pride
of ownership among the executives and employees of the
Group and to reward their performance and contribution.
The term of the Plan is 10 years from the date of adoption.

Under the Plan, the total number of shares which may fall
to be issued must not exceed 15% of the shares of the
Company in issue from time to time. The initial total plan
amount, as approved by the shareholders on 8 May 2004 by
way of ordinary resolution, is fixed at 246,900,000 shares.
Furthermore, The total number of Shares issued and to be
issued to any Selected Employee in any twelve (12) month
period pursuant to any Awards shall not exceed one (1) per
cent. of the total number of Shares in issue.

In general, the shares allocated under the Plan will vest
in equal portions over a period of four years commencing
from the date of the grant or in such other proportions as
the Remuneration Committee may otherwise specify at the
time of the allocation of shares at intervals of every twelve
calendar months to the participants. Shares allocated will
only be issued once they vest and formal applications from
the respective participants are received. An administration
fee of US$0.01 per share is payable by the participant upon
application. Such vested and applied for shares will be
issued to the participants as bonus shares.

No shares were allocated under the Plan in the year 2010
and 2009.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

LA MBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZT—FF+=-F=+—HILFEE

32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

(i) Equity Incentive Plan (Cont’d)

Details of the shares under the Plan are as follows:

32. Uiz 893X 5 (48)

() RRBYEE@HETEI (&)
AHEIIETHRDFBAT

Outstanding Outstanding
at Allocated Exercised Lapsed at Exercise
1 January during during during 31 December price Exercisable
2010 the year the year the year 2010 (in HKS) Grant date until
RZ2-%% R=2-%%
-A-H +=A=1-A iR AT
HAGE FREAR  ERMEAR  FREAXN HAGE (1) RiLBH #1ER
'000 '000 000 000 '000
TR TR TR TH Th
Managements and employees  EEER{ES 964 - (44) 8) 912 0.078 1 October 2003 7 May 2013
8% ZB-cF
tA-A LAtA
550 - (107) 1] 436 0.078 26 January 2005 7 May 2013
Z2RRE  ZB-ZF
-A=17H AR
- - - - - 0078  2January 2006 7 May 2013
ZERRE 2RI
-R=R ERtA
384 - - - 384 0.078 16 May 2006 7 May 2013
ZEERE ZB-ZE
BRTRA EAtH
Total | 1,898 - (151) (15) 1,782
Exercisable at the end of the year  ERAA{ERE 1,732
Weighted average exercise MEEAHE 0.078 - 0.078 0.078 0.078
price (HKS) (&7
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mE B RRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 i 2 —ZT—ZTF+—_A=+—HILFE

32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d) 32. IR Z{893%c 5 (48)

() Equity Incentive Plan (Cont’d) (i) RxiEEEETEl (&)
QOutstanding QOutstanding
at Allocated Exercised Lapsed at Exercise

1 January during during during the 31 December price Exercisable
2009 the year the year year 2009 (in HKS) Grant date until

R-2TNE RTENE
imE TZA=t-A (e ki3
HAGE FREAR  FRER  FREXM HAGE (A7) it A E BIER

000 000 000 '000 '000

R TR TR TR TR

Managements and employees ~ EEERES 3,565 - 2,339) (262) 964 0.078 1 0Qctober 2008 7 May 2013
Z%%= “E-cf
TA-A 1AtA
1,142 - (633) (59) 550 0078 26 January 2005 7 May 2013
“8ERE ZE-=
o I N RAtA
1,371 - (1,3M) - - 0.078 2 January 2006 7 May 2013
“IENE ZF=
-AZH RAtA
884 - (500) - 384 0.078 16 May 2006 7 May 2013

“IENE CE3-ZF
TAtiA LAtH

Total a8 6,962 : 4743) 821) 1,698
Exercisable at the end of the year ~ EET/ (R 1648
Weighted average exercise MEFSTEE 0.078 - 0.078 0.078 0.078
price (HKS) (1)
In respect of the shares allocated under the Plan during the REA - BRBEFTEERZENRMDM
year, the weight average share price at the date of exercise = R1T{E B BBy hniE A% (B 50.33
is HK$0.33 (2009: HK$0.17). BT (ZEZNF : 0178T) °
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LA MBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZT—FF+=-F=+—HILFEE

32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d) 32. IR Z{893%c 5 (&)

(ii) Share Options Scheme (i) REBRHESTE|

The Company, as approved by its shareholders by way
of ordinary resolution, adopted a “Share Option Scheme”
(the “Scheme”) on 27 May 2005. Under the Scheme, the
Company may issue options to the directors and employees
of the Company and its subsidiaries and any advisors,
consultants, distributors, contractors, contract manufacturers,
suppliers, agents, customers, business partners, joint venture
business partners, service providers of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Scheme participants”). The objective of
the Scheme is to provide the Scheme participants with the
opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in the Company
and to encourage the Scheme participants to work towards
enhancing the value of the Company and its shares for the
benefit of the Company and its shareholders as a whole. The
term of the Scheme is 10 years from the date of adoption.

The exercise price is determined by the Remuneration
Committee, a committee of the Board comprising two
independent non-executive Directors and a non-executive
Director as established by the Board, from time to time, at
its absolute discretion and notified to the participant in the
offer and shall not be less than the higher of:

— the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheet issued by the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited on the date of grant;

— the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the
daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and

— the nominal value of a Share on the date of grant.
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

(i) Share Options Scheme (Cont’d)

Based on the approval of Remuneration Committee, the
share options granted under the Scheme on 8 September
2006 will vest in equal portions over a period of four years
commencing from the commencement of the “Vesting Date”
as approved by the Remuneration Committee. Share options
granted under the Scheme on 28 May 2008 subject to
one-year vesting period from the participant’s employment
starting date as approved by Remuneration Committee.

No option was granted during both years.

The number of share options and exercise prices were
adjusted in the year 2009 due to the rights issue at the
subscription price of HK$0.15 per rights share on the
basis of one rights share for every two existing shares. The
exercise prices were adjusted from HK$0.36 and HK$0.75
to HK$0.341 and HK$0.711 respectively.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE B RRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 i 2 —ZT—ZTF+—_A=+—HILFE

32. iz fH893X 5 (48)
(i) FERRMERTE (&)

RIEFHEZESNIE  R-ZTTARF
NANBRBEBAER SR LB
REFMEZESHEN[HERH] &£
O FRARERLIIRE - R _FF
NEFERAAZ+N\B  REBREER
HABRES RN B INEHE 8 2t
EN2EEZEBMARTEN—FR

PR AF 0 R I (T BB A -

RZZTZNF - BRAEMBRRB KRG
B3 — AR IR M R E L REE TR
HARAR D015 T EIT AR - E L
ARIESE RITEBE TAAE - 1TEER
0.3678 T }0.757% 7t 5 Bl 3 & 50.341
BT R0.7118TT °
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LA MBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZT—FF+=-F=+—HILFEE

32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

(i) Share Options Scheme (Cont’d)

32. Uiz 893X 5 (48)
(i) FERRAERTE (&)

Movement in the number of share options outstanding and MARBENERESE MEETEED
related exercise price are as follows: FEINT -
Adjusted
At Granted  Exercised Lapsed Rights At exercise
1 January during during during issue 31 December price Exercisable
2010 the year the year the year  adjustment 2010 (in HKS) Grant date until
RZE-%% RZE-%F SHEAHEE
-f-B ERERY EREAE  EREAM  HREE t2A=t-R (&7 REAH AfFERLA
"000 '000 '000 "000 '000 '000
TH TH Th Th TH TH
Managementsand ~ EEERIES 12,813 - - (1,266) - 11,547 0.341 8 September 2006 26 May 2014
employees ZEE5E “E-ME
ABNA BAZtAH
1,358 - - - - 1,358 0.711 28 May 2008 26 May 2014
ZBENE S f:3
EAZTNR BRA=tAH
Tota Ly 14,174 = - (1,266) - 12,005
Exercisable at the ERA{IFERY 12,905
end of the year
Weighted average MELHTEE 0.38 - - 0.38 0.38
exercise price (HK9) (A7)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

%éﬂﬂiﬁiﬁiﬁﬁi

For the year ended 31 December 2010 & & —

32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

(i) Share Options Scheme (Cont’d)

e iE

32. LIRHIZHE9E S (&)

(i) FERRMERTE (&)

Adjusted
At Granted  Exercised Lapsed Rights At exercise
1 January during during during issue 31 December price Exercisable
2009 the year the year the year  adjustment 2009 (in HKS) Grant date until
RZZENE RZZENF EHRERE
-A-B  HEmERY  EREfAR FREXN #REE t-A=t-8 () REBE  WARRIEA
000 '000 000 000 '000 000
T T T T T T
Managements and ERERES 15,191 - - (3,100) 722 12,813 0.341 8 September 2006 26 May 2014
employees I “E-mE
RBNE  RERZt#H
1,587 - - (300) n 1,358 0.711 28 May 2008 26 May 2014
“ET)\E —E-mE
i) iy V= N 1 By g
Total L 16,778 - - (3,400) 79 141
Brercisable attheend  EEAIERE 2205
of the year
Weighted average IR 0.38 - - 0.38 0.38
exercise price (HKS) (A7)
No share options were exercised for both years ended 31 REBE_E—ZEFR_ZTFTNF+H
December 2010 and 2009. =t—RIEMEFE - SEBREET
£ o
For the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group recognised RNEE—_ZE—ZF+_HB=+—HIEF
the total expenses of HK$93,000 (2009: HK$568,000) relating B ANEBEGER A EIRERERIA

to equity-settled share-based payment transactions in respect
of the share options granted by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

LA MBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZT—FF+=-F=+—HILFEE

32. Ly 893X 5 (&)
(iii) PR IR 3 22 Bhat &1

32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

(iii) Restricted Share Award Scheme

The Company adopted the Restricted Share Award Scheme
on 18 December 2008. The objective of the Restricted Share
Award Scheme is to provide incentives and help the Group
in retaining its existing employees and recruiting additional
employees and to provide them with a direct economic
interest in attaining the long-term business objectives of the
Company.

Pursuant to the Restricted Share Award Scheme, existing
shares of the Company will be purchased by the trustee
from the market out of cash contributed by the Group
and be held on trust for the selected employees until such
shares are vested with the selected employees. No restricted
shares will be granted if the aggregate number of restricted
shares awarded throughout the duration of the scheme
to be in excess of the 2.5% of the issued share capital of
the Company as at the adoption date of the scheme. The
maximum number of the restricted shares which may be
awarded to a selected employee under the scheme shall not
exceed 0.25% of the issued share capital of the Company
as at adoption date of the scheme.

As at 31 December 2010, a total of 100,000,000 (2009:
100,000,000) issued shares of approximately HK$19,465,000
(2009: HK$19,465,000)shown under shares held for award
scheme in the equity. No shares reward were being granted
to eligible employees up to the year end date.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZE—FF+_-_F=1+—HILEE

33. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES 33. BKREFIFTEI

182

Hong Kong

The Group participates in both a defined contribution scheme
which is registered under the Occupational Retirement Scheme
Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”) and a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) established under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Ordinance. The assets of the schemes are held
separately from those of the Group, in funds under the control of
trustees. Employees who were members of the ORSO Scheme
prior to the establishment of the MPF Scheme were offered a
choice of staying within the ORSO Scheme or switching to the
MPF Scheme, whereas all new employees joining the Group on or
after 1 December 2000 are required to join the MPF Scheme.

The ORSO Scheme is funded by monthly contributions from both
employees and the Group based on a specified percentage of
the employee’s basic salary, depending on the length of service
with the Group. Where there are employees who leave the ORSO
Scheme prior to vesting, the contributions payable by the Group
are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions. No forfeited
contributions were utilised in this manner for both years.

For members of the MPF Scheme, the Group contributes 5%
of relevant payroll costs to the scheme, which contribution is
matched by the employees.

At the end of reporting period, there is no amount of forfeited
contributions to reduce contributions payable in the future
years.

Mainland China

The employees of the Group in the Mainland China are members
of state-managed retirement benefit schemes operated by the
local government in the Mainland China. The Group is required
to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs to
the retirement benefit schemes to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit
schemes is to make the specified contributions.
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LA MBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZT—FF+=-F=+—HILFEE

34. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Other than disclosed in Note 30, as at 31 December 2010, the
Group has issued guarantees of HK$50,000 (2009: HK$606,000)
to a bank in respect of the mortgage loans borrowed by the
employees of a subsidiary. Management anticipates that no
material liabilities to the Group will arise from such guarantees.

35. OPERATING LEASES

The Group as lessor

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted
with tenants for the following future minimum lease payments in
respect of certain properties of the Group:

34. HAEME

BRMI SO EESIN  R-_F—FF+_H
=t+—H AEEEREMNBARIEEME
BV IR B E R M IR1TH A50,0008 T (—ZEF
L% £ 606,000/87T) MHELR - B EHA
AEBETERRFHERELEARE -

35. EEHEE

FEREEAHAA
RB|ERR - AEERBEF T AEER
ETOERNOARRKERSAKREFT AL

2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Within one year —FR 717 693
In the second to fifth year inclusive FE_ERFERF
(BRERMFEAN) 2,867 2,771
Over five years AELE 5,321 5,836
8,905 9,300
The Group as lessee AEEEBRBEAN

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

RBEYR - NEBE TR HEEK S BL A
7 ZSAERATHENRRKEEES M

operating leases which fall due as follows: KB
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHET
Within one year —%F R 3,415 5,525
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_FEERF
(BIEBEMFEEA) 533 2,072
3,948 7,597

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group
for office and factory premises. Leases are negotiated and rentals
are fixed for term ranging from one to three years.
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mE B RRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 i 2 —ZT—ZTF+—_A=+—HILFE

36. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND OTHER 36. EARRERHMtEHE
ARRANGEMENTS
2010 2009
—E-ZF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Capital expenditure in respect of acquisition of BREAWEDZE -
property, plant and equipment BEREENEARRAT
Authorised but not contracted for BREERTL 388,291 247,071
Contracted but not provided for EHENEE L 97,509 68,207
37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 37. FEALRS
Transactions with related parties EEREANTHRS
In addition to the related party transactions set out in other Brér A ISR MM EMEMNEEA LR
notes to the consolidated financial statements, during the year, S50 REBRFERNEBFEATEITNIIE
the Group entered into the following significant transactions with AR

related parties:

2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FExT FHEIT
Sales to fellow subsidiaries HETRZRMB AR 7,629 2,717
Rental and other charges paid to BN —KERHEBAF]
a fellow subsidiary e RHEAMER 2,472 2,329
Commission paid to a subsidiary of a B —KMB AR AR
non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary S LIEPNGI: A - 3,205
Purchases from a fellow subsidiary BB NGIEES: 14,235 2,434
Supporting and administrative service fee income RKE—KRBERH BRI
from a fellow subsidiary (Note) TR RITEAREERBWA
(B3E) 101,698 88,733
Interest income from a fellow subsidiary B —RRAZRZKBAR
B A 2 13,518 1,196
Rental income from a fellow subsidiary RE—KRARKBAA
S UA 666 657
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment W — R R RHT B A A A
from a fellow subsidiary VI - R Rk 15,921 =
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LA MBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZT—FF+=-F=+—HILFEE

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d) 37. FEANTRZS (8)

Transactions with related parties (Cont’d)
Note:

In 2008, the Group, through a wholly owned subsidiary, entered into
an agreement with a fellow subsidiary to provide certain research and
development and general administrative supporting services to the fellow
subsidiary from 30 April 2008 to 31 December 2010. This subsidiary
provides supporting and administrative services to the fellow subsidiary
as well as other group entities. Pursuant to the agreement, the Group
will charge the fellow subsidiary service fee income based on an agreed
portion of the actual costs incurred by the Group.

Transactions/balances with other state-controlled

entities

The Group itself is part of a larger group of companies under
CRNC which is controlled by the government of the Chinese
Mainland. Apart from the transactions with the parent company
and its subsidiaries which have been disclosed in other notes to
the consolidated financial statements, the Group also conducts
businesses with entities directly or indirectly owned or controlled
by the Chinese Mainland government in the ordinary course of
business. The directors consider those entities other than the
CRNC group are independent third parties as far as the Group’s
business transactions with them are concerned. In establishing
its pricing strategies and approval process for transactions with
other state-controlled entities, the Group does not differentiate
whether the counter-party is a state-controlled entity or not. The
Group is of the opinion that it has provided, in the best of its
knowledge, adequate and appropriate disclosure of related party
transactions in the consolidated financial statements.

The Group has entered into various transactions, including sales,
purchases, borrowings and other operating expenses with other
state-controlled entities which are considered as individually
insignificant during the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

hE B RRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZE—FF+_-_F=1+—HILEE

37.

38.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d) 37. FEANLTRS (8)
Key management compensation ETEEEERMN
2010 2009
—g-®F _TIAF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Short term employee benefits R EBREA 7,951 3,468

The remunerations of the Group’s key management personnel
include those of the executive directors of the Company only,
which are determined with reference to the terms of remuneration
committee, are disclosed in Note 13.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants liability of HK$277,187,000 (2009:
HK$167,613,000) represent subsidies granted by PRC
governmental authorities for the purpose of financing (i) the
purchases of machinery and equipment of HK$239,318,000
(2009: HK$148,240,000) and (ii) relevant expenses for the
development and production of new products of HK$37,869,000
(2009: HK$19,373,000). The amounts of HK$38,734,000 and
HK$26,583,000 (2009: HK$59,172,000 and HK$16,525,000)
received are repayable if the production facilities do not meet
the standard specified in the grants or the production volume of
the new products do not exceed the specified volume required
in the grants.

The government grants are recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as follows:

38.

AEBFEEEAE (EBEARRRITE
E)MEHL2EETMEESNKRREE 1B
MsF 133 EE -

BB &

T 6 B & & 1£277,187,0008 T (—EZF
JLEF 167,613,000 7T) 15+ B BT H 4
ERIEREMNER - HA()239,318,0007% 7T
“ETNF 148,240,000 L) BREE
e 22 % 2% 45 2 (i1)37,869,0008 T (—ZEZT N
% 119,373,000 L) ARFAENERNE
BRY - WEERE A SR TENIEZ
ERHERNEERRNBEDHESRENET
E= - AlEHE B B EA FLIE38,734,000
B 7T }&26,583,000%8 L (= & T N, F -
59,172,000 7t &.16,525,000/& 7T ) °

B & ThR AR & 2 H M & & HER A
™

2010 2009

—E-ZF —ETNF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHEx FHT

Other income (Note 9) EHag A (Fi7E9) 12,285 14,498

Reduction of cost of sales (Note 2) SHEKRARD (K5F2) 20,527 13,390
Reduction of research and development mEERHD (H:E2)

expenses (Note 2) 7,556 8,091

40,365 35,979
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

LA MBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZT—FF+=-F=+—HILFEE

39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 39. XEMBATEH
Place of Issued and Proportion of
incorporation/ fully paid share/ ownership interest
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital held by the Group  Principal activities
FMRL, BRTRBZRE rEEFRFE
i) NG FR L b SfRA BEEEZEIL  EEXEB
2010 2009
—E-EF _TTNF
% %
EHLERBEERAR Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100 100 Design and sales
China Resources 55 LEBABTT of integrated circuit
Semiconductor Ht RHEEKRER

International Limited

#EEE L E e () Mainland US$1,800,000 100 100  Design of wafer
BRAT] China 1,800,000 7T BakElE
China Resources REA

Semiconductor
(Shenzhen) Limited

FEEEIRMETF (R Mainland US$10,000,000 100 100 Testing and
ERAF] China 10,000,000% 70 packaging of wafers
China Resources Semicon B A3 AFHREERE

Microelectronics
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 39. X EMBATEE (&)
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(Cont’d)

Name of subsidiary

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

Issued and
fully paid share/
registered capital

Proportion of
ownership interest
held by the Group

Principal activities

3 A BRTRMZRE rEERREE
MENR AR FR L3t 2 aftlrAR HEEEzEIL  FEER
2010 2009
—E-EF _TTNF
% %
MESERMET Mainland RMB570,000,000 100 100  Manufacture and
BRAA China AR #570,000,0007C sales of integrated
Wuxi China Resources B i circuit, packaging
Microelectronics Co., Ltd. and testing of
integrated circuit,
investment holding
BUERHERKER
HERAHAEXEE -
REZER
MRS E R RN E T Mainland RMB65,000,000 91.76 91.76  Design, testing and
BRAA China AR ¥65,000,0007T sale of integrated
Wuxi China Resources B A circuit products
Semico Co., Ltd and chips
at R R IHE K
BRERROH
CERBYERHR (L8) Mainland US$3,000,000 95.83 95.83 Design and sale
ERAA China 3,000,000 70 of integrated circuit
CR PowTech (Shanghai) Ltd B i Rt RHERKER
CEMERER Mainland RMB335,000,000  99.662  99.662 Manufacture and
WEFHERAT] China AR #335,000,0007T sale of integrated
Wuxi China Resources B A circuit
Huajing Microelectronics RUERHEENE R
Co., Ltd
HEHE R R Mainland RMB330,000,000 100 100  Manufacture and
FERBRAA China AR #330,000,0007T sales of integrated
Wuxi CR Semiconductor B A circuit

Wafers & Chips Ltd

CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED 2= & {#
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

LA MBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZT—FF+=-F=+—HILFEE

39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 39. X EMBATEE (&)

(Cont’d)

Place of Issued and

incorporation/ fully paid share/

Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital

Proportion of
ownership interest
held by the Group

Principal activities

3 A BRITRMERE rEEREE
MEAR AR FR L3 B SR HEREEzEI  FEER
2010 2009
—E-Z2F —TTNF
% %
MR ERRERRARAR Mainland RMB320,000,000 75 756  Testing and packaging
Wuxi CR Micro-Assemb China AR #320,000,0007T of wafers
Tech. Ltd alEilush i A R R RE
MEER FEFERARADA  Mainland US$109,844,153 100 100 Manufacture and
CSMC Technologies China 109,844,153% 7T sale of integrated
Fab 1 Co., Ltd R EIA circuit and related

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at
31 December 2010 or at any time during the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
or assets and liabilities of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

® Equity Joint Venture

i Wholly Foreign Owned enterprises

CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED # JH 7 & + & [R & A
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Five-year Financial Summary

I FEBEHME

RESULTS E4
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
ZEERF ZTTHF ZTTN\F ZTTNF —T-EF
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
FET FHL FET FAET BT
TURNOVER WA 887,955 2,991,625 3,118,692 3,036,881 3,847,207
EBITDA EBITDA 266,312 702,369 200,208 389,101 894,377
PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR FRmt (EE) 49,454 231,663  (382,919)  (182,377) 279,748

ATTRIBUTABLE TO: A& 77 FE(G

OWNERS OF THE COMPANY RATEEAA 49,454 231,253  (371,535)  (172,208) 272,364
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS R - 400 (11,384) (10,171) 7,184
49,454 231,653  (382,919)  (182,377) 279,748
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Fr 2o

3i fﬁ ﬂj i%’ﬁﬁ EE’IrFr'QEL“

MM%'%\V

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERAE
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
“TEXF —TELF —TTEN\F —ZTTNF ZB-BFE
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
FHT FHIT FHIT FHIT BT
(restated) (restated)
(E7) (E7))
NON-CURRENT ASSETS EREEE 1,427,871 4,187,968 4,571,362 4,151,959 4,271,321
CURRENT ASSETS TEEE 542,293 2,652,539 2,560,026 2,833,085 3,251,577
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREEE (120,475) (1,339,524) (1,597,468) (1,132,904) (1,202,354)
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEAE (518,498) (2,247,489) (2,450,102) (2,531,267) (2,591,697)
TOTAL EQUITY BB 1,331,191 3,253,494 3,083,818 3,320,873 3,728,847
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO Vi/NEIE7FEPN
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY FE (s 1,331,191 3,163,452 2,985,656 3,232,715 3,630,468
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS FEPE AR R = - 90,042 98,162 88,158 98,379
TOTAL EQUITY TR 1,331,191 3,253,494 3,083,818 3,320,873 3,728,847

CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED 2 H # & + A R 24 7] ANNUALREPORT2010 — T — T FFE &R &
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Investor Relations

REAEBR

Shareholders can obtain copies of Annual Report by writing to:

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
17M Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

If you are not a shareholder, please write to:

China Resources Microelectronics Limited
Rooms 4003-4005, 40th Floor

China Resources Building

26 Harbour Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

Attn: IR Department

This annual report is also available online at
http://www.crmicro.com

SHAREHOLDER ENQUIRIES

Our enquiry hotline is operational during normal office hours:
Telephone: +852-2299-9128

Facsimile: +852-2299-9300
Email: ir.crmicro@crc.com.hk

CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED 2 & fif &

F B B 2 7 ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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